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Wholly owned subsidiary of: 

+977-1-4005084 www.niblcapital.com+977-9801023000info@niblcapital.com

P.O. Box: 23224 Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal +977-1-4425280, 4419421

Managing shares. Managing investments.

NIBL LOTUS
SECURE PORTFOLIO

 Make Safe Investments that
keep your money secure under
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NIBL Ace Capital Ltd., a subsidiary of Nepal Investment 

Bank Limited, is a limited liability company that has been 

registered at the office of company registrar and received 
its certificate of operation on 2069/04/15. On 2074/10/28, 
after successful merger, NIBL Capital and Ace Capital 

started joint operation as NIBL Ace Capital Ltd. While NIBL 

Capital was already an established force in the capital 

market, merger with Ace Capital further strengthened the 

reserve of professional expertise, talent, a strong capital 

base and vigorous long-term vision. 

The company recently completed its 7th year of operation 
and during this period, it has grown from a start-up 

investment firm to one of the biggest players in the Nepalese 
capital market. Over the past seven years, it has offered 
a wide range of products and services related to capital 

markets to its clients efficiently through its experienced and 
energetic workforce. Driven by a strong leader, dedicated 

workforce and its digital agenda, the company continues to 

maintain its image as key player in the market. 

Mutual Fund

NIBL Ace Capital is a licensed fund manager which is currently managing three schemes 

with a total corpus amount of NPR 1.95 billion:

     NIBL Samriddhi Fund – I              NIBL Pragati Fund           NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

NIBL Ace Capital acts as the intermediary between the depository system (CDS and 

Clearing Ltd.) and its clients.

It offers a secure, convenient and paperless way to keep track of its client investments in 
shares and other securities without the hassle of handling paper based transcripts.

Depository 
Participant

Portfolio  
Management 

Service

NIBL Ace Capital has been offering comprehensive and risk weighted investment 
management, financial advisory and planning.
A. NIBL Discretionary Portfolio 

B. NIBL Non- Discretionary Portfolio 

C. NIBL Customized Portfolio 

 
NIBL Ace Capital advisory team shall be helping their clients expand their business and 

solidify their financial affairs offering the following advisory services:

     Business Valuations   Private Equity    Loan Syndication          Venture Capital 

      Financial Restructuring

Corporate
Advisory
Service

NIBL Ace Capital is a licensed merchant banker from SEBON which offers the following 
services:
     Issue & Sales Management      Securities Underwriting      Share Registration Services

Merchant 
Banking

NIBL Ace Capital Limited- An Overview

NIBL Petal Plus Portfolio 
NIBL Growth Plus Portfolio 
NIBL Lotus Portfolio 

NIBL Lotus Secure Portfolio
Customized Portfolio 
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MISSION

NIBL Ace Capital is relentlessly driven by entrepreneurial 

zeal to invest in ideas that empower all our stakeholders. We 

engage with our clients, understand their needs and create 

winning strategies for them with our expertise and sharp 

business acumen. A winning strategy for our clients is the 

only winning strategy for us.

VALUES

To remain the leading One Stop Financial Solutions Shop 
and grow our business to international standards with 

passion and integrity while building outstanding value for all 

our stakeholders. As a responsible corporate citizen we care 

for our community and environment.

CORE VALUES

At NIBL Ace Capital, achieving our goal is consistently 

focused by keeping in mind our core values of:

 Client Value Creation

 Stewardship

 Integrity

 Innovation

People and Culture

At NIBL Ace Capital, our relentless efforts focus on pro-

moting and sustaining a multidisciplinary and team-driv-

en work culture, which we believe is critical in meeting 

the unique needs of our clients and the various business 

segments in which they operate. We focus on an all-

rounder approach where we are devoted to enhancing 

our employees’ career.
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Dear Valued Shareholders 

I am pleased to report that NIBL Ace Capital Ltd has successfully completed its 

seventh year of operation with remarkable performance. NIBL Ace Capital, which 

began its operation 7 years ago, has now grown up to be one of the biggest  
players in the Nepalese capital market. The company’s strong performance year 

after year is a testament to our business strategy and trustworthy service and 

reputation in the market.

The Capital market has drastically changed over the past 4 years with increased 
competition. However, our team, knowledge, products/services, infrastructure 
and expertise beats all in the market. Companies like us need to know how to 

turn competition into an opportunity and we have done so. We have wisely used 

the competition as a means to further develop our products and create a market  

advantage while serving our customer's needs.

Achievements

With will and perseverance, we aim to continue to progress and assist our clients while delivering solid results in this  

growing economic environment. NIBL Ace Capital was the first to open more than 1,74,000 DEMAT accounts and  
accommodate more than 40 companies share registrar, serving over 12,23,604 shareholders. For the fiscal year 
2018/19, our Issue Management team smoothly managed 7 Initial Public Offerings and 7 Right shares issues; and our  
Portfolio Management team has also now been enhanced which contributed towards personalized customers’ service to our  

valuable clients. We have set up dedicated call center operation and also initiated corporate advisory service covering 

Venture Capital, Private Equity, Business Plan Development, Working Capital Financing, Loan Syndication, Hedge Fund 

and Financial Advisory.

The major achievement attained in FY2018/19 was successful launch of open ended scheme "NIBL SAAHABHAGITA 
FUND" designed under NIBL Mutual Fund as the first ever Open Ended Mutual Fund Scheme after the implementation of 
Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067 and Mutual Fund Guidelines, 2069. The main objective of this scheme is to explore and  
establish Open Ended Mutual Fund in Nepalese Capital Market and provide investors with alternative investment  
instrument across the country with ease of investment and liquidity. This scheme encourages the conversion of savings 

into investments regularly for long period of time to provide steady returns to unit-holders. The approved fund size of this 

scheme is NPR 500 million which will be extended accordingly; out of which 15% (i.e. 75 million) was injected as seed  
capital by the Fund Sponsor & Fund Manager and the NFO (New Fund Offer) of NPR 125 million was issued in the initial 
phase.    

Projections/Innovations

With the financial accomplishments from the previous year, we are again preparing ourselves to assist customers with  
upcoming IPOs, right issues and additional RTS/RTA companies.  We have already opened 4 branches outside Kathmandu  
valley and 2 branches inside Kathmandu valley, we shall look after the proper management of the branches including 
relocation of inside valley branches as required. We are not only expanding our branches but also adding new services to 

satisfy customers who seek our assistance through out Nepal.

As Nepal is rapidly changing towards a digitalized era, our dedicated team members have started working on  

technological projects, advancing the NIBL Ace Capital Mobile App, PMS/DP access system, Customer Service, Website and 
Internal Management Systems so that we remain up-to-date and deliver a user friendly experience. To make easier for the  

customers, we have also added an advanced call center to provide dedicated call center service to our customers. 

Financial results for 2018/19

As mentioned above, the fiscal year 2018/19 has been financially rewarding for the company. Thus, the board has  
proposed 20% Cash Dividend including applicable taxes to the Shareholder. With the change in the regulations and the 
adoption of NFRS; and as a result of the competitive market, the Net Profit for this year amounts to NPR 6.21 Crore which 

Message From the CEO
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is a increment of 39.2 percent in comparison to last year’s figure of NPR 4.46 Crore. However, NIBL Ace Capital’s Net 
Worth stands at NPR 36.08 Crore, which has risen by 3.3 percent compared to NPR 34.94 Crore last year. These figures 
prove a good reflection of our financial health and build a solid profile of our company to excel beyond.

With the current level of growth and innovation within our company, and the prospects of the market, we believe that the 

future of the company looks challenging but we shall remain in a dominant position as usual for sure. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)-Under CEO message 

We believe in the betterment of our community and we demonstrate this through our values and actions. We have been 

actively participating in corporate social responsibilities. We have donated NPR 1,50,000 to ECDC foundation. These 
charities focus on underprivileged orphan children and deprived children of the country. Similarly, a donation was made 

to First Ray of Hope, with an intention to provide free educational sponsorship for two orphans till class 10. The donation 
of Rs. 100,000.00 has been paid to Animal Nepal for the activities relating to animal protection and shelter in Kathmandu.

We have been maintaining a public garden outside the office premises at Uttar Dhoka, Lazimpat, with an intention to keep 
its surrounding clean and tidy, ever since the garden have been maintained under us. Last Year, we have successfully 

conducted blood donation program on Oct. 9, 2018 in the office premises at Uttardhoka, Lazimpat.

Overall, I am confident that we are heading towards a prosperous direction and with your help we will accomplish our goals 
to make a significant development in the capital markets and investment industry and achieve appropriate returns for all 
our stakeholders.

Shivanth B. Pandé

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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 The company has launched NIBL Sahabhagita Fund, the first open ended Mutual 
Fund Scheme in Nepalese Capital Market under Mutual Fund Regulation, 2069. 
The issue for the same has been opened from 2076 Jestha 19 to 2076 Ashad 
16. On completion, of which, the fund with the size of NRs. 20 Crores has been 
formally operated.

     The company has also been actively involved in its CSR activities. The donations 

made to Two Orphanages on the special occasion of its 5th annual day have 
been continued during the following year.

 The monthly donation of Rs. 1,000 each for two orphans has been made. Hence, 
the total donation of Rs. 24,000 has been paid to First Ray of Hope during the 
year. The donation shall be continued till their secondary education level. For this 

purpose, the fund of Rs. 2.5 lakh has been kept in fixed deposit.

 Similarly, a donation of NPR 1.5 lakhs was made to ECDC foundation, with 
an intention to cover essential expenses such as schooling costs, hotel/ 
accommodation fees, cost of books and clothing for one child for duration of one 

year.

 The donation of Rs. 100,000.00 has been paid to Animal Nepal for the activities 
relating to animal protection and shelter.

 As planned, the merger with Ace Capital Limited has been completed on FY 

2074/75 and the PAN Closure of then Ace Capital has been completed on FY 
2075/76.

 The company has been able to expand PMS business. The company has 

reached total 213 Clients with Portfolio Value of NPR 69.57 Crores (at Cost) and 
NPR. 58.31 Crores (at Market Value) adding NPR. 41.04 Crores (at cost) from 
111 Clients till now.

 NIBL Ace Capital holds prominence in No. 1 position of DP in Nepalese market 
with more than 174000 DEMAT accounts till fiscal year 2075/76

 The company has continued the new SMS Service to our DEMAT Account 

holders (Buy and Sell Transaction Notification).

 For the collection of DP fees, we have made the agreement with Khalti and in 
near future, the collection shall be started from digital process.

 The company has started DEMAT account opening from Korea with co-ordination 
of NIBL Bank.

 NIBL Ace Capital is the share registrar of 40 Companies, serving over 1,223,604 
shareholders.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2075/76
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Board of Directors

Mrs. Bandana Thapa 

Director

 Currently the Head of Compliance at Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.

 Board of Director at Sajha Yatayat since 2011.
 25 years of experience in the industry with thorough understanding of rules and regulation and banking 

legislation in Nepal.

Mr. Rabindra Bhattrai 

Independent Director 

 Faculty member at ShankerDev Campus

 MBA from Tribhuwan University

 Former Director at Sagarmatha Merchant Banking and Finance Ltd.

Mr. Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

 Chartered Accountant and Currently CFO at Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.
 Served as Assistant Manager for Deloitte Haskins & Sells, UK
 More than 12 years of experience in accounts, finance, taxation and audit.

Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

 Head of Legal/Recovery Department at Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.
 Member of SAARC Law/Nepal, Supreme Court Bar Association, Nepal Bar Association, Nepal Law Society.
 M.A. (TU/Nepal). B.L (TU/Nepal), LLM (PU/Nepal)
 More than 29 years of experience in Legal Department (1991 to present).
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Managing shares. Managing investments.

Wholly owned subsidiary of: 

+977-1-4005084 www.niblcapital.cominfo@niblcapital.com

P.O. Box: 23224 Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal +977-1-4425280, 4419421

WE

ARE

AVAILABLE AT

www.facebook

.com/niblcaps/
info@niblcapital.com

linkedin.com/

company/nibl-capital-

markets-limited

Call Center

01-4425280

youtube.com/user/

niblcapital

h�ps://niblcapital.com/
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Mr. Shivanth B. Pande

Chief Executive Officer
 Master Degree in Financial Economics from the University of St. Andrews, Scotland, UK
 Over 16 years of experience in the field of finance.
 Areas of expertise include Economic Research and Financial Analysis, Mobile Banking, 

SME Finance, Private Equity, and Venture Capital

Mr. Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
 Chartered Accountant

 Over 14 years of experience in capital markets, investment banking, auditing and securities 
regulation

 Previously worked in the Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON) as a Deputy Director
 Also worked as Chief Operating Officer and Company Secretary at Siddhartha Capital  

Limited

Mr. Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi

General Manager
 Holds an MBA/EMBA
 Over 21 years of experience in the area of merchant banking services in Nepal.
 Previously he was the General Manager of Growmore Merchant Banker Limited for 5 years

Mr. Badri Prasad Pyakurel

Assistant General Manager/ Head of Merchant Banking & Depository Participant
 MA in Economics and BEd in Mathematics from Tribhuwan University

 Holds over 15 years of experience in Banking and Capital Markets in Nepal
 Also holds over 16 years of teaching experience in Tribhuwan University, Pokhara  

University and Purwanchal University

Mrs. Rekha Pant

Head of RTS/RTA Department (Deputed from NIBL)
 MA in Economics

 Holds more than 16 years of experience in banking and finance industry.

Management Team

Mr. Ram Kumar Mahat

Head of Compliance and Secretariat
 Holds an MA/Law Graduate.
 An Advocate and has more than 16 years’ experience in Bank and financial Institutions as 

well as Merchant Banking and as Legal consultant at Kanchanjunga Legal Office etc.
 Before Joining he was Managing Director at Ace Capital Limited.
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Mr. Bhuwan Raj Panta

Head of Research & Development

 MBA Specialization in Finance from Pokhara University (PU)

 Holds 7 years of experience in Derivative & Commodity Market in Finance & Accounts  
Department and 3 years of experience in Merchant Banking and Investment Banking  
Industry.

 Deep insight into the capital market and in depth technical knowledge of valuation.

Mr. Anup Shakya

Head of General Service Department

 More than 7 years of experience in Investment banking, Due Diligence Audit (DDA), Auditing, 
Tax Consultant

 Master’s Degree in Business Studies

Deepika Paudel

Head of Portfolio Management Services

 MBA degree from Pokhara University (PU), Head-Portfolio Management Service Department

 Has more 5 years of experience on Portfolio Associate / Operation / HR & Admin at Nabil 
Investment Banking Ltd, Naxal Kathmandu, Nepal.

Mr. Subhash Poudel

Head Mutual Fund

 Holds Master’s Degree in Business Studies

 More than 6 years of experience in Merchant Banking and Investment Banking Industry
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Our Reach
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NIBL Ace Capital is expanding its reach by opening its branches in various 

different cities throughout Nepal.

Existing Branches

Up Coming Branches

	Kathmandu
 Lagankhel

 Butwal

 Biratnagar

 Birgunj

 Pokhara

 Other major cities in Nepal phase wise
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NIBL Ace Capital Limited has been very active in 

terms of its corporate social responsibility. It has 

organized numerous events and activities with an 

intention to pay back to the society.

Investment Awareness Program

The company recognizes the importance of 

practical exposure for professional growth, and 

believes that this opportunity is highly beneficial for 
individuals and business professionals working in 

the corporate world. Investment Awareness Program 

was conducted by NIBL Ace Capital staff to provide 
opportunity and exposure for business professionals 

in the capital markets. The program offered an 
insight to the professionals on how capital markets 

work, from the process of opening a DEMAT account 

to the working of share market. 

Donations

• NIBL Ace Capital has also made donations to  
 numerous orphanages to sponsor underprivileged 

 orphans. The company believes that investment  

 in knowledge and education is one of the best  

 assets one can invest in. Therefore, a donation  

 of NPR 1.5 lakhs was made to ECDC foundation,  
 with an intention to cover essential expenses  

 such as schooling costs, hostel/ accommodation  
 fees.

• Similarly, a donation was made to First Ray of  
 Hope, with an intention to provide free educational  

 sponsorship for two orphans till class 10.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Blood Donation

We have conducted blood donation program in the office 
premises at Uttar Dhoka, Lazimpat

Public Garden

• We have been maintaining, a public garden outside  
 the office premises at Uttar Dhoka, Lazimpat, with an  
 intension to keep its surrounding clean and tidy.
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 ? @,((,)))÷– kfl/t ug]{ .
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URL: www.niblcapital.com, E-mail: info@niblcapital.com

;ftf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf
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nufgLstf{x?n] ;xh ?kdf OsfO{x? vl/b laqmL ug{ ;lsg] x'Fbf PgcfO{laPn ;xeflutf km08n] ahf/df /fd|f] :yfg lng] xfdLn] 
ck]Iff u/]sf 5f}+ . o; sDkgLaf6 pknJw u/fOg] dr]{G6 a}+lsË cGtu{tsf ;]jfx?nfO{ ;'ne Pj+ ;xh agfpg pkTosf leq nfnb/
jf/ / nugv]n tyf pkTosf aflx/ kf]v/f, a'6jn, aL/u~h / la/f6gu/df /x]sf] zfvfx?af6 ;]jf k'/\ofpg] sfo{nfO{ ljut aif{x?df 
h:t} lg/Gt/tf lb+b} cfPsf] 5 . To;}u/L lgisfzg tyf laqmL k|aGw cGt{ut ljleGg sDkgLx?sf] z]o/ tyf l8j]~r/x?sf] ;fj{hlgs 
lgisfzg -cfO{lkcf]_ / xsk|b z]o/ lgisfzg tyf laqmL k|aGw ;DaGwL sfo{ ;DkGg u/]sf]]Ù z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] ?kdf sfo{ ul//x]sf]  
sDkgLsf] ;+Vof s'n $) k'¥ofpg ;kmn /x]sf]Ù nufgL Aoj:yfkg ;]jf cGtu{t u|fxs ;+Vof !&# tyf nufgL Aoa:yfkg /sd  
?= ^@,&),#),%!$÷– k'¥ofpg ;kmn /x]sf]Ù ;fy} lgIf]k ;b:o cGtu{t g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s lnld6]8sf] ;Dk"0f{ zfvf sfof{nox? 
nufot o; sDkgLsf] ;d]t ;Dk"0f{ zfvf sfof{nox?af6 ;]jf pknAw u/fpg] Aoj:yf ldnfO{ ;ldIff cjwLdf sl/a !&,#$) gofF 

lxtu|fxL vftf vf]nL s'n vftf ;+Vof !,&$,^*& k'/\ofpg ;kmn ePsf] 5 .

cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ df sDkgLn] u/]sf] NFRS cg';f/sf] cfly{s k|ultsf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .
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ldlt @)&% >fj0f ! b]lv ldlt @)&^ cfiff9 d;fGt ;Ddsf] ;dli6ut cfly{s cj:yf Pj+ sfo{ ;Dkfbgsf] emns lgDgfg';f/ k|:t't 
ul/Psf] 5 .

lgisfzg tyf laqmL k|aGw ;]jf M

o; PgcfO{laPn P; Soflk6n lnld6]8n] cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ df lgDg cg';f/sf sDkgLx?sf] ;fwf/0f z]o/ ;j{;fwf/0fdf hf/L 
ug{ >L g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{af6 :jLs[t k|fKt u/]sf] lyof] / ;f]xL cg';f/ lgisfzg tyf laqmL k|aGwsf] sfo{ ;DkGg u/]sf] / s]xL 
cfufdL jif{ ul/g] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 .

s_ ;fa{hlgs lgisfzg – IPO/FPOs

l;=g+= sDkgLsf]÷lgisflzt lwtf]kqsf] gfd lgisfzgsf] k|sf/ lgisfzg /sd -?=_

!= Rff}tf/L n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ ^),))),)))
@= u0fklt dfO{qmf]kmfOgfG; ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ ##,%)),)))
#= u'/fF; n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ @%,))),)))
$= cfFlwvf]nf n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ $,)),)),)))
% P;= la=Pn= l8a]Gr/, @)*@ l8a]Gr/ @,@%,)),)),)))
^ Unf]an cfO{PdO{ a}+s lnld6]8 l8a]Gr/, @)*)÷*! l8a]Gr/ !,%),)),)),)))
&= Pg cfO{ la Pn ;xeflutf km08 ;fd"lxs nufgL sf]if @),)),)),)))

l;= g+= ljj/0f @)&^ cfiff9 d;fGt @)&% cfiff9 d;fGt

!= z]o/ k"FhL 270,000,000.00 270,000,000.00

@= hu]8f sf]ifx? 90,866,819.00 79,423,123.00

#= cGo bfloTj 850,032,240.00 2,221,595,501.00

$= s'n k"“hL tyf bfloTj 1,210,899,059.00 2,571,018,624.00

%= l:y/ ;DklQ v'b 28,335,691.00 31,299,686.00

^= gub tyf a}s df}Hbft 572,380,134.00 2,142,385,496.00

&= nufgL 547,931,264.00 329,148,876.00

*= cGo ;DklQ 62,251,970.00 68,184,566.00

(= s"n ;DktL 1,210,899,059.00 2,571,018,624.00

!)= s'n cfDbfgL 188,164,957.00 147,583,046.00

!!= s'n vr{ 96,635,230.00 91,278,923.00

!@= v'b ;+rfng d'gfkmf 91,529,727.00 56,304,123.00

!#= cfos/ Joj:yf 29,347,418.00 11,634,138.00

!$= v'b÷gfkmf -gf]S;fg_ 62,182,309.00 44,669,985.00

!%= z]o/ ;+Vof -xhf/df_ 2,700,000.00 2,700,000.00

!^= k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL 23.03 16.54

!&= g]6jy{ -a's Eofn'_ ?= 133.65 129.42
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v_ xsk|b z]o/ lgisfzg – Right Share Issue

l;=g+= sDkgLsf] gfd lgisfzg /sd -?=_

! cf/P; l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 @!,%(,&),)))

@ ;dtf dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 !,*(,^),)))

# ldld{/] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 $,%),)),)))

$ g]zgn nfOkm O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8 ((,#^,$&,&%)

%= ;fxf/f lasf; a}+s lnld6]8 &,*!,%*,)))

^= Pl;og nfOkm O{G:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8 &%,$),#%,@&#

&= u|fdL0f ljsf; n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf lnld6]8 #@,&%,)),)))

gf]6 M g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{af6 ;dLIff cjlwdf ;fj{hlgs tyf xsk|b lgisfzgsf] nflu cg'dlt k|fKt ePsf] dWo] sl/a #) k|ltztsf] 
xf/fxf/Ldf o; sDkgLn] ;fj{hlgs tyf xsk|b lgisfzg ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 .

u_ xsk|b z]o/sf] lnnfd – Auction of Right Shares

o; sDkgLn] ;dLIff cjlwdf xsk|b z]o/sf] lgisfzgsf] qmd laqmL geO{ afFsL /x]sf] hDdf ^ j6f sDkgLsf] ;+:yfks tyf 
;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xsf] z]o/ lnnfd laqmLsf] dfWodaf6 laqmL ug]{ sfo{ ;kmntf k"j{s ;DkGg u/]sf] 5.
 
3_ z]o/ k|Tofe"lt ;]jf ;DaGwL ljj/0f M s'n @ j6f .

ª_ z]o/ /lhi6«]zg ;DaGwL ljj/0f M cf=j= @)&%÷)&^ sf] cGTo ;Dddf s'n $) j6f .

l;=g+= sDkgLsf] gfd z]o/sf] k|sf/ k|Tofe'lt u/]sf] /sd -?=_

!= cfzf n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ ^,&$,)),)))÷–

@= lzjd\ l;d]G6 lnld6]8 ;fwf/0f z]o/ &$,^),)),)))÷–

l;=g+= sDkgLsf] gfd l;=g+= sDkgLsf] gfd

!= g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s ln= @!= /fli6«o aLdf sDkgL ln=

@= PgcfO{laPn ;d[l4 km08–! @@= g]zgn dfO{s|f]kmfO{gfG; laQLo ;+:yf ln=

#= lzv/ OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= @#= kf]v/f kmfOgfG; ln=

$= Uff]vf{h kmfO{gfG; ln= @$= u'8ljn kmfOgfG; ln=

%= l;Gw' ljsf; a}+s ln= @%= ;fFu|Lnf 8]enkd]G6 a}+s ln=

^= :jfjnDag n3'laQ laQLo ;+:yf ln= @^= cf]l/oG6n xf]6N; ln=

&= ;fN6 6]l8Ë skf]{/]zg ln= @&= zfOg /];'Ëf 8]enkd]G6 a}+s ln=

*= a?0f xfO8«f]kfj/ sDkgL ln= @*= cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

(= b]jM ljsf; a}+s ln= @(= g]kfn OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=

!)= ;fxf/f ljsf; a}+s ln= #)= ;dtf dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

!!= ljho n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= #!= lgw{g pTyfg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

!@= s[lif ljsf; a}+s ln= #@= cf]d 8]enkd]G6 a}+s ln=

!#= lbJoZj/L xfO8«f]kfj/ sDkgL ln= ##= PgcfO{laPn k|ult km08

!$= PS;]n 8]enkd]G6 a}+s lnld6]8 #$= n'lDjgL hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=

!%= ul/df ljsf; a}+s lnld6]8 #%= d~h'>L kmfOgfG; lnld6]8

!^= Hof]tL jsf; a}+s lnld6]8 #^= ;kf]6{ dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

!&= k|f]u]l;e kmfO{gfG; lnld6]8 #&= rf}tf/L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

!*= Plzog nfO{km OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= #*= u0fklt dfOqmf]kmfOgfG; ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

!(= u|Lg 8]enkd]G6 a}+s ln= #(= u'/fF; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

@)= d'lQmgfy ljsf; a}+s ln= $)= PgcfO{laPn ;xeflutf km08
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nufgL Aoa:yfkg ;DaGwL ;]jf M 
cf=j= @)&%÷)&^ sf] cGTo ;Dddf nufgL Aoa:yfkg -P;]6 cG8/ Dofg]hd]06_ sl/a ?= ^@=&) s/f]8 k'u]sf] .

lgIf]k ;b:o M
;dLIff cjlwdf o; sDkgLn] g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8af6 lgIf]k ;b:osf] ?kdf g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 
a}+s ln= sf] ;Dk"0f{ zfvf sfof{nox? nufot o; sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ;lxt & j6f :yfgx?af6 lgIf]k ;b:o ;DaGwL  
;]jf pknAw u/fpg] Aoj:yf ldnfO{ ;ldIff cjwLdf sl/a !&,#$) gofF lxtu|fxL vftf vf]nL s'n vftf ;+Vof !,&$,^*& k'/\ofpg 
;kmn ePsf] 5 .

PgcfO{laPn Do'r'cn km08 M
PgcfO{laPn Do'r'cn km08 cGtu{tsf] PgcfO{laPn ;d[l4 km08–! Tfyf PgcfO{laPn k|ult km08sf] of]hgf Joj:yfks /xL o; 
sDkgLn] ?= ! cj{ &% s/f]8sf] sf]if ;+rfng u/L cfPsf] 5 . ;dLIff cjlwdf PgcfO{laPn ;xeflutf km08 gfds ? @) s/f]8sf] 
b]zs} klxnf] v'nfd'vL of]hgf ;j{;fwf/0fx?df lgisfzg u/L @)&^ ;fn cflZjg @^ ut]af6 o; sDkgLsf zfvf sfof{nox? tyf 
g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+ssf] tf]lsPsf] zfvf sfof{nox?af6 vl/b laqmL x'g] Joj:yf ;d]t ldnfO{Psf] 5 . o; cf=a=df PgcfO{laPn 
;d[l4 km08–! sf OsfO{wgLx?nfO{ ^=% k|ltztsf b/n] d'gfkmf ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj kfl/t u/]sf] 5 .

@= /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/:yLtLaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/sf] ;ldIff M
cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ df lj:t[t d'b|f k|bfosf] jflif{s j[l4b/ !* k|ltztsf] ;Ldf leq /fVg] nIo /flvPsf]df @)&^ h]7 d;fGtdf 
aflif{s ljGb''ut j[l4b/ !^=& k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ df s'n ?= #@@ ca{ $( s/f]8 t/ntf k|jfx ePsf] 5 . 
cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ df ?=!))÷– ca{ #% s/f]8 t/ntf k|zf]wg ePsf] 5 . d'n's pT;fxhgs 9+un] cfly{s j[l4sf] af6f]df cufl8 
a9]sf] 5 . cfGtl/s cfly{s lqmofsnfk lj:tf/ eP;Fu} g]kfnn] pbLodfg l5d]sL cy{tGqx?sf] ljsf;sf] nfe lng] cj;/ ;d]
t k|fKt u/]sf] 5 . pRr cfly{s j[l4sf] k|j[lQnfO{ ;xof]u k'¥ofpFb} cfly{s jif{ @)&^÷&& sf] df ;dli6ut cfly{s :yfloTj sfod 
ug'{kg]{ r'gf}tL eg] oyfjt} 5 . d'b|f:kmLltdf b]lvg yfn]sf] bafa tyf zf]wgfGt/ 3f6fdf /x]sf] sf/0f ljQLo If]qsf] ;jnLs/0f dfkm{t 
shf{sf] ljj]szLn pkof]unfO{ yk k|f]T;fxg ug'{kg]{ at{dfg cj:yfdf ;dli6ut cfly{s tyf ljQLo :yfloTj xfl;n ug{, ljQLo kx'Fr 
clej[l4 ug{, ljQLo ;]jf k|jfxdf k|fb]lzs ;Gt'ng sfod ug{ / nlIft cfly{s j[l4 xfl;n ug{ ;xof]u k'Ug] ljZjf; ul/Psf]af6 
Joj;fodf ;do ;fk]If k|utL x'g] b]lvG5 .

g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] gofF lgtL÷lgb]{lzsf cg';f/ dr]{G6 a+}s/nfO{ gofF sfo{If]qx? Joj;flos of]hgf, nf]g l;l08s]Zfg, jls{ª 
Soflk6n kmfOgflG;ª, k|fO{e]6 OlSj6L, x]h km08 cfbL If]qdf ;+:yfut k/fdz{bftf ;DalGw ;]jfx? k|bfg ug{ ;Sg] ul/ lj:tf/ 
ul/Psf 5g\ . o;nfO{ k"FhL ahf/sf] nfuL gofF cfofd dfGg ;lsG5 . dr]{G6 a}+lsª Joj;fosf] bfo/f ;f]r] cg's'n km/flsnf] x'g 
g;Sg', o; If]qdf ePsf] c:j:y k|ltikwf{, clwsf+z afl0fHo a}+sx?n] ;xfos sDkgLsf] ?kdf of] Joj;fonfO{ ;'?jft ug'{ h:tf 
r'gf}tLx?sf afah'b o; sDkgLn] g]kfnsf] at{dfg ahf/df cfkm'nfO{ cAan :yflkt ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . 

tyfkL g]kfn ;/sf/sf] pRr cfly{s j[l4b/ sfod /fVg] nIo tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] d'b|f:kmLlt Go"g /fVg / ljlQo ;Gt'ng sfod 
ug]{ h:tf df}lb|s lgtLsf] kmn:j?k cfufdL lbgdf k"FhL ahf/df ;sf/fTds c;/ kg]{ ljZjf; xfdLn] lnPsf 5f}+ .

#= k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt ;Dd rfn' jif{ @)&^÷)&&  sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] 
wf/0ff M
of] k|ltj]bg tof/ x'Fbf ;Dd o; sDkgLn] u/]sf] pknlAwx? ;fy} eljiodf ug'{kg]{ sfo{x?sf] ljj/0f ;DaGwdf  ;+rfns ;ldltsf] 
wf/0ffx? lgDg adf]lhd /x]sf 5g\ M

 o; sDkgLn] gof+ gofF sfg"g adf]lhd ePsf] kl/jt{gnfO{ cfGtl/s ?kdf nfu' ug{ To;nfO{ k'/fgf] cfGtl/s ljlgodfjnLx? 
 k'g/fjnf]sg tyf gePsfx? lgdf{0f ug]{ sfo{ ul//x]sf] 5 .
 g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{n] ;do ;dodf hf/L u/]sf] lgb]{lzsf tyf cGo k|rlnt sfg"gx? adf]lhd ljj/0fx? a'emfpg] tyf gd"gf  
 tof/ ug]{ sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 .
 g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s lnld6]8 sf]if k|a4{s tyf PgcfO{laPn P; Soflk6n lnld6]8 of]hgf Aoa:yfks /x]sf] PgcfO{laPn  
 Do'r'cn km08 cGtu{t ;~rflnt æPgcfO{laPn ;xeflutf km08Æ gfds v'nfd'vL of]hgfsf] vl/b laqmLsf] ;'?jft ug{ u[xsfo{  
 eO{/x]sf] 5 .
 o; sDkgLn] Ps nfv krxQ/ xhf/ eGbf a9L lxtu|fxL vftf vf]Nb} cfk'mnfO{ cGo dr]{06 a}+ssf] bfFhf]df cuf8L k|:t't u/]sf]  
 5, o;nfO{ elaiodf ;d]t lg/Gt/tf lbO{g]5 .
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 o; sDkgLn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fVb} o; jif{ b]lv lgoldt ?kdf ljleGg sfo{qmdx? u/L o;nfO{  
 lg/Gt/tf lbg] of]hgf agfPsf] 5 .
 PgcfOljPn Do'r'cn km08 cGt{utsf] PgcfO{ljPn ;d[l4 km08 ! sf] OsfOwgLx?nfO{ ̂ =% k|ltzt d'gfkmf ljt/0f ug{ k|:tfj  
 u/]sf]df ;f] ljt/0f ug]{ k|ls|of cuf8L a9fOPsf] 5 .

efjL of]hgfx?
o; sDkgLn] g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s lnld6]8 sf]if k|a4{s tyf PgcfO{laPn P; Soflk6n lnld6]8 of]hgf Aoa:yfks /x]sf] 
PgcfO{laPn Do'r'cn km08 cGtu{t ;~rflnt æPgcfO{laPn ;xeflutf km08Æ gfds g]kfnsf] klxnf] v'nfd'vL ;fd"lxs nufgL sf]if  
O{sfO{ lgisfzg ug{ g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{af6 cg'dlt k|fKt u/L lgisfzg tyf afF8kmfF6 ul/;s]sf] / @)&^ ;fn cflZjg @^ ut]  
b]lv vl/b laqmLsf] z'?jft ug{ cfjZos tof/L u/L /x]sf] 5 . o;sf nflu xfn ljt/0f s]Gb|x? lgo'Qm ug]{ sfo{ ;d]t eO{/x]sf]  
Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b5f}+ .

o; afx]s sDkgLn] cfufdL lbgx?df ;zQm ?kdf g]kfnL k"FhL ahf/sf laleGg If]qx?df sfo{ u/L ;j{;'ne ;]jf pknAw u/fpg] 
k|lta4tf u/] adf]lhd lgodg lgsfoaf6 k|fKt cfjZos l:js[tL cg';f/ lgDg sfo{x? ug]{ of]hgf /fv]sf] 5 .

s_ dr]{06 a}+lsË ;DalGw sfo{x? M

cfufdL lbgx?df o; sDkgLn] ub}{ cfPsf] dr]{06 a}ls° ;DalGwt sfo{x?sf] u'0ffTds j[l4 ug{sf nflu cfjZos /0fgLtL tof/ 
ug{ ljif]z Wofg s]lGb|t ug]{5 .
 cfufdL cf=j= df o; sDkgLn] % j6f sDkgLx?sf] ;fj{hlgs tyf ̂  j6f sDkgLx?sf] xsk|b z]o/ lgisfzg ug]{ sfo{ cuf8L  
 a9fpg] nIo /fv]sf] 5 .
 cfufdL cf=j=df o; sDkgLn] z]o/ /lhi6«]zg ;DaGwL ;]jf lbg cGo sDkgLx? ;d]t yk ub}{ n}hfg] p2]Zon] cuf8L a9]sf] 5 . 

v_ lgIf]k ;b:otfM
o; cGt{utsf] sfo{ tyf k|s[ofx?nfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg] tyf ;]jfu|fxLx?sf] lxtu|fxL vftf vf]Ng] tyf jflif{s z'Ns p7fpg] sfo{ 
nfO{ ;d]t hf]8 lbO{g]5 . o; cGtu{t xfd|f u|fxsx?n] z]o/ lsga]r ubf{ vftfdf z]o/ 36j9 ePsf] s'/f lghn] btf{ u/]sf] 
df]jfO{ndf P;PdP; dfkm{t hfgsf/L u/fpg] ;]jf lgMz'Ns pknJw u/fp+b} cfPsf]df lgs6 eljiodf vftfdf jf]g;÷xsk|b z]o/ 
tyf cGo s'g}klg k|lqmofjf6 vftfdf z]o/ yk36 x'+bf P;PdP; cn6{ hfg] ;'ljwf pknJw u/fO{g] ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fp+b5f}+ . 
o:t} jflif{s z'Ns p7fpg] ;DaGwdf l8hL6n e'QmfgL k|bfos ;+:yfx? h:t} M vNtL, sg]S6 cfOlkP; cfbL ;Fu ;Demf}t ug]{ 
of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . ;fy} jLdf of]hgf nufotsf cGo ;"ljwf ;d]t yk ug{ kxn ul/g]5 .
 

u_ zfvf lj:tf/M
o; sDkgLn] k"FhL ahf/sf] kx'Fr a9fpg sf] nflu xfn;Dd pkTosf leq nfnb/jf/ / nugv]n tyf pkTosf aflx/ kf]v/f, 
a'6jn, aL/u~h / la/f6gu/df u/L ^ :yfgdf zfvf lj:tf/ u/L ;]jf k'/\ofp+b} cfPsf] 5 . cfufdL lbgx?df cfjZostf cg';f/ 
yk zfvfx? la:tf/ ub}{ nlug] of]hgf agfPsf] 5 .

3_ ;fdlxs nuflg s]fifM
o; sDkgLn] g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] cg'dltdf ;fd'lxs nufgL sf]if lgodfjnL @)^& cGtu{t g]kfnsf] Oltxf;d} klxnf] v'Nnfd'vL 
;fd'lxs nufgL sf]if of]hgf vl/b laqmLsf] tof/L clGtd r/0fdf k'u]sf] 5 .

ª_ gofF sfo{ of]hgfM
o; sDkgLn] g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{sf] l:js[tL kZrft lgDg yk Aoj;fox? ;+rfng ug]{ tof/L u/]sf] 5 M

 Joj;flos of]hgf
 nf]g l;l08s]zg (Loan Syndication)

 jls{Ë Soflk6n kmfO{gflG;∙ (Working Capital Financing)

 k|fOe]6 OlSj6L
 x]h km08
 ;+:yfut k/fdz{
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$= sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Jofj;flos ;DaGw M sDkgLn] cfkm\gf ;a} ;/f]sf/jfnfx?;Fu ;f}xfb|k"0f{ / Joj;flos ;DaGw lj:tf/  
u/]sf] 5 . o; ;DaGwnfO{ Joj;flos tyf kf/blz{tfsf cfwf/df ljsl;t ub}{ n}hfg' kmnbfoL x'g] / sDkgLsf] k|ultsf nflu pko'Qm 
dfWod x'g] o; sDkgLsf] ljZjf; /x]sf] 5 .

%= ;+rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f M o; ;ldIff aif{df ;+rfns ;ldltdf lgDgfg';f/ x]/km]/ ePsf] 5 .

l;=g+ gfd /flhgfdf :jLs[t÷lgo'lQm ldlt sf/0f s}lkmot

!= >L ljgf]b s'df/ u'/fufO{ @)&%÷!@÷)# JolQmut /flhgfdf

@= >L /fd s[i0f vltj8f @)&^÷)!÷@^ JolQmut /flhgfdf

^= sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? M
 g]kfnsf] /fhg}lts cj:yf / To;df cfpg] ljrngaf6 k|ToIf k|efj kfg]{,
 cgnfO{g k|0ffnL tyf z]o/ vl/b laqmLsf] /sd l;w} a}+s vftfaf6 e'QfgL x'g] Joj:yfn] nufgL ug{ ;xh aftfj/0f tof/ x'g],
 clwsf+z afl0fHo a}+sx?n] ;xfos sDkgLsf] ?kdf of] Joj;fonfO{ ;'?jft,
 a}+sx?nfO{ ;xfos sDkgL dfkm{t :6s a|f]s/sf] sfo{ ug{ ul/Psf] k|f]T;fxgaf6 klg ;sf/fTds c;/ kg]{,
 lgodg lgsfox?\af6] ;do ;dodf hf/L x'g] gofF gofF lgb]{zgx? h;nfO{ k|of]udf Nofpg ;do nfUg],
 o; If]qdf ePsf] c:j:y k|ltikwf{,

&= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M lgoldt sf/f]af/df b]lvPsf ;fdfGo 
s}lkmot tyf NFRS kfngf gePsf] s}lkmot afx]s n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf c? s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] 5}g . k|fKt k|lts[of / 
;'emfjx?sf ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] Wofgfsif{0f ePsf] 5 / ;'wf/sf nflu cfjZos sbd klg rfln;lsPsf] 5 . ;fy}, cl3Nnf] 
cf=j= sf s}lkmotsf] pNn]vlgo ;'wf/ ePsf] 5 .

*= nfe+fz afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M cfly{s jif{ )&%÷)&^ sf] nflu ;+rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)&^÷)%÷!@ ut] a;]sf] 
&# cf}+ a}7sn] @) k|ltzt gub nfef+z -?= @&,)),)),)))÷— r'Qmf k"FhLsf] @) k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?= %,$),)),)))÷—_ s/ 
;lxt ljt/0fsf] k|:tfj l;kmfl/; u/]sf] 5 .

(= z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof M ;dLIff jif{df s'g} klg z]o/ hkmt ul/Psf] 5}g .

!)= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGTodf /x]sf] l:yltsf]  
k'g/fjnf]sg M o; sDkgLsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL 5}g .

!!= ;dLIff cjlwdf sDkgL / o;sf ;xfos sDkgL;Fusf] sf/f]af/ / To;df ePsf] dxTjk"0f{ x]/k]m/ M o; sDkgLsf] s'g} ;xfos 
sDkgL 5}g .

!@= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf cfwf/e't z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M s]xL gePsf] .

!#= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;+rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df lghx? 
;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L M s]xL gePsf] . 

!$= sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;+rfns tyf lghsf cfkmGtsf] JolQmut :jfy{;DaGwL hfgsf/L M o; k|sf/sf] s'g}  
;Demf}tf gePsfn] To; ;DaGwdf s'g} v'nf;f ug'{kg]{ gb]lvPsf] .

!%= k'g M vl/b ul/Psf z]o/x?sf] ljj/0f M ;dLIff jif{df z]o/x?sf] k'gM vl/b sfo{ gePsf] .

!^= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f Joj:yf eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M sDkgLn] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f Joj:yf sfod ug{sf nflu dfgj 
;+zfwg ljsf; ;ldlt / nufgL P+j hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . oL ;ldltx?sf] a}+7s lgoldt ?kdf a:g] ub{5 
/ ;do–;dodf oL ;ldltx?n] Joj:yfkg tyf ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;Nnfx / ;'emfj lbg] ub{5g\ . k|efjsf/L cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 
sfod ug{sf nflu o; sDkgLn] ljleGg gLlt, lgb]{zg tyf k|lqmofx? th{'df u/L cjnDjg u/]sf] 5 .
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!&= ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M

vr{ lzif{s vr{ /sd -?=_

sd{rf/L vr{ ?= $),$$*,@#%÷–

;+rfng vr{ ?= $^,)!&,)@%÷–

hDdf Aoj:yfkg vr{ ?= *^,$^%,@^)÷–

!*= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf sfdsf/afxLsf] 

ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M sDkgL xfn n]vfkl/If0f ;ldlt g/x]sf] tyf afÅo kmd{4f/f cfGtl/s  
n]vfkl/If0f ul/ /flvPsf] 5 . sDkgLsf] ljlQo l:ylt, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f / hf]lvd Joj:yfkg, sfg"gL / lgod cg'kfngf cfbLsf] 
cj:yf xfn;Dd sDkgLsf] cfsf/ ;fgf] ePsf]n] ;+rfns ;ldltn] g} x]g]{ u/]sf] 5 .

!(= ;+rfns, k|aGw ;+rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf kmd{, 
sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f M s]xL gePsf] .

@)= ;+rfns, k|aGw ;+rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

s= ;+rfns ;ldlt a}+7ssf] ljj/0f M

l;=g+ kb gfd a}7ssf] ;+Vof Kffl/>lds eQf s}lkmot

!= cWoIf >L ;lrg l6j8]jfn !@ ?= !,@),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

@= ;+rfns >L ljgf]b s'df/ u'/fufFO{ ^ ?= ^),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

#= ;+rfns >L lbks s'df/ >]i7 !! ?= (),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

$= ;+rfns >LdtL aGbgf yfkf !) ?= *),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

%= ;+rfns >L ljgf]b s'df/ u'/fufFO{ ^ ?= %),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

#= ;+rfns >L lbks s'df/ >]i7 !@ ?= !,)),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

$= ;+rfns >LdtL aGbgf yfkf !) ?= %,)),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

%= ;+rfns >L /fd s[i0f vltj8f ^ ?= %),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

^= ;+rfns >L /ljGb| e§/fO{ !@ ?= !,)),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

hDdf ?= %,)),)))÷–

l;=g+ kb gfd a}7ssf] ;+Vof Kffl/>lds eQf s}lkmot

!= ;+rfns >L ;lrg l6j8]jfn $ ?= #@,)))÷– a}+7s eQf

@= ;+rfns >LdtL aGbgf yfkf $ ?= #@,)))÷– a}+7s eQf

hDdf ?= ^$,)))÷–

l;=g+ kb gfd a}7ssf] ;+Vof Kffl/>lds eQf s}lkmot

!= ;+rfns >L ;lrg l6j8]jfn !@ ?= *),)))÷– a}+7s eQf

@= ;+rfns >L /ljGb| e§/fO{ !# ?= **,)))÷– a}+7s eQf

hDdf ?= !,^*,)))÷–

l;=g+ kb gfd Kffl/>lds eQf s}lkmot

!= k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L lzjfGt axfb'/ kFf8] ?= !$,$),)))÷– Kffl/>lds eQf

v= dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldlt a}+7ssf] ljj/0f M

u= nufgL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt a}+7ssf] ljj/0f M

3= sfo{sf/L k|d'vsf] ljj/0f M
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@!= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+z /sd M g/x]sf] .

@@= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! adf]lhd vl/b jf laqmL ul/Psf] ;DklQsf] ljj/0f M ;ldIff jif{df o; k|sf/sf] s'g} vl/b 
laqmL gePsf] .
@#= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgLlar ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f tn pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 M

 @)&^ cfiff9 d;fGt cg';f/ PgcfO{laPn P; Soflk6n lnld6]8n] d'Vo sDkgL g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s ln= df s'n lgIf]k 
 ?= &&,)%(,@%#÷– /fv]sf] 5 . rf}yf] q}dfl;ssf] cGTo ;Dddf o; sDkgLn] d'Vo sDkgLaf6 Jofh cfDbfgL :j?k  
 ?= #,%$@,!$@÷– cfh{g u/]sf] 5 .
 d'Vo sDkgL g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s ln= sf] tkm{af6 >L ;lrg l6j8]jfn, >L lbks s'df/ >]i7 / >LdtL aGbgf yfkf o;  
 sDkgLsf] ;+rfnssf ?kdfÙ >L lzjfGt axfb'/ kFf8] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] ?kdfÙ >L /]vf kGt k|d'v–z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf]  
 ?kdf, >L /fd s'df/ dxt k|d'v–sDKnofG; tyf ;]qm]6]l/o6sf] ?kdf, / cGo ! hgf sd{rf/L ;xfossf] ?kdf lgo'Qm  
 x'g'ePsf] 5 .
 d'Vo sDkgL g]kfn OGe]i6d]06 a}+s lnld6]8n] nflhDkf6 l:yt sfof{nodf o; sDkgLnfO{ b}lgs sfo{ ;+rfng ug{sf] nflu  
 :yfg pknAw u/fPsf] 5 / ;f] :yfg tyf cGo k|fljlws ;xof]usf nflu o; sDkgLn] jflif{s ?= ^,)),)))÷– -5 nfv dfq_  
 d'Vo sDkgLnfO{ e'Qmfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . sfo{ :yfg;Fu ;DalGwt ;Dk"0f{ vr{x? o; sDkgL :j+odn] Joxf]b}{ cfPsf] 5 .
 o; sDkgL / d'Vo sDkgLsf ;Dk"0f{ sf/f]af/x?sf] k|rlnt P]g tyf lgodx? cg';f/ ljlQo kf/bzL{tf sfod /flvPsf] 5 . 

@$= sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f M

-s_ sfof{no, lwtf]kq af]8{ jf lgodgsf/L lgsfodf sfo{/t To:tf] sd{rf/L jf kbflwsf/Lsf] gfd, y/, 7]ufgf / kb ;DaGwL  
 s'/f M o; sDkgLsf] ;~rfns jf kbflwsf/Lsf] glhssf] gft]bf/ sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{ jf To:tf]  
 sDkgLnfO{ lgodg ug]{ cGo s'g} lgodgsf/L lgsfodf clws[t jf ;f] eGbf dflyNnf] txdf sfo{/t g/xsf] .

-v_ sDkgLsf] s'g ;~rfns jf kbflwsf/Lsf] glhssf] gft]bf/ xf] / lghx? lar s] s:tf] gftf ;DaGw /x]sf] xf], ;f]  
 s'/fM gePsf] .
-u_ sfof{no, lwtf]kq af]8{ jf cGo s'g} lgodgsf/L lgsfodf pQm glhssf] gft]bf/ sfo{/t /x]sf] sf] ;f] s'/f M gePsf] .

@%= cGo cfjZos s'/fx? M cGo cfjZos s'/fx? gePsf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fO{G5 .

wGojfb 1fkg M

oyf ;dod} n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{ ;DkGg u/L o; sDkgLnfO{ oyf]lrt Jofa;flos ;"emfjx? k|bfg ug]{ cfGtl/s tyf afx\o n]vfk/
LIfsnfO{ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s s[t1tf 1fkg ub{5' .

;+:yfkg ;do b]lvg} k|]/0fbfoL / lg/Gt/ ;xof]u k"/\ofpg] xfd|f] d"Vo sDkgLsf] ;+rfns ;ldlt, Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ 
ljz]if wGojfb lbg rfxG5'   .
To;} u/L o; sDkgLsf] p2]Zo k|flKtsf nflu ;xof]u k'/\ofpg' x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, u|fxsau{ tyf g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ;DalGwt 
lgsfo nufot g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn /fi6« a}s, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h lnld6]8 tyf l;l8o; P08 
lSnol/ª lnld68 k|lt ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . sDkgLsf] pQ/f]Q/ pGgtL / k|utLdf cfkm\gf] cd"No 
>d / ;do vr{ u/L nugzLntfsf ;fy of]ubfg k'/\ofpg] sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lx?sf ;fy} sDkgLsf] ultljlwsf] 
af/]df ;sf/fTds ?kdf hg;dIf k'/\ofO{lbg] ;+rf/ hut / k|ToIf÷ck|ToIf ?kdf ;xof]u k'/\ofpg] ;Dk'0f{ z'e]R5'sx? k|lt klg d 
xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub{5' / o; ;fwf/0f ;ef ;kmn agfO{lbg' ePsf]df klg oxf+ pkl:yt ;Dk'0f{ dxfg'efjx?nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb 
JoQm ub{5' .

>L lbks s'df/ >]i7                  >L ;lrg l6j8]jfn
      ;+rfns                        cWoIf



Seventh Annual Report 2018/19

25

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf &* adf]lhdsf] 
PgcfO{laPn P; Soflk6n lnld6]8sf] cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ sf] 
;~rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t eO{ n]vfk/LIfsaf6 k|dfl0ft k|ltj]bg

sDkgL btf{ g++= !@*$÷)^&÷)^*

!= afF8kmfF8 ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof M afF8kmfF8 ePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof M @&,)),))) ÷–

@= afF8kmfF8 ePsf] z]o/ dWo] r'Qmf ePsf] / gePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof M r'Qmf ePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof M @&,)),))) ÷–

#= sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, n]vfk/LIfs, sfo{sf/L k|d['v, k|aGwssf] ljj/0f / lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 
kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

o; sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M–

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns

!= ;lrg l6j8]jfn

@= lbks s'df/ >]i7

#= aGbgf yfkf

$= /laGb| e§/fO{

gf]6M >L ljgf]b s'df/ u'/fufFO{ / >L /fd s[i0f vltj8fn] cfkmgf] kbjf6 /flhgfdf lbg'ePsf] sf/0f xfn ;~rfns ;ldltdf $ hgf 
dfq /xg'ePsf] .

-!_ ;~rfnsx?nfO{ tn pNn]v u/] adf]lhd eQf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 
 s_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M

v_ dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M
 a}7s eQf M ?= *,)))÷– k|lt a}7s

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns a}7s ;+= a}7s eQf

!= ;lrg l6j8]jfn !@ !@),)))÷–

@= ljgf]b s'df/ u'/fufFO{ ^ ^),)))÷–

#= lbks s'df/ >]i7 !! (),)))÷–

$= aGbgf yfkf !) *),)))÷–

%= /fd s[i0f vltj8f ^ %),)))÷–

^= /laGb| e§/fO{ !@ !)),)))÷–

hDdf %)),)))÷–

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns a}7s ;+= a}7s eQf

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns a}7s ;+= a}7s eQf

!= ;lrg l6j8]jfn $ #@,)))÷–

@= aGbgf yfkf $ #@,)))÷–

hDdf ^$,)))÷–
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u_ nufgL tyf hf]lvd ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M
 a}7s eQf M ?= *,)))÷– k|lt a}7s

-@_ sfo{sf/L k|d'v / Joj:yfksLo÷k|aGws :t/sf sd{rf/L kbflwsf/Lx?sf] aflif{s tna, eQf / cGo ;'lawfx? lgDgadf]lhd  
/x]sf] 5 M

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns a}7s ;+= a}7s eQf

qm+= ;+= ;~rfns a}7s ;+= a}7s eQf

!= ;lrg l6j8]jfn  !! *),)))÷–

@= /laGb| e§/fO{ !# **,)))÷–

hDdf !^*,)))÷–

qm+= ;+= ljj/0f k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t cGo sfo{sf/L÷Joj:yfksx?

!= tna $,&^*,@))÷–

@= eQf !,$$),)))÷– #,!&*,*))÷–

#= bz} eQf ^^@,@%)÷–

$= ;+rosf]if $&^,*@)÷–

 hDdf !,$$),)))÷– (,)*^,)&)÷–

tna eQf afx]s sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf cGo sfo{sf/L÷Joj:yfksx?nfO{ lgDg adf]lhd ;'lawfx? k|bfg ug]{ Aoj:yf 5 M
 sfo{sf/L tyf Joj:yfksx? nfO{ dfgj z+;fwg lgtLdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd ;jf/L shf{÷;'lawf .
 af]g; Joj:yf af]g; P]g cg';f/ .
 b'3{6gf aLdf, cf}iflw pkrf/ aLdf, hLjg aLdf sDkgLsf] dfgj z+;fwg lgtLdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd .

-#_ sDkgLsf] n]vf k/LIfs >L ;'Gb/ P08 sDkgL, rf6{8 Psfp06]06;\ nfO{ cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷&^ sf] n]vf k/LIf0f u/] afkt  
n]vfk/LIfs z'Ns s/ ;lxt ?= @,%$,@%)÷– tf]lsPsf] 5 .

$= sDkgLsf] r'Qmf k"FhLsf] kfFr k|ltzt jf ;f] eGbf a9L z]o/ vl/b u/L lng] JolQm jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] gfd / lghx?sf] 
gfddf /x]sf] z]o/ jf l8a]~r/sf] ljj/0f M

%= z]o/ laqmLaf6 k|fKt ePsf] hDdf /sd / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df sDkgLn] vl/b u/]sf] tyf hf/L u/]sf] gofF z]o/ tyf 
l8a]~r/sf] ljj/0f M

 z]o/
 sDkgLaf6 ;dLIff cjwLdf s'g} z]o/ hf/L ul/Psf]] gePsf] .

 l8a]~r/
 sDkgLaf6 ;dLIff cjwLdf s'g} l8a]~r/ hf/L gePsf] .

^= ;~rfns jf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/n] sDkgLnfO{ a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] /sd M
 ;~rfns jf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/n] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 5}g .

&= z]o/ laqmL jf cGo s'g} sfd s'/f u/] afkt lbPsf] jf lbg' kg]{ /sd M
 z]o/ laqmL jf cGo s'g} sfd s'/f u/] afkt lbPsf] jf lbg' kg]{ /sd 5}g .
 

*= a}° tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 lnPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] ;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sd M
 a}° tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 lnPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] ;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sd 5}g .

g]kfn O{Ge]i6d]06 a}s lnld6]8 
z]o/ :jfldTj ;+Vof

!)) k|ltzt @&,)),)))
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(= sDkgLn] e'QmfgL lng' kg]{ jf sDkgLn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug'{ kg]{ egL bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f
 dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f M
 ;f] ;DalGw s'g} klg d'2f dfldnf 5}g .

!)= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] ;+Vof M
 sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] ;+Vof lgDg adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M

-s_ k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t !

-v_ gf=k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t tyf sDkgL ;lrj !

-u_ dxfk|aGws !

-3_ ;xfos dxfk|aGws !

-ª_ cGo sd{rf/Lx? -Pay roll_ $^

-r_ s/f/ (Contract) @#

-5_ b}lgs Hofnfbf/L (Daily Wages) %

hDdf sd{rf/Lx? &*

!!= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] ;+Vof tyf lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, 
eQf tyf ;'ljwf M

 5}g .

!@= sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx? aLr nufgL Joj:yfkg jf k|fljlws ;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps jif{eGbf a9L cjlwsf] 
nflu s'g} ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] ;Demf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] nfef+z, 
sld;g, z'Ns, b:t'/ / /f]oN6L cflbsf] ljj/0f M

 ;f] ;DaGwL s'g} klg ;Demf}tf ePsf] 5}g .
 

!#= sDkgLsf] cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ sf] Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M
 sDkgLsf] cfly{s jif{ @)&%÷)&^ sf] Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f sDkgLsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgsf] cg';'rL $, %, !!, / !@ df lj:t[t 

?kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

 
/sd ?= *^,$^%,@^)÷–

!$= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M
 5}g .

!%= sDkgLn] sDkgL P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] s'/fsf] pb\3f]if0f M
 o; sDkgLn] sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] s'/fsf] pb3f]if0f ub{5f}+≤

-s_ sDkgLsf] k|aGwkq jf lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ul/Psf] eP ;+zf]wg u/]sf] ldlt, ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq jf lgodfjnL sfof{nodf 
clen]v u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] nufot P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf ul/Psf] jf gul/Psf] s'/f,

 ;ldIff cjwLdf sDkgLsf] k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnLdf s'g} ;+zf]wg gePsf] .

-v_ gofF z]o/ hf/L ul/Psf] eP P]gsf] Dofbleq z]o/ afF8kmfF8sf] ljj/0f Dofbleq k]z u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f / Dofb gf3L 
k]z ePsf] eP hl/jfgf lt/]sf] /sd,

 – gof+ z]o/ hf/L gePsf] .

-u_ sDkgLn] l8j]~r/ p7fpFbf P]gdf ul/Psf] Joj:yf u/] gu/]sf] s'/f,
 – l8a]~r/ p7fpFbf P]gdf ul/Psf] Joj:yf kfngf ug]{ ul/Psf] .

-3_ z]o/wgL jf l8j]~r/jfnfsf] btf{ lstfasf] lg/LIf0f aGb u/]sf] ldlt, k6s ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f,
 – P]gsf] Joj:yf kfngf u/]sf] .
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-ª_ sDkgL]n] z]o/ hkmt u/]sf] eP P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f,
 – xfn;Dd s'g} z]o/ hkmt gu/]sf] .

-r_ sDkgLsf] v'b ;DklQ 36\g uO{ r'Qmf k"FhLsf] cfwf jf ;f] eGbf sd ePsf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltn] P]g adf]
lhdsf] lhDd]jf/L k"/f u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f,

 – sDkgLsf] v'b ;DklQ 36\g guPsf] / r'Qmf k"FhLsf] cfwf jf ;f] eGbf sd gu/]sf] .

-5_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] v/Lb u/]sf] eP v/Lb u/]sf] ldlt / ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf Joj:yfx? kfngf u/]sf] jf  
gu/]sf] s'/f,

 – xfn;Dd cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] v/Lb gu/]sf] .

-h_ sDkgLn] P]g adf]lhd jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef u/] gu/]sf] s'/f, jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf, u0fk"/s ;+Vof, :yfg 
nufotsf ljifox?df P]gsf] Joj:yfx? kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f, jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o ljj/0f /Ltk"j{s 
clen]v u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f,

 – sDkgLn] P]g adf]lhd jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef u/]sf] / ;efsf] lg0f{o ljj/0f /Ltk"j{s clen]v u/]sf] .

-em_ sDkgLn] ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef u/]sf] eP ;f] u/]sf] ldlt / ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf] Joj:yfx? kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f,
 – ;ldIff cjwLdf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efdf gu/]sf] .

-`_ sDkgLn] b]xfo adf]lhdsf ljj/0f jf ;"rgf Dofbleq sfof{nodf k]z u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/fM

 -!_ sDkgLsf] k|aGwkq / lgodfjnLdf ePsf] ;+zf]wg .
   – Dofbleq k]z ug]{ u/]sf] .

 -@_ z]o/ afF8kmfF8sf] ljj/0f .
   – Dofbleq k]z ug]{ u/]sf] .

 -#_ lwtf]kq Joj;foL / sDkgL aLr ePsf] ;Demf}tf .
   – ;ldIff cjwLdf To:tf] ;Demf}tf gePsf] .

 -$_ z]o/df /x]sf] xs ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
   – nfu" gx'g] .

 -%_ z]o/, l8j]~r/ / C0fsf] nut .
   – Dofbleq k]z ug]{ u/]sf] .

 -^_ cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] v/Lb u/]sf]df ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
   – nfu" gx'g] .

 -&_ cu|flwsf/ z]o/ lkmtf{ lnPsf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L .
   – nfu" gx'g] .

 -*_ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ug'{eGbf sDtLdf PSsfO; lbg cl3 k]z ug'{kg]{ k|ltj]bg .
   – Dofbleq k]z u/]sf] .

 -(_ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ljj/0f / jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0fx? .
   – Dofbleq k]z u/]sf] .
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-!)_ n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQmsf] hfgsf/L .
 – Dofbleq hfgsf/L u/fPsf] .

-!!_ sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no /x]sf] 7]ufgf kl/jt{g ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] hfgsf/L .
 – ;ldIff cjwLdf 7]ufgf kl/jt{g gul/Psf] .

-!@_ sDkgLsf ;~rfnsx?sf] lghL :jfy{ /x]sf] ljifodf u/fPsf] hfgsf/L .
 – lghL :jfy{sf] ljifo g/x]sf] .

-6_ sDkgLsf kbflwsf/Lx?n] sDkgLdf a'emfpg'kg]{ b]xfosf lnvtx? a'emfPsf] jf a'emfPsf] s'/fM
 -!_ cfkm\gf] lgh :jfy{ /x]sf] ljifodf ;~rfnsn] u/fpg'kg]{ hfgsf/L .
 -@_ sDkgLsf] ;~rfns jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/n] sDkgLsf] z]o/df xs k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L .
 -#_ cfkm" cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL x'g k'u]sf] jf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL g/x]sf]df To:tf] z]o/wgLn] sDkgLnfO{ u/fpg'kg]{ hfgsf/L .
 -$_ cGo s;}sf] xs jf nufgL .
    – sDkgLsf kbflwsf/Lx?n] sDkgLdf a'emfpg'kg]{ pk/f]Qm hfgsf/L tyf lnvtx? a'emfPsf] .

-7_ sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns jf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] lgo'lQm, lghx?sf] sfo{sfn, kfl/>lds, eQf / ;'ljwf 
P]g adf]lhd /Ltk"j{s ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .

 – P]g adf]lhd /Ltk"j{s ePsf] .

-8_ P]g adf]lhd sDkgLdf :jtGq ;~rfnssf] lgo'lQm ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .
 – P]g adf]lhd ePsf] .

-9_ sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] j}7s slxn] a:of], ;~rfns ;ldltsf] j}7ssf] Go"gtd ;+Vof, ;f] ;DaGwL ;"rgf / lg0f{o 
ljj/0f nufotsf ljifox?df P]gsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .

 – P]gsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] .

-0f_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;~rfns jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/;Fu s'g} cy{k"0f{ sf/f]af/ u/]sf] eP To:tf] sf/f]af/ ug{ ;fwf/0f 
;efsf] :jLs[lt lnPsf] jf glnPsf] s'/f .

 – To:tf] sf/f]af/ gePsf] .

-t_ s'g} ;~rfnsn] sDkgL dfkm{t\ cfkm'nfO{ JolQmut kmfObf x'g] sfd u/]sf] eP ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o adf]lhd To:tf] kmfObf 
lnPsf] xf] jf xf]Og ;f] s'/f .

 – ;~rfnsx?n] ;ldIff cjwLdf sDkgL dfkm{t cfkm'nfO{ JolQmut kmfObf x'g] sfd gu/]sf] .

-y_ sDkgLn] ;~rfng u/L cfPsf] Joj;fosf] ;Q/L k|ltzt eGbf a9L Joj;fo ljqmL ubf{ jf s'g} Joxf]/fn] xs 5f]l8 lbFbf, 
r'Qmf k"FhL / ;l~rt d'gfkmfsf] hDdf /sd eGbf a9L x'g] u/L C0f lnFbf jf Ps cfly{s jif{df krf; xhf/ ?k}ofF jf 
sDkgLsf] ljut tLg cfly{s jif{sf] ;/b/ v'b d'gfkmfsf] Ps k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sddWo] h'g sd x'G5 ;f] /sd eGbf 
a9Lsf] rGbf jf cg'bfg lbPsf] eP ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljz]if k|:tfj kfl/t u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f ;f] ;DaGwL Joxf]/f .

 – o:tf] cj:yf ljBdfg x'+bf ljz]if k|:tfj k]z ul/ kfl/t ug]{ u/]sf] .

-b_ P]g adf]lhd sDkgLn] /fVg'kg]{ b]xfo adf]lhdsf btf{ lstfax? v8f u/L sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf /fv]sf] jf g/fv]sf] 
s'/f v'\nfpg]M

 -!_ z]o/wgLsf] btf{ lstfa M sDkgLdf /x]sf] .
 -@_ l8j]~r/jfnfsf] btf{ lstfa M xfn;Dd l8j]~r/ hf/L gePsf] .
 -#_ ;~rfns tyf sDkgL ;lrjsf] btf{ lstfa M sDkgLdf /x]sf] .
 -$_ sDkgLn]] csf]{ sDkgLnfO{ lbPsf] ;fk6L, csf]{ sDkgLn] lnPsf] C0f afkt lbPsf] hdfgt jf sDkgLsf] lwtf]kqdf u/]sf] nufgLsf] 

ljj/0f M nfu' gx'g] .
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-w_ P]g adf]lhd sDkgLn] jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0fx? n]vfk/LIf0f u/fPsf] jf gu/fPsf] s'/f . 
 – sDkgLn] jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0fx? P]g adf]lhd n]vfk/LIf0f u/fPsf] .

-g_ sDkgLn] P]g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg tof/ u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .
 – ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg P]g adf]lhd u/]sf] .

-k_ P]g ljk/Lt sDkgLn] cfkm\gf ;~rfns, kbflwsf/L, cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghx?sf] gft]bf/x?nfO{ C0f k|bfg u/]sf] 
jf gu/]sf] s'/f .

 – nfu' gx'g] .

-km_ sDkgLn] l8isfpG6df z]o/ hf/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]gsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .
 – l8isfpG6df z]o/ hf/L gu/]sf] .

-a_ sDkgLn] af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]g adf]lhdsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .
 – ;ldIff cjwLdf sDkgLn] af]g; z]o/ hf/L gu/]sf] .

-e_ sDkgLn] lk|ldod d"Nodf z]o/ hf/L u/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf P]g adf]lhdsf Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .
 – lk|ldod d"Nodf z]o/ hf/L gu/]sf] .

-d_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ v/Lb ug{ cfkm\gf z]o/wgL jf cGo JolQmnfO{ s'g} C0f jf cfly{s ;xof]u k|bfg u/]sf] jf gu/]
sf] s'/f . 

 – To:tf] ;xof]u k|bfg gu/]sf] .

-o_ sDkgLsf] :jfy{;Fu aflemg ;Sg] cfkm\gf lghL :jfy{x? eP ;f] ;DaGwdf sDkgLnfO{ tf]lsPsf] Dofbleq hfgsf/L u/fPsf] 
jf gu/fPsf] s'/f .

 – lghL :jfy{ gb]lvPsf] .

-/_ ;~rfnsn] cfkm\gf] sDkgL jf ;f] sDkgLsf] ;xfos jf k|d'v sDkgLsf] cGo ;xfos sDkgLsf] z]o/ jf l8j]~r/df xs 
k|fKt u/]sf] eP Dofbleq sDkgLnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fPsf] jf gu/fPsf] s'/f .

 – sDkgLsf ;~rfnsx?n] ;ldIff cjwLdf To:tf] xs k|fKt u/]sf] s'/f hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf] .

-n_ sDkgLn] nfef+z jf cGtl/d nfef+z afF8\bf P]gsf] kfngf u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .
 – P]gsf] kfngf u/]sf] .

-j_ sDkgLsf ;fwf/0f ;efdf z]o/wgLnfO{ nfef+z afx]s sDkgLsf] sf]ifdf Jooef/ kg]{ u/L gub jf lhG;Lsf] ?kdf s'g}  
/sd e'QmfgL u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] s'/f .

 – gu/]sf] .

-z_ sfof{noaf6 sDkgLnfO{ s'g} lgb]{zg lbPsf] eP ;f] lgb]{zgsf] kfngf ePsf] jf gePsf] s'/f .
 – ;ldIff cjwLdf sfof{noaf6 s'g} lgb]{zg hf/L gePsf] .

-if_ ;"rLs[t sDkgL eP jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgfsf] ;fydf ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f z]o/wgLnfO{ k7fPsf] jf gk7fPsf] 
s'/f .

 – nfu' gx'g] .

-;_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ug'{kg]{ ;"rLs[t sDkgL eP P]g adf]lhd To:tf] ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] jf gul/Psf] s'/f . 
 – nfu' gx'g] .
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-x_ P]gsf] pNnª\3g u/]sf] cleof]udf sDkgL lj?4 s'g} sf/afxL rln/x]sf] jf To:tf] s;"/ 7x/ eO{ sDkgLn] s'g} b08 
;hfoF Joxf]g'{ k/]sf] eP ;f] sf] Joxf]/f .

 – gePsf] .

-If_ P]gsf] bkmf *! cg';f/ sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Ln] sfof{nonfO{ lt/]sf] hl/jfgfsf] ljj/0f .
 – s'g} hl/jfgf gnfu]sf] .

-q_ sDkgLsf] ;'zf;g tyf kf/blz{tfsf] b[li6sf]0faf6 sDkgL ;lrjn] v'nfpg cfjZos 7fg]sf cGo cfjZos s'/fx? .
 – To:tf] v'nfpg' kg]{ s'g} Joxf]/f g/x]sf] .

-t_ cGo cfjZos s'/f 
 s]xL gePsf] .

k|:t't k|ltj]bg o; sDkgLsf] ldlt @)&^÷)%÷!( df a;]sf &$ cf}+ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7saf6 kfl/t ePsf] Joxf]/f k|dfl0ft ub{5f}+ .

===================================================                  ================================================================
d]v axfb'/ yfkf                         l;P ;'Gb/ dfg >]i7
sDkgL ;lrj                         ;'Gb/ P08 sDkgL, 

                           rf6{8 Psfp06]06;\
               ldlt M @)&^÷)%÷!( 
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Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashad 31, 2076 (Corresponding to 16 July 2019)

Particulars Notes As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Paid in capital 7  270,000,000 270,000,000
Reserve and Surplus 8 90,866,819 79,423,123
Total Stockholders’ Equity 360,866,819 349,423,123

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred Tax Liability 6.3 - -

Employment Benefits 1,154,339 3,080,668
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,154,339 3,080,668

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 10.1  829,987,180 2,200,336,810
Other Current Liabilities 10.2  16,611,346 14,814,308
Provisions 19  2,279,375 3,363,715
Total Current Liabilities 848,877,901 2,218,514,833

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 1,210,899,059 2,571,018,624

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 11  26,445,135 29,940,526
Intangible Assets 12  1,890,556 1,359,160
Investments 14  12,862,410 250,000
Staff Loan  10,167,660 8,289,791
Total Non-Current Assets 51,365,761 39,839,477

CURRENT ASSETS

Investments 14  535,068,854 328,898,876
Trade Receivables, advances and deposits 16.1   37,980,673 39,354,236
Current Tax Assets 6.2  6,456,574 16,960,922
Deferred Tax Asset 6.3  7,647,063 3,579,618
Cash and cash equivalents 16.2  572,380,134 2,142,385,496
Total Current Assets 1,159,533,298 2,531,179,148

Total Assets 1,210,899,059 2,571,018,624

'Amount in Rs'

Sachin Tibrewal Deepak Kumar Shrestha Bandana Thapa Rabindra Bhattarai

Chairman Director Director Independent Director 

 

Shivanth B. Pandé Mekh Bahadur Thapa Kabindra Dhoj Joshi Anup Shakya 

CEO DCEO GM Head - GSD

As per our report of even date,

Date: 12 Bhadra 2076 (August 29, 2019)

FCA Sundar Man Shrestha

Senior Partner 

Sundar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2076 (Corresponding to 16 July 2019)

'Amount in Rs'

Sachin Tibrewal Deepak Kumar Shrestha Bandana Thapa Rabindra Bhattarai

Chairman Director Director Independent Director 

 

Shivanth B. Pandé Mekh Bahadur Thapa Kabindra Dhoj Joshi Anup Shakya 

CEO DCEO GM Head - GSD

As per our report of even date,

Date: 12 Bhadra 2076 (August 29, 2019)

FCA Sundar Man Shrestha

Senior Partner 

Sundar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

Notes 16 July 2019 16 July 2018

Revenue:

Revenue from operation 3.1  103,936,010 100,108,665
Other income 3.2  84,203,337 63,827,548
Net changes in gain/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL 14.1  25,610 (16,353,167)
      Total revenue  188,164,957 147,583,046

Expenses:

Operating Expenses 4  16,371,966 11,290,830
General and Administrative Expenses 5  61,011,898 65,730,708
Depreciation and Amortization 11 & 12  9,081,396 8,001,371
Employee Bonus Expenses  10,169,970 6,256,014
Total expenses  96,635,230 91,278,923

Income before income taxes  91,529,727 56,304,123
Tax expense /(income) 6.1   29,347,418  11,634,138
Profit for the year   62,182,309  44,669,985
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2076 (Corresponding to 16 July 2019)

'Amount in Rs'

Sachin Tibrewal Deepak Kumar Shrestha Bandana Thapa Rabindra Bhattarai

Chairman Director Director Independent Director 

 

Shivanth B. Pandé Mekh Bahadur Thapa Kabindra Dhoj Joshi Anup Shakya 

CEO DCEO GM Head - GSD

As per our report of even date,

Date: 12 Bhadra 2076 (August 29, 2019)

FCA Sundar Man Shrestha

Senior Partner 

Sundar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

Profit for the year 62,182,309 44,669,985

Gains /(losses) on re-measuring available for sale financial assets (14,626,590) -

Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability - -

Total Other Comprehesive income/(Loss) - A (14,626,590) -

Income tax income /(expense) relating to components of other compre-

hensive income - B

4,387,977 -

Other Comprehensive income /(loss) for the year, net of income 

tax (A-B)

(10,238,613) -

Total comprehensive income for the year 51,943,696 44,669,985
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Statement of Cash Flow 
For the Year Ended Ashad 31, 2076 (Corresponding to 16 July 2019)

'Amount in Rs'

 A .Cash Flows From Operating Activities: FY 2018.19(Rs) FY 2017.18 (Rs)

Cash Inflows   181,595,301  176,936,234

Interest Income  77,675,475 43,119,458
Issue and Sales Management  17,475,030 5,910,223
Underwriting Fee  1,515,499 22,063,863
Share Registrar  6,388,622 4,274,512
Portfolio Management  3,725,373 2,850,199
Fund Management Fee  27,257,144 34,816,891
MF Depository  8,198,324 10,466,994
DP Income  21,503,654 16,813,472
Collection and Refund Commission -   6,248,754
Income from Investment-FD  - 14,148,008
Income from Investment   8,420,055   5,464,795
Other Income  9,436,125 10,759,065
Cash Outflows 105,370,365 105,184,545

SEBON Fee  4,152,051 3,703,416
CDS Fee  3,806,421 2,335,699
DP Commission Expense  600,092 1,062,074
Staff Expenses  48,635,247 51,319,604
Office and other Overhead Expenses  29,654,847 28,209,560
Income Tax Paid  18,521,708 18,554,192
Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital 76,224,936 71,751,689

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (237,221,783) (247,950,703)

(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Investments  (234,816,426) (242,249,855)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (2,405,357) (5,700,848)
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities (1,362,391,113) 734,428,499

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1,362,391,113) 734,164,013
Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors - 264,486
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (1,523,387,960) 558,229,485

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities: (6,117,402) (9,737,288)

Purchase of Fixed Assets (6,667,402) (11,271,727)
Proceeds from disposal of Fixed Assets 550,000 1,534,439
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities: (40,500,000) 46,036,976

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - 71,411,976
Dividend Paid (40,500,000) (25,375,000)
Current Year's Cash Flow from All Activities  (1,570,005,362) 594,529,173

Opening Balance of Cash and Bank Balance  2,142,385,496 1,547,856,323

Closing Balance of Cash and Bank Balance  572,380,134 2,142,385,496

Sachin Tibrewal Deepak Kumar Shrestha Bandana Thapa Rabindra Bhattarai

Chairman Director Director Independent Director 

 

Shivanth B. Pandé Mekh Bahadur Thapa Kabindra Dhoj Joshi Anup Shakya 

CEO DCEO GM Head - GSD

As per our report of even date,

Date: 12 Bhadra 2076 (August 29, 2019)

FCA Sundar Man Shrestha

Senior Partner 

Sundar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants
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1. Corporate Information 
NIBL Ace Capital Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Nepal at office of company registrar (OCR)  
under Companies Act of Nepal with its registered office at Lazimpat, Kathmandu. The Company is a subsidiary of Nepal  
Investment Bank Limited.

The company has been established with objectives of providing merchant banking services in Nepal. The company has 

obtained merchant banking license from Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON) and also has obtained license of Depository 
participant from SEBON and CDS & Clearing Limited.
 

The Company is engaged in business of issue and sales management, underwriting, portfolio management, share  

registrar, depository participants and other advisory services. The Company is also fund manager and mutual fund  

depository for NIBL mutual fund and currently manages three schemes namely NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1, NIBL Pragati Fund 
and NIBL Sahabhagita Fund.

The financial statements have been authorized for issue on 29 August 2019 by the Board of Directors.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements 
2.1. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). These 
financial statements are also prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 
2063 of Nepal.
 

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for the items that are measured 
and presented at fair value as required by relevant NFRS as explained in respective notes. These financial statements 
cover the reporting period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31 Ashad 2076.

2.2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consist-
ently to all the period presented in the financial statements.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupee, which is functional currency of the company. All amounts 
have been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise indicated. 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operated. Company's all 

transactions including income, investment and expenses are denominated in Nepalese Rupee, which the management 

determines to be the functional currency of the Company.

2.4. Accounting policies, judgments and estimates 

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the manage-

ment to make use of significant accounting policies, judgments and estimates that affect the reported amount of asset and 
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures of contingent items during the reporting period. These accounting policies 

adopted are used on consistent basis. Estimates are reviewed on continuous basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

 

The significant accounting policies adopted, judgments and estimates while preparing these financial statements in 

accordance with NFRS are set out in corresponding notes.

 

3. Revenue 

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The 

management of the Company determines the amount of revenue based on the applicable service agreement. Fees and 

commission arising from transactions are recognized on basis of completion of underlying transaction. Accounting policies, 

estimates and judgments used by management for each item of revenue is detailed below:
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Item of revenue Accounting policy, significant estimates and judgments used for revenue recognition 

Issue management 

fee

Issue management fee is recognized based on completion of work for the issue of securities and 

amount of certainty that is recoverable and is estimated to flow into the Company.
Management determines that the volume of work is completed to the extent of fifty percent of 
total work at time of signing of agreement for issue management, hence accordingly recognizes 

fifty percent of total fee as income from issue management immediately after signing the contract 
which is generally nonrefundable. The rest of fee is recognized as income when allotment of  

issue is completed. 

Collection

commission

Collection commission is recognized as revenue after allotment is completed. The ASBA  

commission income is also included in collection commission revenue.

Refund commission

Refund commission income is recognized one month after the certificate distribution has been 
started. However, refund commission revenue is recognized when allotment is made for issue 

management whose refund commission has been predetermined.

Underwriting fee

Underwriting fee is recognized based on the recoverability of fee and non-refundability of fixed 
amount of fee. Management estimates that recoverability of fee can be reliably measured at the 

date of issue.

RTS & RTA fee RTS/ RTA fee is recognized on accrual basis of service offered throughout the year.
Mutual fund

depository and fund 

management fee

Fund management and depository fee revenue is recognized as per the rate agreed with the 

fund sponsor based on the fund size as guided by Mutual Fund Regulation 2067. Following is the 
agreed rate for fund management and depository fee for each scheme of mutual fund:

Fund Fund management fee Depository fee

NIBL Samriddhi Fund 1 1.75 % 0.50 %
NIBL Pragati Fund 1.50 % 0.50 %
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 1.25 % 0.40 %

Portfolio

management fee

Entry load is recognized as revenue when agreement with client is signed. Performance fee, 

annual fee and service fee is recognized as revenue when it is due.  

Depository

participants (DP) 

fee

Due to high uncertainty on receivables of DP income that will flow to the entity, management 
estimates that the income recognized on realized income basis shall provide reliable and more 

relevant information about the effects of transactions, and conditions on financial performance of 
the entity.

DP income is recognized on realized basis on the rate given in CDS Bylaws and the regulations 

issued by the SEBON.

Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive is established. Management determines the 

right to receive is established when shareholders approve the resolution of dividend distribution 

by the entity at general meeting of shareholders. 

Interest income Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method. 

Other income 
Other incomes are recognized when it is probable that consideration associated with the  
transaction will flow to the company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
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3.1. Revenue from operation 

Following table summarizes the operating revenue recognized during the period:
'Amount in Rs'

3.2. Other income 

Following table summarizes other income recognized during the period:
'Amount in Rs'

4. Expenses Operating

'Amount in Rs'

Particulars FY 2018.19 FY 2017.18

Issue and Sales Management Income  5,241,075 6,619,823
Underwriting Fee  11,565,525 9,857,471
Share Registrar Income  6,714,942 5,433,521
Portfolio Management Service Income  3,841,372 2,940,149
Fund Management Fee  27,044,903 30,473,163
Mutual Fund Depository Fee  8,150,790 9,161,386
DP Income  21,503,654 16,813,472
Collection Commission Income  14,107,519 8,390,918
Refund Commission Income  166,583 1,188,839
Advisory Income  1,240,000 154,999
Other operating income  4,359,647 9,074,923

Total 103,936,010 100,108,665

Particulars FY 2018.19 FY 2017.18

Interest Income  75,853,973 58,362,754
Dividend Income  3,030,840 3,295,208
Return on Investment on Mutual Fund  1,492,878 2,169,586
Other Non-Operating Income  3,825,646 -

Total 84,203,337 63,827,548

Particulars FY 2018.19 FY 2017.18

SEBON Fee  4,125,490 4,306,820
CDS Fee  3,627,732 2,991,950
DP Commission Expenses  834,900 1,662,165
Underwriting & Collection Commission Expenses  5,001,520 1,417,270
*Commission Expenses on sale of investment                2,368,531 -

Advertisement IPO & RTA  341,041 53,225
Printing & Stationary Issue  14,690 236,315
Allotment committee meeting allowance  -   11,765
Statutory & Registration Fee- Issue  -   471,319
PMS- Commission Expense  58,062 -

CDS Corporate Action Charge Expenses  -   140,001
Total 16,371,966 11,290,830

* Commission Expenses on sale of investment including expenses of NRs. 1,893,665.74 in regard to settlement of Nepal 
Bank FPO underwriting.
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5. General and Administrative Expenses
'Amount in Rs'

Particulars FY 2018.19 FY 2017.18

Employee Costs              39,715,850 39,201,440
Employee Training and Development                   732,385 612,478
Office Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses                1,379,397 8,358,826
AGM Expenses                     47,034 89,954
Membership Fee, Renewal and Subscription Fee                1,146,000 1,395,979
Audit Fee                   389,850 480,250
Audit Expenses                     26,590 24,009
Bank Charges                     46,820 101,595
Professional Fee                             -   226,000
Office Expenses  

Cleaning Expenses                   981,442  967,931 
Dashain, Tihar & Pooja Expenses                   139,460  142,419 
Non Capital Assets                     65,368  53,747 
Other Office Expenses                          518  96,478 
Donation                   299,000  196,400 
Security Expenses                1,915,011  1,210,479 
Office Annual Program Expenses                             -    111,688 
ICRA Rating Expenses- RTA                   201,179  572,188 
Office Gardening Expenses                     53,420  186,210 
Electricity Expenses                   303,752  149,572 
Water Supply Expenses                     46,597  34,135 
Printing, Stationary and Periodicals                1,975,601 3,243,090
Communications & Postage & Couriers                 1,985,612  1,561,548
Travel and Vehicle related Costs                   810,946 726,112
Insurance                   125,127 133,749
Rental                1,980,000 1,016,782
Software Expenses – Office, Issue & RTA                 2,308,851 2,339,632
Repair and Maintenances                   723,591 735,624
BOD Meeting Expenses & Other Related Expenses                   756,074 611,000
Miscellaneous Expenses                291,468 238,531
Receivables Write Off 1,871,438 -

Data Management and Entry Fee                     93,517 312,864
Management Fee                   600,000 600,000

Total 61,011,898 65,730,708

6. Income taxes 

Tax Expense for the year

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax expense (deferred tax income).
 

Current tax 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year calculated as per taxation law and rates applicable 

at date of statement of financial position. Current tax expenses include any adjustments to income tax payable or recover-
able in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized based on temporary difference between financial statement's carrying amounts of asset and 
liabilities and their respective income tax bases. Deferred tax is determined using the tax rates that has been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred in-

come tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at 

each reporting date and reduced to the extent of non-recoverability of deferred tax assets.
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'Amount in Rs'

Particulars Year Ended 16 July 2019 Year Ended 16 July 2018

Current tax expenses

in respect of current year  28,821,441 17,718,801
in respect of prior years  205,445 (443,354)

29,026,886 17,275,447
Deferred tax expenses/ (income)

In respect of current year 320,532 (5,641,309)
Total income tax expenses recognized in current year 29,347,418 11,634,138

Particulars Year Ended 16 July 2019 Year Ended 16 July 2018

Profit/ (loss) before tax for the year as per accounting 91,529,727 56,304,123
As per accounting

Add: Depreciation Expenses not allowed 9,081,396 8,001,371
As per Income Tax

Less: Depreciation Expenses allowed (8,495,261) (8,410,085)
Less: Dividend Income - Final Tax Holding Income (3,030,840) (3,295,208)
Add: Disallowed Expenses
Provisional Expenses - Leave and Gratuity 222,507 1,671,689
Unrealized Losses on Investment 4,205,837 16,353,167
Receivables Written Off 1,871,438 -

Miscellaneous and other Expenses 686,666 250,146
Profit/(loss) as per Income Tax 96,071,470 70,875,203

Effective Tax Rate 30% 25%
Current Tax Expenses 28,821,441 17,718,801

Particulars Year Ended 16 July 2019 Year Ended 16 July 2018

Current tax assets

Opening balance (net offset with current tax liabilities) 16,960,922 15,682,176
+ Advance Tax during the year 18,317,093 19,548,201
Closing balance (A) 35,278,015 35,230,377

Current tax liabilities

Opening balance (net offset with current tax assets) - -

+ Current tax payable during the year 28,821,441 17,718,801
+ Tax payable due to Business Combination - 550,654
Closing balance (B) 28,821,441 18,269,455

Net current tax asset/ (liabilities) (A-B) 6,456,574 16,960,922

Following table shows the reconciliation of taxable profit with the accounting profit. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax for the year are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 

comprehensive income or equity respectively.

Offsetting of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities  
Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has legally enforceable right to offset the  
recognized amount and intention to settle on net basis.

6.1. Income tax expenses

Following is the details of tax expenses recognized in statement of Profit or Loss.

6.2. Current tax asset or liabilities 

'Amount in Rs'

'Amount in Rs'
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6.3. Deferred tax asset or liabilities 

'Amount in Rs'

Particulars  Carrying Value  Tax Base  Difference 
Fixed Assets   28,335,691  28,092,608  (243,083)
Provision for Leave  1,154,339  -    1,154,339 
Provision for Expenses  2,279,375  -    2,279,375 
Investment  547,931,264  570,230,844 22,299,580
Total Temporary Difference 25,490,211

Total Deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) for the Year 7,647,063

Less: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) relating to OCI 4,387,977
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities up-to Previous Year 3,579,618
Deferred Tax Income /(Expense) of this Year (320,532)

7. Share Capital 

The company applies NAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation to determine whether the contribution received is either 
outsiders' liability/debt or equity. Financial instruments issued or their component is classified as liabilities if contractual  
arrangements give arise to the Company having present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, or 
a variable number of equity shares to the holders of instrument. Otherwise, it is recognized as equity instrument. Any  
incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction from the proceeds.

Hence share capital represents residual interests of equity holders in the company. The company's share capital is as follows:

8. Reserve and Surplus

All accumulated profit less distribution is represented under retained earnings. The other comprehensive income/ (loss) has 
been presented separately under Reserve and Surplus as at reporting period  Following is the table of reserve and surplus.

Particulars Value per share
As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

No of shares  Rs. No of Shares Rs.

Authorized capital 100 5,000,000 500,000,000 5,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and subscribed capital 100 2,700,000 270,000,000 2,700,000 270,000,000
Paid in capital 100 2,700,000 270,000,000 2,700,000 270,000,000

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

No of Paid in Capital at beginning 2,700,000 1,015,000
+ Additional issue of equity instruments - -

+ Issue of bonus shares - 985,000
+ Acquired through business combination - 700,000
No of paid shares outstanding at period end 2,700,000 2,700,000

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

Opening Balance 79,423,123 157,216,163

+ Acquired through BC - 1,411,976
+ Profit for the year   62,182,309 44,669,985
-  Distribution During the period  (40,500,000) (123,875,000)
Closing Balance of  Retained Earining 101,105,433 79,423,123

+ Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (10,238,613) -

Closing Balance of Reseve and Surplus 90,866,819 79,423,123

Following is the reconciliation of outstanding no of shares at the reporting period end.

'Amount in Rs'
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Proposed Dividend

For the Fiscal year 2075/76, the board has proposed 20% cash dividend including tax, which is subject to approval from 
the General Meeting.

9. Capital Management 

The primary objectives of capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed 

capital requirements and that the company maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 

business and maximize shareholders value.

 

When managing capital, which is a broader concept than the equity in the statement of financial position, the objectives of 
the company are:

v To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulatory authority where the company operates 

v  To safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to

     shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders; and
v  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

 

SEBON requires minimum of Rs 200,000,000 equity capital to carry out all services that the company provides. 
The management monitors its capital structure and required level of regulatory capital requirement based on the changes 

in economic condition in which company operates. The management may adjust the structure by adopting the policies of 

dividend payments, issues of new shares, acquiring new or retiring existing debts. 

10. Current Liabilities

The company classifies a liability as current when such liability is expected to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period end and it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period, and such liabilities are primarily held for ordinary purpose of business. Current liabilities of the 

company have been classified into different group of Trade and payables, other current liabilities and provision balances. 
Following tables details the current liabilities of the company.

10.1. Trade and Other Liabilities

Trade liabilities include the current liabilities directly related to the operating income or expenses. 

'Amount in Rs'

10.2. Other current liabilities 

Other current liabilities of the company include payable balances on account of general and administrative expenses. 
Following is the list of other current liabilities.

'Amount in Rs'

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

Issue Collection Refundable  265,358,852 1,926,450,066
RTS Client Dividend Warrant Payable  549,766,848 249,814,034
RTA Bonus and Tax Payables  1,751,332 1,714,888
CDS Fee Payable  1,571,771 1,750,460
SEBON Fee Payable  2,996,432 3,022,993
Interest expenses payables  4,778,086 2,956,583
Advance received from Customer  2,928,959 14,627,786
DP Commission Payables  834,900 -

Total 829,987,180 2,200,336,810

Particulars As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018

Audit fee payable  250,875 473,875
Salary, Wages and Bonus Payable  10,606,763 6,697,477
Statutory Liabilities  1,291,896 1,099,312
Staff Housing loan insurance premium  126,799 102,940
Other sundry payables  4,335,013 6,440,704

Total 16,611,346 14,814,308
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are those tangible assets used for business operation, administrative purpose or for 

rental to others. An item of PPE is recognized at the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment allowances if any when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such item of PPE for 
more than one accounting period will flow to the Company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
 

Costs includes purchase price and directly attributable costs to bring the assets to the location and conditions of being 

operable as intended by the management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the 

Company's policies.

Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognized to write off the costs of item of PPE less their estimated residual values using straight line 
method over their estimated useful lives and is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Management estimates the  
useful life for each component of assets separately. Following estimations of useful life on each category of asset is used 

by management for depreciation.

Category of Assets Estimated Useful Life

Data Processing Hardware 5 Years
Office Equipment 10 Years
Office Furniture and Fixtures 6.67 Years
Vehicles 6.67 Years
Leasehold assets 5 Years

De-recognition & Impairment 

An item of PPE is de recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Company 
from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the 

difference between net sales proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and is recognized in statement of Profit or loss
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12. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life. The  

estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any 
changes in estimate being accounted for as per Note 2.6 Following estimate of useful life on each item of intangible assets 
is used by management.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less any accumulated  
impairment losses.
 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal 
Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between net proceeds from 
disposal and carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
 

Following is the details of intangible assets as at the period end.

Item of intangible asset Estimated useful life

Software 5 Years

Particulars Software (Rs) Total Intangibles (Rs)

(A) Cost or Valuation

Opening balance as at 16 July 2018 2,749,791 2,749,791
Additions during the year 1,108,603 1,108,603
Disposal - -

Balance as at 16 July 2019 3,858,394 3,858,394

(B) Accumulated Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Opening balance as at 16 July 2018 1,390,631 1,390,631
Additions during the year 577,207 577,207
Deletion - -

Balance as at 16 July 2019 1,967,838 1,967,838

(C) Carrying Amount

As at 16 July 2018 1,359,161 1,359,161

As at 16 July 2019 1,890,556 1,890,556

13. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value estimation
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 

company has access at that date.
 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities that is traded in an active market is based on the quoted market prices 
at the close of trading date on the reporting date. The company uses the last traded market price.
 

The fair value for all other financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using the valuation  
techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances These valuation techniques include the market approach, 

income approach or cost approach, or other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the  

maximum use of observable inputs and relying as little as possible on unobservable inputs.
 

For instruments for which active market in not available, the company may also use the internally developed valuation 

model as per company's valuation guideline which describes about the methods and techniques generally recognized 

as standard within the industry. Valuation models are primarily used for the unlisted equity securities or other financial  
instruments for which market is not active during the year. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market  

observable and hence requires the management judgments and thus valuation are estimated based on assumptions. 
 

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and  

valuation techniques used may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the conditions the company holds. Valuations are 
therefore adjusted wherever appropriate to adjust the factors including model risk, liquidity risk.
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Fair value hierarchy 

The company measures the fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the input used 
in measurements. 

v Level 1 (L1): Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical instruments.

v Level 2 (L2): Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) 
 or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

v Level 3 (L3): Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation techniques  

 include inputs not based on observable data and whose unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the  
 instruments' valuation.

 

Financial Instruments 

Classification and Measurement 
Financial instruments included in the statement of financial position are measured at fair value through profit or loss or 
measured at amortized costs. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair values 
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are classified into following:

v Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading: financial assets are classified as held for trading if they 

 are acquired for purpose of selling or repurchasing in near future. This category includes equities and other fixed income  
 securities. These assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short term changes in price. 

v Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value: these financial assets and liabilities are designated  
 upon initial recognition on the basis that they are part of a group of financial assets that are managed and have their  
 performance evaluation on a fair value basis in accordance with the policy and strategy of the company.

v Financial assets available for sale: financial asset that are not classified as held for trading or designated at fair value  
 are classified as available for sale. Available-for-sale financial assets are those intended to be held for an indeterminate  
 period of time and may be disposed due to changes in interest rates, underlying prices or other requirements. Gains  

 and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale are recognized directly  
 in other comprehensive income, until the financial assets are sold or impaired or retires, when cumulative gain or losses  
 previously recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in statement of profit or loss 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at Amortized Cost

Financial assets and liabilities held to maturity are classified and measured at amortized cost. These financial asset 
or liabilities are initially recognized at fair value including direct and incremental costs and subsequently measured at  

amortized costs, using the effective interest method, less any impairment allowances.
 

Recognition 

The company recognizes financial assets or liabilities when it becomes the party to contractual provisions of the  
instrument. Recognition takes place on the trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract 

whose terms requires delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned.

Derecognition 

Financial assets are de recognized when the contractual right to receive cash has expired or the company has transferred 

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contracts is 
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if there 
is enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Following table details the financial instruments included in the statements of financial position are measured at fair value 
or amortized costs.
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Financial instruments measured at fair value Fair Value method

Cash and cash equivalents 
Carrying amount (approximation to fair value assumed due to 

short-term nature)

Investments held for trading 
Closing price of scrips (L1) as at the statement of financial  
position dates. or L2 or L3 value as determined by management

Available for sale investments
Closing price of scrips (L1) as at the statement of financial  
position dates. or L2 or L3 value as determined by management

Financial instruments measured at Amortized Cost Fair Value method

Receivables, short term payables and accrued charges 
Carrying amount (approximation to fair value assumed due to 

short term nature)

Employee Loan Fair value calculated using effective interest rate.

Fixed deposits investments 
Carrying amount as effective interest rate shall be the interest 
rate of each deposit instrument.  

14. Investments 

Following table details the investments and analysis within the fair value hierarchy as at date of reporting period end. 

'Amount in Rs'

14.1. Net change in fair value of investments
'Amount in Rs'

Investments in 

Fair Value 
as at

FY 2018.19
Fair Value 

as at
FY 2017.18

16 July 2019 L1 L2 L3 16 July 2018 L1 L2 L3

(A) Held for trading (classified as current assets)
Mutual Funds  47,944,705 47,944,705 - - 40,060,465 40,060,465 - -

Equity Securities  40,124,149 40,124,149 - - 84,338,411 84,338,411 - -

Total 88,068,854 88,068,854 - - 124,398,876 124,398,876 - -

(B) Available for Sale (Classified as Non Current Assets) 
Equity Securities 7,612,410 - 7,612,410 -

Total 7,612,410 - 7,612,410 -

(B) Measured at Amortized Cost

Fixed Deposit at Bank  447,250,000 204,750,000
Investments on Debentures  5,000,000 
Total Value of Investment 547,931,264 329,148,876

Investments Classified to
A. Current Assets 

Held for Trading  88,068,854 124,398,876
Measured at Amortized Costs  447,000,000 204,500,000
Total 535,068,854 328,898,876

B. Non-Current Assets

Available for Sale  7,612,410 -

Measured at Amortized Cost  5,250,000 250,000
Total 12,862,410 250,000

Particulars FY 2018.19 Net Gain / (Losses) FY 2017.18 Net Gain / (Losses)

(A) Held for trading

Mutual Fund (2,828,460) (2,147,605)
Equity Securities (1,377,377) (4,117,937)

Total (4,205,837) (6,265,542)

Net Change in fair value (4,205,837) (16,353,167)

+ Realized gain/(loss) on Investments 4,231,447 -

Net changes in gain/(losses) 25,610 (16,353,167)

The net change in fair value of investments has been recognized on Mark to Market basis as on 16 July 2019. Previously, 
the net change in fair value of investments has been recognized on Cost to Market Basis.
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14.2. Details of Investment

A. Investment on Mutual Funds

B. Investment on Listed Shares

Name of Company

Fiscal Year 2018.19

Unit

Market Value

per unit as on

16 July 2019

Market Value as 

on 16 July 2019 

Amount (A)

 Market Value as 

on 16 July 2018 

Amount (B)

Gain/(Loss)

(A-B)

Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme 58,977 10.82 638,131  622,207  15,924 
NMB Suluv Investment Fund-1 105,500 10.82 1,141,510  1,218,525  (77,015)
Global IME Samunnat Scheme-1 237,328 8.38 1,988,809  2,081,367  (92,558)
NIBL Samriddhi Fund -1 1,000,000 9.26 9,260,000  10,150,000  (890,000)
NMB Hybrid Fund L1 94,644 10.03 949,279  917,100  32,179 
Nabil Equity Fund 112,646 9.33 1,050,987  1,110,690  (59,702)
NIBL Pragati Fund 1,051,384 7.44 7,822,297  9,462,456 (1,640,159)
Laxmi Equity Fund 438,717 7.63 3,347,411  3,553,608  (206,197)
Siddhartha Equity Fund 400,000 10.09 4,036,000  3,824,000  212,000 
Sanima Equity Fund 400,000 9.40 3,760,000  3,824,000  (64,000)
Laxmi Value Fund 1 321,611 10.20 3,280,432  3,296,513  (16,081)
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 1,071,270 9.96 10,669,849  10,712,700  (42,851)

Total 5,292,077 47,944,705 50,773,165 (2,828,460)

Name of Company

Fiscal Year 2018.19

Unit

Market Value

per unit as on

16 July 2019

Market Value as 

on 16 July 2019 

Amount (A)

 Market Value as 

on 16 July 2018 

Amount (B)

Gain/(Loss)

(A-B)

Arun Kabeli Power Limited 295 188 55,460  76,700  (21,240)
Ngadi Group Power Ltd. 636 116 73,776  103,668  (29,892)
Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 2,365 771 1,823,415  2,329,525  (506,110)
NLG Insurance Company Ltd. 278 762 211,836  258,540  (46,704)
Synergy Power Development Co. Ltd. 616 90 55,440  76,384  (20,944)
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 990 901 891,990  1,039,500  (147,510)
United Modi Hydropower Ltd. 337 109 36,733  57,964  (21,231)
NMB Bank Ltd. (Clean Energy) 7 382 2,674  1,790  884 
Rastriya Beema Co. Ltd. - Promoters 86 8,877 763,422  855,958  (92,536)
Butwal Power Co. Ltd. 86,260 409 35,280,340  35,837,149  (556,809)
Barun Hydropower Company Limited 10 90 900  1,500  (600)
Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

125 532 66,500  68,440  (1,940)

National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

29 1,480 42,920  50,922  (8,002)

Jyoti Bikash Bank Ltd. 1,977 163 322,251  278,757  43,494 
RSDC Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

90 343 30,870  31,405  (535)

Deva: Bikash Bank Ltd. 496 146 72,416  63,984  8,432 
Saptakoshi Development Bank Limited 3,223 122 393,206  369,340  23,866 

Total 97,820 40,124,149 41,501,526 (1,377,377)
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Investment on Unlisted Shares

D. Investment on Debentures

Investment on Fixed Deposit

Name of Company

Fiscal Year 2018.19

Unit

Fair Value   

per unit as on 

16 July 2019

Fair Value as 

on 16 July 2019 

Amount (A)

 Cost as on 

16 July 2019 

Amount (B)

Gain/(Loss) 

(A-B)

M. Nepal  Ltd. 222,390 34.23 7,612,410 22,239,000 14,626,590
Total 222,390 7,612,410 22,239,000 14,626,590

The Fair Value of M Nepal Ltd. has been considered equivalent to the Book Value per share as per the audited financial 
statements of the Company as on 16 July 2019.

Name of Company
Fiscal Year 2018.19

Unit Cost Price per Unit Total Cost Amount

Siddhartha Bank Debentures 2082 2500 1000.00 2,500,000
Sunrise Debenture 2080 2500 1000.00 2,500,000

Total 5000 5,000,000

Details
Fiscal Year 2018.19

Amount

FD- Deva: Bikash Bank Ltd. 37,500,000
FD- Garima Bikash Bank Ltd. 5,000,000
FD- Goodwill Finance Ltd. 25,000,000
FD- Guheswori Merchant Banking & Finance Ltd. 20,000,000
FD- Gurkhas Finance Ltd. 50,000,000
FD- Hamro Bikash Bank Ltd. 50,000,000
FD- Jyoti Bikash Bank Ltd. 10,000,000
FD- Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Ltd. 50,000,000
FD- Manjushree Financial Instituition Ltd. 39,500,000
FD- Muktinath Bikash Bank Ltd. 60,000,000
FD- Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 20,000,000
FD- Om Development Bank Ltd. 5,250,000
FD- Pokhara Finance Ltd. 20,000,000
FD- Shangrila Development Bank Ltd. 5,000,000
FD- Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd. 50,000,000

Total 447,250,000

The entity has invested the fund available for dividend warrants distribution of NRs. 270,000,000.00 as FD placement,  
especially for the short term period. As the dividend distribution takes a certain period of time to complete, the entity  

mobilizes the fund available as the fund is in our custody for the purpose of distribution.

14.3. Seed Capital Investment

Entity being Fund Manager and Depository of Sponsor, Nepal Investment Bank Limited in scheme, NIBL Samriddhi Fund 

I, NIBL Pragati Fund and NIBL Sahabhagita Fund under NIBL Mutual Fund has invested 1% of the Fund as Seed Capital. 
As a close ended fund and open ended fund, the scheme is required to be held till the maturity date. Although there is 

no regulatory requirement that the Fund manager are not allowed to sell their investments of seed capital, the entity has  

considered to hold the investment till the maturity. The investment are classified as held for trading and valued through 
profit or loss statement.

15. Risk Management 

The company is exposed to various risks in nature of activities it carries. These risks particularly include market risk and 

interest rate risk. The company's objective of managing risk is for the protection and creation of shareholders and investors 

value. The company's investment policy has established a risk management framework, which is the continuous process 

of identification, measurement, monitoring and control of risks.
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Risk management structure

The board of directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management. The management of the company has 

been delegated and instructed for the responsibility for identifying and controlling risks of the company.

Risk measurement and reporting system

The company uses various techniques to identify and measure the risks. These measures reflect the company's  
philosophy of management and risk tolerance as determined by the management. Determination of risk tolerance level is 

the judgement, philosophy and actions of the management in response to the circumstances in given environment. The 

management uses various tools and methods to measure and monitor the risks in relation to the aggregate risk across all 

risk type and activities.

Following are three broad methods used by the company. 

Risk mitigation

The company's investment and risk management committee decides the risk management framework and guidelines that 

encompasses overall investment strategy, limit and tolerance of risk. The company uses other instruments for trading and 

risk management purpose.

Excessive risk concentration 

Concentration risk arises when a number of financial instruments are entered with similar or identical characteristics. 
Those characteristics may be identified as sector of business; same counterparty, or have similar economic features that 
are similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or typical industrial and other conditions. To avoid excessive 
concentration risk, the Company focuses on managing diversified portfolio.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument will change due to changes in market  
variables such as interest rates, equity prices. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments the company held 
equals their fair value.

(a) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in fair value of instruments as a result of changes in the level of equity indices 

and the value of individual instruments. The company manages prices risk by investing in a variety of scrips in a particular 

sector and diversifying investment in particular sector.

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility of changes in interest rate which will affect the future cash flow or fair value 
of financial instrument. The company makes investment in fixed income securities and demand deposits in bank. The  
interest income from such instruments will be affected by the changes in interest rate. The company's demand deposit only 
is exposed to the interest rate risk. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in full 
as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The company is exposed to settlement of operational obligations and investment commitments in portfolio companies. The 

company policy to invest in listed securities in active trading market is readily disposable in normal market conditions and 

hence is assumed highly liquid. Further the company has the ability to borrow in short term to ensure settlements. No such 

borrowings have been raised during the year. The company does not have any foreign exchange currency risk during the 

year.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the 
Company. Management of the Company determines the creditworthiness of counterparty as a mean of mitigating risk of 

financial loss from defaults before entering into any business arrangement. Company's exposure to and the credibility of 
counterparties are continuously monitored.

16. Current Assets 

The company classifies assets as current when such asset is expected to be realized or consumed within twelve months 
after the reporting period end and such assets are primarily held for ordinary purpose of business. Current assets of the 

company have been classified into different group based on their nature of asset held. Following tables details the current 
asset of the company.
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16.1. Trade Receivables, Advances and Deposits

These current assets include the assets directly held for the ordinary purpose of business. Following is the details.

'Amount in Rs'

16.2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, Cash and cash equivalents includes cash balance in hand, demand deposits 
with bank, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less. Following is the details 

of cash and cash equivalents.
'Amount in Rs'

Restricted cash balances that are not available for use by the Company includes the amount collected from issue  

managements and dividend warrant distribution amount. Following is the details of amount not available for use during the 

reporting period.
'Amount in Rs'

There is no any amount of undrawn borrowing facilities that are available for use in future operating activities or to settle 

capital commitments.

17. Lease, Commitments and Guarantees

Determination of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception 

of the lease. A lease is classified as finance or an operating lease.

The Company has an operating lease arrangement only. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 
statement of profit or loss in the year which it becomes payable. Lease amount payable in respect of operating lease is:

Particulars AS AT 16 July 2019 AS AT 16 July 2018

RTS Service Fee Receivable  5,438,205 4,493,070

Underwriting & Issue management Fee Receivable  7,885,156 6,847,125
Fund Management Fee Receivable  13,605,772 13,818,014
Fund Depository Fee Receivable  4,103,072 4,150,606
Other Sundry Receivables  42,500 67,999
Prepaid Expenses  960,620 441,068
Staff Loan  1,948,209 1,940,274
Other Current Assets  2,689,965 7,501,830
PMS Income Receivables  210,250 94.250
DP Income Receivables  1,096,923 -

Total 37,980,673 39,354,236

Particulars AS AT 16 July 2019 AS AT 16 July 2018

Cash in Hand - -

Balance at Bank 572,380,134 2,142,385,496
Total 572,380,134 2,142,385,496

Particulars AS AT 16 July 2019 AS AT 16 July 2018

Dividend Warrants 279,766,848 160,046,962
IPO Collection 265,358,852 1,946,392,852

Total 545,125,701 2,106,439,814

Period Amount (Rs)

Up to 1 year 1,936,000
1-5 year -

Above 5 years -

Total 1,936,000
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Following table details the commitments that the Company has issued as at end of reporting period.

Underwriting Commitment to For Amount (Rs)

Garjang Upatyaka Hydropower Power Ltd IPO 102,000,000
Mount Kailash Energy Co. Ltd IPO 225,000,000
Total Underwriting Commitment 327,000,000

18. Employment Benefits
The Company has schemes of employee benefits namely provident fund, employee gratuity and accumulated leave pay 
as per Employee Service Bylaws, 2068.

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and Gratuity
Under defined contribution plan, the Company makes payment of pre-determined amounts to separate fund and does 
not have any legal or other obligation to pay additional amount. Contribution to defined contribution scheme is charged to 
statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate to as the company as no further defined obligation beyond such 
contribution. 

The company and employee contribute 10% each on the salary of each employee to an approved Provident Fund  
maintained at NIBL Retirement Fund.

From Bhadra 19, 2074, the entity has paid the monthly gratuity liability to the staff in their respective retirement fund account 
at 8.33% of Basis Salary as per the labour act 2074 and has recognized it as expenses which amount to NRs. 1,293,947. 
All staff gratuity liability has been discharged into staff Gratuity Account till 16 July 2019 at NIBL Retirement Fund.

Defined benefit plan - Leave Pay
The Company provides for defined benefit in form of leave pay. The liabilities or asset recognized in the statement of  
financial position in respect of defined benefit obligation at the end of the presorting period less fair value of plan assets. 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using projected unit credit method.

Changes in past and current service costs including interest expense under defined benefit obligation is recognized in 
statement of profit or loss. Net interest cost is calculated by applying discount rate to net balance of defined benefit  
obligation and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in liabilities over the years due to changes actuarial assumptions are 

recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

NAS 19 requires to exercise the judgment on relation to various assumptions including rise in future pay, inflation, discount 
rates and employee demographics. The provision for leave encashment is derived from the management judgment and 

estimation which amount to Nrs. 1,154,339 as on 16 July 2019. Staffs are eligible for accumulation of 60 days of annual 
leave and 30 days of sick leave.  Management has not considered the actuarial valuation because of the limited number of 
staff, high labour turnover, nature of industry, number of year of operation and also the cost versus benefit analysis.

Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefit includes any benefits accruing to employee in respect of wages, salaries, allowances and 
other pay in the period of related service. Short term employee benefits are charged to statement of profit or loss in period 
which service has been obtained from employee.

Other benefits include various types of loan to its staffs at prescribed rates as per the provisions of Employees' Byelaws 
of the entity. The types of staff's loans are namely EMI Loan (provided at base rate of Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.) and 
Housing Loan (Tied up with insurance policy).Difference between the fair value of loan given to employee and loan amount 
given to employee at lower interest rate as compared to market interest rate shall be charged to statement of profit or loss 
as employee benefits. Fair value of loan given to employee shall be measured at amortized cost. Being immaterial impact 
to the financial statements, the management has not shown the staff loan at its fair value at amortized cost (i.e. at base 
rate of Nepal investment Bank Ltd. as on 16 July 2019).

Employee Bonus Expenses: Employee Bonus Expenses has been provisioned on the basis of profit before staff bonus 
and tax.

19. Provision and contingencies 

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company recognizes it 

has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
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A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but  

probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of 
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that 
a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Provision for expenses of Rs. 2,279,375 has been recognized at the end of reporting period. The company does not have 
any contingent liabilities at the reporting period end.

20. Related Party Transactions

A person or entity is considered a related party if it:
v controls or has significant influence to the Company
v is subsidiary, joint venture, associates or in which the Company can have significant influence
v is member of key management personnel of the company or its parent

(A) Nature of Relationship and Name of Related Parties

v Parent Company: Nepal Investment Bank Ltd.
v Associate Company: M Nepal Ltd.
              (Percentage of Shareholding: - 22.24%)

v Board of Directors:

 Mr. Sachin Tibrewal   Chairman

 Mrs. Bandana Thapa   Director

 Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha  Director
 Mr. Rabindra Bhattarai   Independent Director

Mr. Sachin Tibrewal, Mr. Deepak Kumar Shrestha, and Mrs. Bandana Thapa have been appointed by the Parent Company. 
Independent director has been appointed by existing Board of Directors from AGM.

v Transaction with Board of Directors: 

 The Board of Directors are entitled to meeting allowances as per the Articles of Association of the Company. As per  

 amended Articles of Association as approved by Special General Meeting dated 2074 Mangsir 29, meeting allowances  
 per meeting per member of Board of Directors has been increased to Rs. 12,000 for Chairman and Rs. 10,000 for other  
 directors from existing allowance of Rs 8,000. No other benefits or allowances are provided to the board of directors.  
 During the year, Rs 732,000 has been paid as meeting allowances of Board of Directors for board meeting and boaed 

 level committe meetings.

v Key Management Personnel

 Shivanth Bahadur Pandé  Chief Executive Officer
 Mekh Bahadur Thapa Thada  Deputy Chief Executive Officer
 Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi  General Manager
 Badri Prasad Pyakurel   Assistant General Manager

Chief Executive Officer has been deputed by the Parent and is entitled to allowance of NRs. 120,000 (NRs. One Lakhs 
Twenty Thousand only). During the year, Rs. 1,440,000 (NRs. Fourteen Lakhs Forty Thousand only) has been paid to the 
CEO as remuneration.

Following is the key management compensation during the period. 
'Amount in Rs'

 Short term employee benefits FY 2018.19 FY 2017.18

- Salary & Allowances including Dashain Allowance 10,049,250 8,835,000
Total Short Tern Employee Benefits (A) 10,049,250 8,835,000

Post-Employment Benefits
- Provident Fund 476,820 433,620
- Gratuity 1,248,032 850,841
- Leave Encashment 624,105 772,178
Total Post-Employment Benefits (B) 2,348,957 2,056,639

Total Benefits (A+B) 12,398,207 10,891,639
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(B) Related party transactions

i.    Related Party Transactions with Parent

The following is the related party transactions with the Parent
'Amount in Rs'

ii. Related Party Transactions with NIBL Mutual Funds

The Company is also fund manager and mutual fund depository for NIBL mutual fund and currently manages three 

schemes namely NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1, NIBL Pragati Fund and NIBL Sahabhagita Fund. The following is the related party  
payment during the period. 

'Amount in Rs'

SN Particular 
Transaction

Amount 

Nature of

Transactions
Remarks 

1 Deposit at NIBL (Operating account) 5,288,354 Bank Deposit

2 Deposit at NIBL (Other bank
balances) including Fixed Deposit

71,770,899 Bank Deposit  

3
Interest earned from account

maintained at NIBL (Operating
Account) and Fixed Deposit Account

3,542,142 Interest Income

4 Registrar to Share Fee from holding 

company
500,000 Share Registrar Income

For FY 75-76, received during 
the year

5 Human Resource Expenses

(Mrs. Rekha Pant)
991,423 Staff Expenses

Staff from the holding company 
has been deputed as RTA/RTS 
officer of the company for day 
to day operations.

6 Depository Participant Fee 834,900 DP Commission Expenses Paid during the year.

7 Service Level Agreement (SLA). 600,000 SLA Expenses Paid during the year.

Related Party Relation Transaction Amount Outstanding Balance Nature of Transaction 

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 Fund Manager 23,313,146 11,649,621 Receivable

NIBL Pragati Fund Fund Manager 11,810,519 5,988,276 Receivable

NIBL Sahabhagita Fund Fund Manager 72,028 70,948 Receivable

The company has not provided any provision or impairment allowances on such outstanding related party balances and 

has not recognized any expenses for bad or doubtful debts on such balance. The company has not obtained any guarantee 

on such transactions.

21. Events after the Reporting Period

The Company follows NAS 10 - Events after the Reporting Period for accounting and reporting of events that occur after 
the reporting period, which requires to classify those events into adjusting and non-adjusting events. 

There is no material events either adjusting or non-adjusting events for the reporting period end. 
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NIBL SAMRIDDHI FUND-I
NIBL Samriddhi Fund – I, is a closed end mutual fund scheme with a corpus of NPR 1 billion. Nepal Investment 
Bank Limited is the fund sponsor for this mutual fund scheme.  The main objective of this scheme is to gener-

ate returns by investing in a mix of securities comprising of equity, equity related instruments & fixed income  
instruments as allowed by prevailing rules/regulations on mutual fund. The mutual fund has a maturityof 7 
years from the date of allotment of its units.

Fund Supervisor

Name Background

Mr. Madhukar SJB Rana Masters in economics with more than 46 years of experience in 
teaching profession and economist.

Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala PHD in economics with more than 30 years of experience in  
various government administration, industries and economic sector.

Dr. Shambhu  Ram Simkhada
PHD International relation with more than 28 years of experience on 
various national and international organizations.

Dr. Durgesh Man Singh PHD in Economics and expert in financial and political sector.

CA Jitendra Bahadur Raj bhandary Chartered accountants with more than 36 years of experience in the 
field of auditing.

NIBL MUTUAL FUND
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July, 2019)

In NPR

Particulars Notes FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2  187,645,522  198,646,506 
Other Current Assets 4.6  9,480,270  18,407,269 
Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost  150,000,000  143,000,000 
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7  751,724,842  800,582,511 

Total  1,098,850,634  1,160,636,286 

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2  29,381,450  31,445,606 
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders)  29,381,450  31,445,606 

Unit Holder's Funds

Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6  1,069,469,184  1,129,190,680 
Total  1,098,850,634  1,160,636,286 

NAV per Unit                                                                            10.69             11.29 

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé

Chief Executive Officer 

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076-05-12

Place: Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head - Mutual Fund

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashad 2076  (17th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

Particulars Notes FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Income

Interest Income 7.2  24,457,530  26,991,347 
Dividend Income 7.3  18,458,637  18,109,880 
Net Realised Gains/(losses) on financial Assets at Fair Value 
Through Proift or loss

14(b)  28,973,485  119,277,358 

Other Income  4,575,317  89,323 
Total  76,464,969  164,467,908 

Expenses and Losses

Fund Management fees  18,132,447  20,923,032 
Depositary Fees  5,180,699  5,978,009 
Fund Supervisors Fees  3,108,419  3,586,806 
Publication Expenses  190,805  190,404 
Listing Fees  50,000  50,000 
DP Expense  100  9,450 
Audit Fees  113,000  113,000 
Bank Charges  9,770  18,115 
Dividend Distribution Expenses  -    64,521 
Write off Expenses  -    4,602 
Other Expenses  5,043  -   

Annual Service Charges on Software  62,150  124,300 
ICRA -Annual Rating Fee  245,245  -   

CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee  240,000  120,000 
Total expenses  27,337,678  31,182,239 

Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period  49,127,290  133,285,669 

Other Comprehensive income

     -Net Unrealised gains/(losses) on financial assets 14(b)  11,151,214  (366,421,189)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  60,278,504  (233,135,520)

In NPR

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé

Chief Executive Officer 

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076-05-12

Place: Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head - Mutual Fund

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Satement of Cash Flow

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashad 2076  (17th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

In NPR

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year  60,278,504  (233,135,520)

Adjustments for:

Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for
trading purposes

 (11,151,214)  366,421,189 

Increase/(Decrease) in  Liabilities  (2,064,156)  (10,539,293)

(Increase)/Decrease in Share  60,008,883  4,784,287 

(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture  (7,000,000)  (10,000,000)

(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit  -    -   

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  8,926,999  9,805,827 

Net cash generated/(used) in Operations (1)  108,999,017  127,336,491 

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Dividend Paid during the year  (120,000,000)  (180,000,000)

Net cash generated/(used) in financing (2)  (120,000,000)  (180,000,000)

C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities  -    -   

Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3)  -    -   

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3)  (11,000,983)  (52,663,509)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period  198,646,506  251,310,015 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period  187,645,521  198,646,506 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks  187,645,522  198,646,506 

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé

Chief Executive Officer 

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076-05-12

Place: Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head - Mutual Fund

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Satement of Change in Unit Holder's Fund

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashad 2076  (17th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

In NPR

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period  1,129,190,680  1,542,326,200 

Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders:

         Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period  49,127,290  133,285,669 

         Other Comprehensive income  11,151,214  (366,421,189)

Distribution to Unit Holders'  (120,000,000)  (180,000,000)

Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period  1,069,469,184  1,129,190,680 

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pandé

Chief Executive Officer 

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076-05-12

Place: Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head - Mutual Fund

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M. B. Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of Ashad End 2076 (16th July 2019)
1. General Information of the Scheme

Fund: NIBL Mutual Fund

Scheme: NIBL Samriddhi Fund -1

Fund Sponsor:  
Nepal Investment Bank Limited (NIBL)

(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management: 
NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors:

Mr. Madhukar S.J.B.Rana
Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada

Dr. Durgesh Man Singh

CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari
Total Units of Scheme:   100,000,000 (One hundred million units)
Total Unit Capital: NPR 1,000,000,000 (NPR One Billion)
Scheme type: Close-ended

NIBL Samriddhi Fund - 1 (the Scheme) under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations, 
2067 as a closed-end, diversified investment scheme. The objective of the Fund is to diligently manage the fund with the 
aim to achieve high return for unit holders, growth of both capital and income from investment in shares and fixed income 
securities and conservation of capital. The Scheme commenced its operation on 23 Poush 2071 (Scheme allotment date) 
B.S. with maturity period of 7 years (i.e. 22 Poush 2078 B.S.)  It was listed in NEPSE on 23 Magh 2071. The Scheme’s 
Financial Statements for the year 2075/76 were approved by the Board of Directors of the NIBL Ace Capital Limited on 
12th Bhadra 2076 being the Fund Management and Depository Company. Similarly, the Fund Supervisors’ consent on the 
approved Financial Statements has also been duly obtained.

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. (NIBL) is the Fund Sponsor and NIBL Ace Capital Ltd (NIBL Ace Capital), a subsidiary of NIBL 

duly licensed by Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON),  has been appointed as the Fund Manager of the Scheme by the 
Sponsor after obtaining due approval from SEBON. Further, the Fund Manager is also providing Depository services to the 
unit holders of the Scheme in line with the prevailing regulations on mutual fund.

The Unit Capital of the Scheme comprises of the following:

Holder Status No. of Units Holding Amount @ 10 Each Holding (%)

Nepal Investment Bank Fund Sponsor 14,000,000 140,000,000 14
NIBL Ace Capital Limited Fund Manager / Depository 1,000,000 10,000,000 1
General Public 85,000,000 850,000,000 85

Total 100,000,000 1000,000,000 100

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees, rounded to the nearest Rupee. The Financial Statements 

have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). Further the financial statements are 
in compliance with Securities Act, 2063 and its regulation and other relevant laws.

2.2.Basis of Preparation

The fund while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment as having potentially material 

impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole 
along with the judgment made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that relevant note. 
NFRS requires the fund to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates.  Description of such estimates has been 

given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied. The financial statements are prepared on the basis of fair 
value measurement of assets and liabilities. 
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The statement of financial position is presented on liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in decreasing order 
of liquidity. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for investments in financial 
assets and net assets attributable to unit holders.

 

2.3. Reporting Pronouncements

The fund has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on  
September 13, 2013. NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as  
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

2.4. Accounting Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
  

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judgements as 
required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.
 

2.5. New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective
NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments has been issued but is not effective until further notified.  For the reporting of financial 
instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements 
and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after 

the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.  Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them 
within NFRS.

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments, will arise as a result 
of application of NFRS 9.
 

2.6. Presentation

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees.
  

For presentation of the statement of financial position assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into current and non-
current distinction.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method.

The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the indirect method.

2.7. Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the fund. 

2.8. Accounting Policies and accounting estimates

The fund, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and  

operating environment.  Further the fund is required to make judgment in respect of items where the choice of specific 
policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be 
determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements.
 

NFRS requires the fund to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.
  

The fund applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements.  The estimates and underlying  
assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the  

estimates is revised and are applied prospectively. 

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates 

have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.
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The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next  
financial year. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including  
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 

2.9. Financial Periods

The fund follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

2.10. Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

2.11. Limitation of NFRS implementation 

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS  
implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounting policy

3.1. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at 
bank.  

Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified as cash flows from  
operating activities, as movements in the fair value of these securities represent the Fund’s main income generating  

activity.

Explanatory notes

3.2. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are representative of their fair values as at the respective 

reporting date

Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075

Cash at Bank 187,645,522 198,646,506
Total 187,645,522 198,646,506

4. Financial Instruments 

Accounting policy

4.1 The Fund’s principal financial assets comprise assets held at fair value through profit and loss, assets measured at 
amortized cost, loans and receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the 
investment made by unitholders. The Funds’ principal financial liabilities comprise accrued expenses and other payables 
which arise directly from its operations.

 

In accordance with NFRS 39; Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the Fund’s interest receivables are 
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Equity securities / debentures are classified as fair value through profit and loss. The 
amount attributable to unitholders is classified as equity and is carried at the redemption amount being net asset value. 
Payables are designated as ‘other financial liabilities’ at amortized cost.
 

4.2 Classification 
The Fund’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, fair value at amortized cost and loans and  
receivables. They comprise:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets, held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are 
recognized through profit or loss. This classification includes quoted equity securities held for trading. The dividend income 
from the quoted equity securities is recorded in the profit or loss.
 

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable.

4.3 Recognition / De- recognition 

The Fund recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual agreement 
(trade date) and recognizes changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities from this date. 
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Investments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or expired.

 

Realized gains and realized losses on de-recognition are determined using the weighted average method and are included 

in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The realized gain is the difference between an instrument’s weighted 
average cost and disposal amount. 

4.4 Measurement 

a. Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
At initial recognition, the Fund measures a financial asset at its fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are  
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets or financial  
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category is presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net 
gains/(losses) on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction  

between market participants at the measurement date.

 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is subsequently based on their quoted market 
prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. The quoted market 

price used for financial assets held by the Fund is the closing price.
 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation  
techniques. 

b. Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 

Financial assets at this category are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently amortized  

using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses if any. Such assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

If evidence of impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognized on a financial asset carried at amortized cost  
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down is  

reversed through profit or loss.
 

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trade receivables. Dividends are accrued when the right 

to receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of each reporting period from the time of last payment 

in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(6) above.

Receivable are recognized and carried at amortized cost, less a provision for any uncollectable debts. An estimate for 

doubtful debt is made when collection of an amount is no longer probable.

 

Recoverability of receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an individual portfolio level, Individual debts that are 

known to be uncollectable are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognized when there is objective 
evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments 
are considered objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount 

compared to the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
 

4.5 Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Explanatory note
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4.6 Loans and Receivables-current

4.7 Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Dividend Income Receivable 1,054,201          1,223,342 
Interest Receivables 2,088,963          7,984,781 
Broker Receivables  

       Kohinoor Investment -35 3,593,894          6,747,588 
       Dakshinkali Investment -33 -                    25 
       Naasa Securities -58 -                   125 
       Vision Securities -34 2,706,278                1,475 
IPO Advance  

     SMATA -Right Advance -              20,300 
     RSDC -Right Advance -            177,000 
     SIL -Right Advance -            485,700 
Right Auction Refund Receivable  

     Kumari Bank - Right Auction -          1,730,000 
TDS Receivables 36,934              36,934 

Total Amount 9,480,270        18,407,269 

Particulars 31st Asadh 2076 32nd Asadh 2075

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Equity Security 751,724,842  800,582,511
Total Financial Assets held for Trading (A) 751,724,842   800,582,511

Designated Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -

Total Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (B) - -

Total Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (A+B) 751,724,842   800,582,511

Comparative Investment in Listed Shares

Name of Company

Asadh End 2076 Asadh End 2075

 Unit 
 Price

(NPR) 

 Amount 

(NPR)
 Unit 

 Price

(NPR) 

 Amount 

(NPR)

Swabalamban Bikas Bank Limited      1,289   875 1,127,875 2,103 1,240 2,607,720 
Shangrila Development Bank Ltd. 17,446 159 2,773,914 17,081 157 2,681,717 
Nepal Bank Limited 21,981   336 7,385,616 26,981     281 7,581,661 
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 58,471 264 15,436,344 69,645 209 14,555,805 
Siddhartha Bank Limited 27,145     318 8,632,110 55,859 300 16,757,700 
Nepal Doorsanchar Comapany Limited 45,120     693 31,268,160 46,830 721 33,764,430 
NIC Asia Bank Ltd.    1,500 448 672,000 41,381     316 13,076,396 
Siddhartha Insurance Ltd. 16,205     455 7,373,275 9,176  690 6,331,440 
Global IME Bank Limited 42,138  295 12,430,710 25,697 290 7,452,130 
Citizen Bank International Limited  -  -  - 8,971  236 2,117,156 
Mega Bank Nepal Ltd. 89,569 213 19,078,197 87,690 163 14,293,470 
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 21,487     278 5,973,386 48,651     287 13,962,837 
Agriculture Development Bank Limited    5,103 409 2,087,127 35,424   314 11,123,136 
Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.  19,153 771 14,766,963 19,336 985 19,045,960 
Sanima Bank Limited 34,368     348 11,960,064 61,199 324 19,828,476 
Sagarmatha Insurance company limited    9,900    605 5,989,500 5,875 1,340 7,872,500 
Laxmi Bank Limited 20,493 226 4,631,418 25,833  258 6,664,914 
Rural Microfinance Development Centre Ltd.    9,340 661 6,173,740 6,673    653 4,357,469 
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NLG Insurance Company Ltd. 24,279    762 18,500,598 14,996 930 13,946,280 
Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.   8,375    354 2,964,750 7,681     658 5,054,098 
Everest Bank Limited 25,591  666 17,043,606 31,762     663 21,058,206 
National Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 33,795     585 19,770,075 18,609     799 14,868,591 
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 58,191     521 30,317,511 48,492 790 38,308,680 
Nabil Bank Limited 62,777 800 50,221,600 23,996     921 22,100,316 
NABIL Bank Limited Promotor Share  -  -  - 39,314     687 27,008,718 
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited 27,751 222 6,160,722 36,751 214 7,864,714 
Sunrise Bank Limited 25,931 248 6,430,888 42,585 230 9,794,550 
Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd. 42,380 370 15,680,600 37,856 378 14,309,568 
Nerude Laghubitta Bikash Bank limited 4,780 470 2,246,600 3,720 637 2,369,640 
Life Insurance Co. Nepal 7,785 1,600 12,456,000 8,076 1,622 13,099,272 
Himalayan bank Limited 47,599 552 26,274,648 46,855 551 25,817,105 
Nepal SBI Bank Limited 41,644 469 19,531,036 44,423 499 22,167,077 
Asian Life Insurance Company limited 69,717 383 26,701,611 43,573 683 29,760,359 
Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited  -  -  - 8,260 274 2,263,240 
Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank limited  -  -  - 17,203 250 4,300,750 
Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd 25,878 350 9,057,300 25,878 450 11,645,100 
Garima Bikash Bank Limited 28,626 224 6,412,224 46,350 182 8,435,700 
Nirdhan Utthan Bikash bank Limited 11,339 841 9,536,099 9,449 1,024 9,675,776 
Standard Chartered Bank Limited 7,159 682 4,882,438 14,912 755 11,258,560 
Deprosc Development Bank Limited 21,045 722 15,194,490 18,677 750 14,007,750 
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 34,214 948 32,434,872 27,371 1,160 31,750,360 
Shine Resunga Development Bank 30,874 252 7,780,248 28,009 271 7,590,439 
Kailash Bikash Bank Limited  -  -  - 18,312 229 4,193,448 
Goodwill Finance Company Limited 21,125 135 2,851,875 21,125 122 2,577,250 
Janata Bank Nepal Ltd. 23,387 214 5,004,818 31,387 157 4,927,759 
Civil Bank Limited 50,407 158 7,964,306 45,721 153 6,995,313 
Kumari Bank Limited 26,727 220 5,879,940 46,080 199 9,169,920 
Oreintal Hotels limited 3,125 607 1,896,875 13,482 521 7,024,122 
Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited 22,523 950 21,396,850 14,888 877 13,056,776 
NMB Bank Limited 70,466 382 26,918,012 32,759 358 11,727,722 
Excel Development Bank Ltd. 8,871 283 2,510,493 8,871 326 2,891,946 
Womi Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11 1,128 12,408 1 1,385 1,385 
Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd. 37,864 245 9,276,680 34,422 328 11,290,416 
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 30,582 901 27,554,382 19,466 1,050 20,439,300 
National Hydro Power Company Limited  -  -  - 12,400 86 1,066,400 
Butwal Power Company Limited 35,817 409 14,649,153 32,561 457 14,880,377 
Lumbini General Insurance Co. Ltd. 25,761 430 11,077,230 25,761 550 14,168,550 
Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme 933,470 11 10,100,145 933,470 11 9,848,109 
Om Development Bank Ltd. 2,422 197 477,134 13,422 180 2,415,960 
Dev Bikas Bank Limited 8,630 146 1,259,980 8,537 129 1,101,273 
Century Commercial Bank Ltd. 24,024 177 4,252,248 23,553 169 3,980,457 
Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11 532 5,852  -  -  - 

Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 69,203 255 17,646,765 62,470 264 16,492,080 
National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 3,215 1,480 4,758,200 2,571 2,214 5,692,194 
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 4,910 343 1,684,130 2,739 555 1,520,145 
Suryodaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,499 793 1,188,707 1,050 1,550 1,627,500 
Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.  2,709 1,328 3,597,552 1,715 2,220 3,807,300 
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Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 652 1,130 736,760 407 1,380 561,660 
Synergy Power Development Ltd. 11,940 90 1,074,600 11,940 124 1,480,560 
United Modi Hydropower Ltd. 7,532 109 820,988 7,532 172 1,295,504 
Mahuli Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 209 947 197,923 543 2,610 1,417,240 
Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited 11,930 160 1,908,800 11,754 144 1,692,576 
Citizen Investment Trust 2,664 2,429 6,470,856 5,378 2,500 13,445,000 
Gandaki Bikas Bank Limited 7,274 216 1,571,184 2,274 205 66,170 
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 1,339,000 11 14,487,980 823,000 12 9,505,650 
Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 570 383 218,310 750 817 612,750 
Arambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 717 529 379,293 817 582 475,494 
Unnati Micorfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 797 800 637,600 516 1,840 949,440 
Nepal Seva Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.  -  -  - 450 343 154,350 
Rairang Hydropower Development Company Ltd.  -  -  - 933 148 138,084 
Laxmi Value Fund-1 314,816 10 3,211,123 300,000 10 3,075,000 
Nadep Laghubittiya bittya Sanstha Ltd. 2,530 412 1,042,360  -  -  - 

Kalika power Company Ltd 4,036 91 367,276  -  -  - 

Prabhu Bank Limited 102,999 266 27,397,734  -  -  - 

Siddhartha Equity Fund 24,550 10 247,710  -  -  - 

Chautari Laghubitta Bittya Sanstha Ltd 1,007 464 467,248  -  -  - 

Asha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 1,373 395 542,335  -  -  - 

Universal Power Co Ltd 2,975 89 264,775  -  -  - 

Neco Insurance Co. Ltd. 10,870 495 5,380,650  -  -  - 

Swabhimaan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 248 471 116,808  -  -  - 

Infinity Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 543 400 217,200  -  -  - 

Vijaya laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,007 485 488,395  -  -  - 

Swadeshi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11 578 6,358  -  -  - 

Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1 1,202 1,202  -  -  - 

Total   747,577,518   778,694,945 

Comparative Investment in Unlisted Shares

Name of Company

Asadh End 2076 Asadh End 2075

Unit
Price 

(NPR)

Amount

(NPR)
Unit

Price 

(NPR)

Amount

(NPR)

Samudayik Laghubitta - IPO - - - 938 100 93,800
SIL - Right Entitlement - - - 13,876 228 3,169,417
RSDC - Right entitlement - - - 2,949 266 785,171
Nadep Laghubitta - IPO - - - 1,200 385 462,168
NMB - FPO Issue - - - 25,000 358 8,950,000
SMATA - Right entitlement - - - 407 651 264,823
Panchakanya Mai - IPO - - - 3,056 125 381,205
NLICL - Right Entitlement - - - 18,609 418 7,780,981
Rashuwagadi Hydro - IPO 12,829 181 2,318,599 - - -

Sanjen Hydro - IPO 6,844 186 1,274,832 - - -

Janasewi Laghubitta - IPO 579 271 156,677 - - -

Ghodighoda Laghubitta - IPO 199 162 32,228 - - -

Aadhikhola Laghubitta - IPO 600 279 167,406 - - -

Sabaiko Laghubitta - IPO 795 249 197,581 - - -

Total   4,147,324   21,887,565
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5. Payables 

Accounting policy

5.1 Payables include liabilities and accrued expenses owing by the Fund which are unpaid as at the end of the 

reporting period. 

Explanatory notes

5.2 Accrued Expenses and Other Payables

Particulars 31st Asadh 2076 32nd Asadh 2075

NIBL Ace Capital Payable - 61,218
Reporting Expenses Payables 13,380 -

Advance Income -NBL FPO Underwriting Fees - 637,500

Allotment Refund Payable 2,589,075 2,589,075
Provision For Audit Fee 111,500 111,500
Provision For Reporting Exp 33,560 33,550
Provision for Realizable Tax on Dividend 1,072,979 1,072,979
TDS Liability 417,246 438,587
Fund Management Fee Payable - NIBL Ace Capital 9,060,820 9,563,354
Depository Fee Payables - NIBL Ace Capital 2,588,806 2,732,387
Supervisor Fee Payables 1,340,397 1,331,518
Supervisor Fee's commission to SEBON - 83,220
Unit Dividend Payables 12,035,488 12,790,718
Provision for CDS Fees 118,200 -

Total 29,381,450 31,445,606

Provision for realizable tax on dividend and TDS receivable represents amount of impairment booked on TDS receivable 

and Dividend receivable.

Fund management fee and depository fee includes fee payable to NIBL Ace Capital Limited for fund management and 

depository services.

During the financial year 2074/75, 12% dividend has been declared by the fund which has been recognized as liability in 
the financial year 2074/75. As on the reporting date NPR. 12,035,488 has been outstanding as dividend payable.
Details of unit dividend payable are as follows:

Particulars Amount (NPR)

Opening unpaid Dividend FY 2072/73 12,790,718
Dividend declared @ 12% for FY 2074/75 12,000,000
Less: Tds on dividend announced Balance 107,145,083 107,145,083
Total amount available for dividend distribution 119,935,801
Dividend paid out of FY 2047/75
paid to unit holders out of dividend of 2042/73 (755,230)
Less: Dividend transferred to NIBL Ace Capital Limited to be distributed to 

the unit holders of NIBSF 1 (107,145,083)

Closing unpaid dividend 12,035,488

6. Net Assets Attributable to Unit holders 

Unit holders’ funds have been calculated as the difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and the carrying 
amounts of the liabilities, other than those due to unit holders, as at the statement of financial position date.

The Fund Manager calculates the NAV per unit of the Scheme by deducting the Schemes’ expenses over market value 

of the total investment plus investment income divided by number of units on a weekly basis in accordance with the  

prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds and publishes the same on its official website: www.niblcapital.com. The 
said information is also shared with the Board members of the Fund Manager & the Fund Supervisors via e-mail. Further, 

the NAV per unit calculated on a monthly basis is published on a national daily newspaper and uploaded on the website of 

the Fund Manager with prior notification of the same forwarded to the Fund Supervisors & SEBON in writing.
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Each unit represents a right to an individual share in the Fund and does not extend to a right to the underlying assets of 

the Fund. There are no separate classes of units and each unit has the same rights attaching to it as all other units of 

the Fund. The Fund considers its net assets attributable to unit holders as capital (which includes unit capital, realized 

and unrealized gain), notwithstanding net assets attributable to unit holders are classified as a liability. The amount of net  
assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily changes in Market 
Price of Share at Nepal Stock Exchange.

   

Distribution to unit holders is recognized in the statement of changes in unit holders’ funds. Income not distributed is  

included in net assets attributable to unit holders.

Particular
For the Year Ended

on 31st Ashad 2076

For the Year Ended

on 32nd Ashad 2075

Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period 1,129,190,680 1,542,326,200
Increase / (Decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders
a. Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period 49,127,290 133,285,669
b. Other Comprehensive income 11,151,214 (366,421,189)
Distribution to Unit Holders' (120,000,000) (180,000,000)
Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period 1,069,469,184 1,129,190,680

7. Investment Income 

Accounting Policy

7.1 Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for all financial instruments that are not held at fair value through profit or 
loss using the effective interest method. Interest income on assets held at fair value through profit or loss is included in the 
net gains/ (losses) on financial instruments.
 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial instrument, or a 
shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective  
interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider  
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an  

integral part of the effective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
 

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date.

Explanatory notes

7.2 Interest Income

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Interest income on Debentures 4,185,000          3,415,000 
Interest income on Fixed deposit and call account 20,272,530        23,576,347 
Total Amount 24,457,530        26,991,347 

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Dividend Income Realized 18,458,637 18,109,880
Total 18,458,637 18,109,880

7.3 Dividend Income

8. Expenses 

All expenses, including management fees supervisor fees and depository fees, are recognized in profit or loss on accruals 
basis. 

The management participation fees of the fund are as follows: 
• Fund Management Fees: 1.75% of Net Assets Value (NAV)*
• Depository Fees: 0.5% of NAV *
• Fund Supervisor Fees: 0.30% of NAV *
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Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Fund Management Fee 18,132,447 20,923,032
Depository Fee 5,180,699 5,978,009
Fund Supervisor Fee 3,108,419 3,586,806

Total 26,421,565 30,487,847

 *NAV for this purpose is computed on the basis of half yearly average of weekly NAV or NAV of end of Half year,  

 whichever is lower.

 

Total Fund Management, Depository & Fund Supervisor’s Fees calculated on the basis of 366 days a year is presented in 
Nepalese currency and charged as under:

9. Income Tax 

Income Tax Act, 2058 has not specifically charged corporate tax liability on Mutual Fund Scheme. TDS is not applicable on 
withholding tax on interest, dividend income and gain on disposal of shares of Mutual Fund Scheme. Accordingly, Mutual 

Fund Scheme is not considered as tax-entity and corporate tax on Scheme is not considered.

10. Distributions 

The distributions, if any to unit holders are recognized in statement of changes in unitholders’ funds.

11. Financial Risk Management 

The Fund’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

The Fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on ensuring compliance with the Fund’s investment policy. It also 

seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed and seeks to minimize potential 

adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance.
 

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on long equity and debt securities 

is limited to the fair value of those positions.

 

The management of these risks is carried out by the NIBL Ace Capital, the fund management company. The fund  

supervisors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as 
interest rate risk, credit risk and non-derivative financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity.

The Fund uses different methods to measure and mitigate different types of risk to which it is exposed.
 

11.1. Market Risk 

a. Price Risk 

The Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which prices 

in the future are uncertain. Paragraph below sets out how this component of price risk is managed and measured.  

Investments are classified in the statement of financial position as at fair value through profit or loss and loans and 
receivables. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting from financial  
instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments.
 

The Fund’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial  
instruments within specified limits set by the management company.
 

All of the Fund’s equity investments in companies are listed in NEPSE. The Fund’s policy requires that the overall  

market position is monitored on a daily basis by the Fund Management Company.

Investment Threshold

As per the Mutual Fund Regulation, 2067 investment in bank deposit cannot be made more that 10% of total fund size 
of the scheme.

 

b. Foreign Exchange Rate Risk 

The Fund is not exposed to the fluctuations in exchange rates as all investments and transactions of the fund are made 
in investments denominated in NPR. 
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c. Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk 

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on financial instruments with variable interest rates.

Financial instruments with fixed rates expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. The Fund’s interest bearing  
financial assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest 
rates on its financial position and cash flows. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis.

The Fund has direct exposure to interest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities. However, it may also be indirectly affected by the impact of interest rate changes on the earnings of certain 
companies in which the Fund invests and impact on the valuation of certain assets that use interest rates as an input 

in their valuation model.

 

11.2. Credit Risk 

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The main concentration to which the Fund is exposed arises from the 

Fund’s investments in debt securities. However, there is no investment in debt securities.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other receivable balances. 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Management Company monitors the Fund’s credit position on a daily basis. The 

Fund can maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed. The table below is a summary of 

the significant sector concentrations within the equity portfolio.

Sector Value Cost
Proportionate

Exposure
Growth%

Commercial Banks 313,895,733 314,228,059 41.99% -0.11%
Development banks 40,374,577 34,561,929 5.40% 16.82%
Hotels 1,896,875 1,590,221 0.25% 19.28%
Finance companies 2,851,875 3,812,882 0.38% -25.20%
Hydro 56,770,983 94,745,381 7.59% -40.08%
Insurance companies 161,592,334 178,781,844 21.62% -9.61%
Telecom, Mutual Funds and Others 65,785,974 65,501,537 8.80% 0.43%
Microfinance 104,409,167 88,287,039 13.97% 18.26%

Total 747,577,518 781,508,892 100.00%  

Sector Value Cost
Proportionate

Exposure
Growth%

Commercial Banks 341,026,928 377,922,092 42.58% -9.76%
Development banks 45,778,797 43,513,654 5.72% 5.21%
Hotels 9,287,362 10,100,287 1.16% -8.05%
Finance companies 2,577,250 3,812,882 0.32% -32.41%
Hydro 68,841,226 97,083,641 8.60% -29.09%
Insurance companies 167,181,848 160,981,902 20.88% 3.85%
Telecom, Mutual Funds and Others 69,638,189 68,216,173 8.70% 2.08%
Microfinance 96,527,198 82,071,745 12.05% 17.61%

Total 800,858,798 843,702,375 100.00%  

For FY 2075/76:

For FY 2074/75:

11.3. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full 
as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

 

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable units. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its  

assets in investments that are traded in an active market or can be readily disposed.
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The Fund’s listed securities are considered readily realizable, as all are listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange.

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. No such borrowings have arisen during the 

period.

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Management Company monitors the Fund’s liquidity position on a regular basis.

 

12. Fair Value Measurement 

The Fund measures and recognizes the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis: 
The Fund has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in the current reporting period: 
NFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value hierarchy;
(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
 indirectly (level 2); and 
(c)  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).
 

i. Fair value in an active market (level 1) 

 The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the  
 end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

 

The Fund values its investments in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2 to the financial statements. 
For the majority of its investments, the Fund relies on information provided by independent pricing services for the  

valuation of its investments.

 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from 
NEPSE and are traded frequently.

ii. Fair value in an inactive or unquoted market (level 2 and level 3) 

 The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation  
 techniques.

Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 30 days is valued at 180 days Average Market price 
provided by NEPSE and Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 180 days is valued at last traded 
price of the stock at NEPSE considering it as level two input.

 

The Fair value of IPO Investments after allotment till listing, is valued applying the valuation model as specified below:  
I)   50% of the Latest Net worth Published by the Company.
II)  50% based on the Earnings Capitalization, based on the projections of the company by considering latest interest rate  
 of the Government Bonds after applicable tax deductions as discount factor which is considered as level 3 input.
 

After the book closure date and till the rights are listed, right entitlements are valued as difference between the right price 
and ex-right price. This is explained with the help of following formula:
Vr = n / m x (Pex – Pof)

Where

Vr = Value of Rights

n = Number of rights offered
m = Number of original shares held

Pex = Ex-right price

Pof = Rights offer price
Valuation of total Right Entitlement = Vr x No. of shares held before Ex- date

13. Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Debentures  50,000,000  33,000,000 
Fixed Deposit  100,000,000  100,000,000 

Total 150,000,000 133,000,000
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Note a:

The investment in debentures are recognized on cost. The maturity period of the debentures are 7 years. They are  
classified based on maturity period using the effective interest rate and classified as held to maturity. Interest on the  
debentures are recognized daily as per accrual basis. The interest are received on half yearly basis. The debentures 

are listed on the stock exchange. As there are no other associated costs, premium or discount the investment and the  

investment are settled with receiving the principal and interest the intrinsic coupon rate has been used as effective interest 
rate.

Note b:

The investment in fixed deposit are recognized on cost. The maturity period of the fixed deposits are not more than one 
year from the reporting date. They are classified based on maturity period using the effective interest rate and classified 
as held to maturity Interest on the fixed deposits are recognized daily as per accrual basis. The interest are received on 
quarterly and on maturity as per the deals executed with the banks. As there are no other associated costs, premium or 

discount the investment and the investment are settled with receiving the principal and interest the intrinsic coupon rate 

has been used as effective interest rate.

14. Net Gain/Losses on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
a. Accounting policy

Realized gain is the difference between the cost price and realized price on the sale of the shares after deducting the  
selling expenses.

Unrealized gain is the difference between the cost price and the closing market price available at the end of the reporting 
period or the latest trading price if the closing price as on the year end is not available.

b. Explanatory notes

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Net Realized Gains/(Losses) on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Profit or loss

28,973,485                  

119,277,358 
Net Unrealized Gains/(Losses) on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss

11,151,214               

(366,421,189)
Total 40,124,699        (247,143,831)

Computation of Unrealized Gains/loss for FY 2075/76:

Name of Company  Unit  Price  Amount  Cost  Total Cost  Gain/(Loss) 

 Swabalamban Bikas Bank Limited          1,289 875 1,127,875 639 824,140        303,735 
 Shangrila Development Bank Ltd.       17,446 159 2,773,914 138 2,414,827        359,087 
 Nepal Bank Limited       21,981 336 7,385,616 348 7,651,686 (266,070)
 Machhapuchhre Bank Limited       58,471 264 15,436,344 253 14,803,571        632,773 
 Siddhartha Bank Limited       27,145 318      8,632,110 280 7,588,085 1,044,025 
 Nepal Doorsanchar Comapany Limited       45,120 693 31,268,160 681 30,713,857        554,303 
 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.         1,500 448 672,000 466 698,977 (26,977)
 Siddhartha Insurance Ltd.       16,205 455 7,373,275 264 4,283,131 3,090,144 
 Global IME Bank Limited       42,138 295 12,430,710 280 11,806,389        624,321 
 Mega Bank Nepal Ltd.       89,569 213 19,078,197 221 19,770,041 (691,844)
 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd.       21,487 278 5,973,386 255 5,480,696        492,690 
 Agriculture Development Bank Limited         5,103 409 2,087,127 280 1,428,539        658,588 
 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.       19,153 771 14,766,963 851 16,291,920 (1,524,957)
 Sanima Bank Limited       34,368 348    11,960,064 314 10,781,454 1,178,610 
 Sagarmatha Insurance company limited         9,900 605 5,989,500 609 6,030,801 (41,301)
 Laxmi Bank Limited       20,493 226 4,631,418 242 4,965,875 (334,457)
 Rural Microfinance Development Centre Ltd.         9,340 661 6,173,740 540 5,046,524 1,127,216 
 NLG Insurance Company Ltd.       24,279 762 18,500,598 696 16,891,979 1,608,619 
 Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.         8,375 354 2,964,750 262 2,195,296        769,454 
 Everest Bank Limited       25,591 666 17,043,606 704 18,018,379 (974,773)
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 National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.       33,795 585 19,770,075 767 25,907,151 (6,137,076)
 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited       58,191 521    30,317,511 907 52,761,459 (22,443,948)
 Nabil Bank Limited       62,777 800 50,221,600 789 49,558,465        663,135 
 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited       27,751 222 6,160,722 279 7,733,056 (1,572,334)
 Sunrise Bank Limited       25,931 248 6,430,888 229 5,926,566        504,322 
 Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd.       42,380 370 15,680,600 332 14,070,372 1,610,228 
 Nerude Laghubitta Bikash Bank limited         4,780 470 2,246,600 540 2,579,330 (332,730)
 Life Insurance Co. Nepal         7,785 1,600 12,456,000 1,618 12,596,322 (140,322)
 Himalayan bank Limited       47,599 552 26,274,648 528 25,137,996 1,136,652 
 Nepal SBI Bank Limited       41,644 469 19,531,036 431 17,965,976 1,565,060 
 Asian Life Insurance Company limited       69,717 383    26,701,611 457 31,869,441 (5,167,830)
 Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd       25,878 350 9,057,300 560 14,483,488 (5,426,188)
 Garima Bikash Bank Limited       28,626 224 6,412,224 164 4,704,822 1,707,402 
 Nirdhan Utthan Bikash bank Limited        11,339 841 9,536,099 798 9,046,852        489,247 
 Standard Chartered Bank Limited         7,159 682 4,882,438 782 5,598,452 (716,014)
 Deprosc Development Bank Limited       21,045 722 15,194,490 773 16,269,326 (1,074,836)
 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd       34,214 948 32,434,872 905 30,960,361 1,474,511 
 Shine Resunga Development Bank       30,874 252 7,780,248 168 5,178,941 2,601,307 
 Goodwill Finance Company Limited        21,125 135 2,851,875 180 3,812,882 (961,007)
 Janata Bank Nepal Ltd.       23,387 214 5,004,818 190 4,438,420        566,398 
 Civil Bank Limited       50,407 158 7,964,306 203 10,218,320 (2,254,014)
 Kumari Bank Limited        26,727 220 5,879,940 201 5,375,293        504,647 
 Oreintal Hotels limited         3,125 607 1,896,875 509 1,590,221        306,654 
 Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited       22,523 950 21,396,850 801 18,050,544 3,346,306 
 NMB Bank Limited       70,466 382 26,918,012 362 25,539,833 1,378,179 
 Excel Development Bank Ltd.         8,871 283 2,510,493 348 3,085,860 (575,367)
 Womi Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.             11 1,128 12,408 1,054 11,589               819 
 Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd.       37,864 245 9,276,680 433   16,391,259 (7,114,579)
 Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.       30,582 901 27,554,382 918 28,084,081 (529,699)
 Butwal Power Company Limited       35,817 409 14,649,153 629 22,525,791 (7,876,638)
 Lumbini General Insurance Co. Ltd.       25,761 430    11,077,230 573 14,757,035 (3,679,805)
 Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme     933,470       11 10,100,145 11 10,524,617 (424,472)
 Om Development Bank Ltd.         2,422 197 477,134 172 415,398          61,736 
 Dev Bikas Bank Limited         8,630 146 1,259,980 148 1,279,079 (19,099)
Century Commercial Bank Ltd.       24,024 177 4,252,248 268 6,443,174 (2,190,926)
 Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.             11 532            5,852 567            6,232 (380)
 Bank of Kathmandu Ltd.       69,203 255 17,646,765 280 19,366,502 (1,719,737)
 National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.         3,215 1,480 4,758,200 67 214,200 4,544,000 
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.         4,910 343 1,684,130 289 1,416,962        267,168 
 Suryodaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.         1,499 793 1,188,707 59 88,701 1,100,006 
 Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya 
Sanstha Ltd.  

        2,709 1,328 3,597,552 867 2,347,929 1,249,623 

 Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            652 1,130 736,760 83 54,300        682,460 
 Synergy Power Development Ltd.       11,940 90 1,074,600 100 1,194,000 (119,400)
 United Modi Hydropower Ltd.         7,532 109 820,988 156 1,171,772 (350,784)
 Mahuli Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            209 947 197,923 65 13,596        184,327 
 Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited       11,930 160 1,908,800 165 1,965,338 (56,538)
 Citizen Investment Trust         2,664 2,429 6,470,856 1,970 5,249,239      1,221,617 
 Gandaki Bikas Bank Limited         7,274 216 1,571,184 199 1,447,292        123,892 
 NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1   1,339,000       11 14,487,980 12 15,517,499 (1,029,519)
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 Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            570 383 218,310 100 57,000        161,310 
 Arambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            717 529 379,293 100 71,700        307,593 
 Unnati Micorfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            797 800 637,600 75 59,600        578,000 
 Laxmi Value Fund-1     314,816 10      3,211,123 10 3,270,720 (59,597)
 Nadep Laghubittiya bittya Sanstha Ltd.         2,530 412 1,042,360 87 220,000        822,360 
 Kalika power Company Ltd          4,036 91 367,276 100 403,600 (36,324)
 Prabhu Bank Limited     102,999 266 27,397,734 271 27,932,317 (534,583)
 Siddhartha Equity Fund       24,550 10 247,710 9 225,605          22,105 
 Chautari Laghubitta Bittya Sanstha Ltd         1,007 464 467,248 100 100,700        366,548 
 Asha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd         1,373 395 542,335 100 137,300        405,035 
 UNIVERSAL POWER COMPANY LTD         2,975 89 264,775 100 297,500 (32,725)
 Neco Insurance Co. Ltd.       10,870 495 5,380,650 496 5,391,200 (10,550)
 Swabhimaan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited            248 471         116,808 100 24,800          92,008 
 Infinity Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited            543 400 217,200 100 54,300        162,900 
 Vijaya laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.         1,007 485 488,395 620 624,688 (136,293)
 Swadeshi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.             11 578            6,358 579            6,365                 (7)
 Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd               1 1,202            1,202        -                   -              1,202 
 Rashuwagadi Hydropower Company Ltd - IPO       12,829 181 2,318,599 100 1,282,900 1,035,699 
 Sanjen Jalabiddhyut Company Ltd - IPO         6,844 186 1,274,832 100 684,400        590,432 
 Janasewi Laghubitta- IPO            579 271 156,677 100 57,900          98,777 
 Ghodighoda Laghubitta- IPO            199 162 32,228 100 19,900          12,328 
 Aadhikhola Laghubitta- IPO            600 279 167,406 100 60,000        107,406 
 Sabaiko Laghubitta- IPO            795 249 197,581 100 79,500        118,081 

 Total   751,724,842  783,693,492 (31,968,650)

 Previous Year Unrealised gain/(loss)  (43,119,864)

 Unrealised Gain /(Loss) this year  11,151,214 

Computation of Unrealized Gains/loss for FY 2074/75:

Name of Company  Unit Price  Amount  Cost  Total Cost  Gain/(Loss) 

 Swabalamban Bikas Bank Limited             2,103 1,240 2,607,720 799 1,680,871 926,849 

 Shangrila Development Bank Ltd.          17,081 157 2,681,717 144 2,461,935 219,782 

 Nepal Bank Limited          26,981 281 7,581,661 337 9,091,086 (1,509,425)

 Machhapuchhre Bank Limited          69,645 209 14,555,805 253 17,632,504 (3,076,699)

 Siddhartha Bank Limited          55,859 300 16,757,700 271 15,113,621 1,644,079 

 Nepal Doorsanchar Comapany Limited          46,830 721 33,764,430 681 31,877,771 1,886,659 

 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.          41,381 316 13,076,396 391 16,188,673 (3,112,277)

 Siddhartha Insurance Ltd.            9,176 690 6,331,440 414 3,797,331 2,534,109 

 Global IME Bank Limited          25,697 290 7,452,130 320 8,229,778 (777,648)

 Citizen Bank International Limited            8,971 236 2,117,156 178 1,595,177 521,979 

 Mega Bank Nepal Ltd.          87,690 163 14,293,470 223 19,565,739 (5,272,269)

 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd.          48,651 287 13,962,837 272 13,247,067 715,771 

Agriculture Dev. Bank Limited          35,424 314 11,123,136 274 9,700,092 1,423,044 

 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.          19,336 985 19,045,960 855 16,526,159 2,519,801 

 Sanima Bank Limited          61,199 324 19,828,476 314 19,198,249 630,227 

 Sagarmatha Insurance company limited            5,875 1,340 7,872,500 1,111 6,524,471 1,348,029 

 Laxmi Bank Limited          25,833 258 6,664,914 263 6,792,117 (127,203)

 Rural Microfinance Development Centre Ltd.            6,673 653 4,357,469 588 3,922,758 434,711 

 NLG Insurance Company Ltd.          14,996 930 13,946,280 613 9,198,309 4,747,971 
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 Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.            7,681 658 5,054,098 368 2,823,106 2,230,992 

 Everest Bank Limited          31,762 663 21,058,206 704 22,363,218 (1,305,012)

 National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.          18,609 799 14,868,591 1,332 24,790,551 (9,921,960)

 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited          48,492 790 38,308,680 1,088 52,761,359 (14,452,679)

 Nabil Bank Limited          23,996 921 22,100,316 1,089 26,142,448 (4,042,132)

 NABIL Bank Limited Promotor Share          39,314 687 27,008,718 731 28,719,380 (1,710,662)

 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited          36,751 214 7,864,714 279 10,240,996 (2,376,282)

 Sunrise Bank Limited          42,585 230 9,794,550 229 9,732,837 61,713 

 Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd.          37,856 378 14,309,568 392 14,839,206 (529,638)

 Nerude Laghubitta Bikash Bank limited            3,720 637 2,369,640 622 2,312,294 57,346 

 Life Insurance Co. Nepal            8,076 1,622 13,099,272 1,812 14,635,040 (1,535,768)

 Himalayan bank Limited          46,855 551 25,817,105 555 25,983,004 (165,899)

 Nepal SBI Bank Limited          44,423 499 22,167,077 453 20,123,076 2,044,001 

 Asian Life Insurance Company limited          43,573 683 29,760,359 671 29,255,041 505,318 

 Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited           8,260 274 2,263,240 267 2,208,231 55,009 

 Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank limited          17,203 250 4,300,750 386 6,642,986 (2,342,236)

 Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd 25,878 450 11,645,100 560 14,483,488 (2,838,388)

 Garima Bikash Bank Limited          46,350 182 8,435,700 181 8,379,687 56,013 

 Nirdhan Utthan Bikash bank Limited             9,449 1,024 9,675,776 957 9,046,852 628,924 

 Standard Chartered Bank Limited 14,912 755 11,258,560 782 11,661,405 (402,845)

 Deprosc Development Bank Limited          18,677 750 14,007,750 851 15,900,730 (1,892,980)

 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd          27,371 1,160 31,750,360 1,131 30,960,361 789,999 

 Shine Resunga Development Bank          28,009 271 7,590,439 186 5,206,244 2,384,195 

 Kailash Bikash Bank Limited          18,312 229 4,193,448 195 3,561,715 631,733 

 Goodwill Finance Company Limited           21,125 122 2,577,250 180 3,812,882 (1,235,632)

 Janata Bank Nepal Ltd.          31,387 157 4,927,759 190 5,956,660 (1,028,901)

 Civil Bank Limited          45,721 153 6,995,313 223 10,218,320 (3,223,007)

 Kumari Bank Limited           46,080 199 9,169,920 234 10,775,859 (1,605,939)

 Oreintal Hotels limited          13,482 521 7,024,122 585 7,892,056 (867,934)

 Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited          14,888 877 13,056,776 979 14,575,285 (1,518,509)

 NMB Bank Limited          32,759 358 11,727,722 559 18,310,194 (6,582,472)

 Excel Development Bank Ltd.            8,871 326 2,891,946 348 3,085,860 (193,914)

 Womi Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.                    1 1,385 1,385 104 104 1,281 

 Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd.          34,422 328 11,290,416 476 16,391,259 (5,100,843)

 Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.          19,466 1,050 20,439,300 1,243 24,191,172 (3,751,872)

 National Hydro Power Company Limited          12,400 86 1,066,400 213 2,640,459 (1,574,059)

 Butwal Power Company Limited          32,561 457 14,880,377 692 22,525,791 (7,645,414)

 Lumbini General Insurance Co. Ltd.          25,761 550 14,168,550 573 14,757,035 (588,485)

 Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme       933,470 11 9,848,109 11 10,524,617 (676,509)

Om Dev.Bank Ltd. 13,422 180 2,415,960 172 2,301,898 114,062

 Dev Bikas Bank Limited            8,537 129 1,101,273 150 1,279,079 (177,806)

Century Commercial Bank Ltd.          23,553 169 3,980,457 274 6,443,174 (2,462,717)

 Bank of Kathmandu Ltd.          62,470 264 16,492,080 319 19,929,909 (3,437,829)

 National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            2,571 2,214 5,692,194 83 214,200 5,477,994 

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            2,739 555 1,520,145 458 1,254,392 265,753 
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 Suryodaya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.            1,050 1,550 1,627,500 84 88,700 1,538,800 

 Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Ltd.  

           1,715 2,220 3,807,300 922 1,581,274 2,226,026 

 Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 407 1,380 561,660 83 33,900 527,760 

 Synergy Power Development Ltd.          11,940 1,480,560 100 1,194,000 286,560 

 United Modi Hydropower Ltd.            7,532 172 1,295,504 156 1,171,772 123,732 

 Mahuli Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 543 2,610 1,417,240 61 32,900 1,384,340 

 Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited          11,754 144 1,692,576 167 1,965,338 (272,762)

 Citizen Investment Trust            5,378 2,500 13,445,000 2,405 12,933,934 511,066 

 Gandaki Bikas Bank Limited            2,274 205 466,170 190 432,642 33,528 

 NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1       823,000 12 9,505,650 12 9,760,287 (254,637)

 Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 750 817 612,750 100 75,000 537,750 

 Arambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 817 582 475,494 100 81,700 393,794 

 Unnati Micorfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 516 1,840 949,440 100 51,600 897,840 

 Nepal Seva Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 450 343 154,350 100 45,000 109,350 

 Rairang Hydropower Development Company Ltd. 933 148 138,084 100 93,300 44,784 

 Laxmi Value Fund-1       300,000 10 3,075,000 10 3,119,463 (44,463)

 Samudayik Laghubitta-IPO            938 100 93,800 100 93,800 -   

SIL -Right Entitlement       13,876 228 3,169,417          -   -   3,169,417 

 RSDC -Right entitlement         2,949 266 785,171          -   -   785,171 

 Nadep Laghubitta-IPO         1,200 385 462,168 100 120,000 342,168 

 NMB-FPO Issue       25,000 358 8,950,000 333 8,325,000 625,000 

 SMATA -Right entitlement            407 651 264,823          -   -   264,823 

 Panchakanya Mai-IPO         3,056 125 381,205 100 305,600 75,605 

 NLICL -Right Entitlement       18,609 418 7,780,981          -   -   7,780,981 

 Total   800,582,511  843,702,375 (43,119,864)

15. Impairment

Accounting policy

The fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of 

the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or group of financial assets.

16. Related Party Transactions

(As identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors)
Related Parties

a. Fund Sponsor: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
b. Fund Manager and Depository: NIBL Ace Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Sponsor.
c. Shareholders holding substantial interest in the Fund Manager: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
d. Subsidiaries of Major Shareholders of Fund Manager with whom the Fund transacted: None

The Scheme has entered into transactions with related parties which are required to be disclosed in accordance with 

Accounting Standard - on 'Related Party Disclosures'.

• Unit Holding of Nepal Investment Bank Limited (Fund Sponsor) amounts to NPR 140,000,000 (at par value of NPR  
 10 per unit)
• Unit Holding of NIBL Ace Capital Limited (Fund Management) amounts to NPR 10,000,000 (at par value of NPR 10 per 
 unit)

• NIBL Samriddhi Fund -1 have earned interest amounting to NPR. 211,445 (NPR. Two Hundred Eleven Thousand 
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 As per our Report of even dateOn Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

Four  Hundred Forty Five only) from Nepal Investment Bank Limited. 

• Fund Management and Depository Fee incurred by NIBL Samriddhi Fund -1 during the year amounts to NPR 23,313,146 

 (NPR. Twenty Three Million Three Hundred Thirteen Thousand One Hundred and Forty Six only). The amount is  
 payable to NIBL Ace Capital Limited. 

• Fund Management and Depository Fee payable by NIBL Samriddhi Fund -1 to NIBL Ace Capital Limited NPR 11,649,625  
 (NPR. Eleven Million Six Hundred Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Five only).

• The Scheme has a call account bank balance of NPR 1,389,454 (NPR. One Million Three Hundred Eighty Nine  
 Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Four only) as on Balance Sheet date with the Fund Sponsor - Nepal Investment  

 Bank Limited.

• Depository Fee for transaction expenses NPR 100 (NPR. One Hundred only) has been paid to NIBL Ace Capital  
 Limited during the year.

17. Reporting

The Fund Manager has been reporting its Fund Management Activities to its Board and the Fund Supervisor on regular 

basis while the statutory reports are also forwarded in line with the prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds.

18. Contingent Liability

There is no contingent liability in respect of underwriting commitments, uncalled liability on partly paid shares and other 

commitments.

19. Proposed Dividend

6.5% Dividend (including tax) has been proposed by the Board of Directors for the fiscal year 2075/76 which amounts to 
NPR 6,50,00,000  (Six Crore Fifty Lakh Only).
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NIBL Pragati Fund, is another closed end mutual fund scheme with a corpus of NPR 750 million. Nepal  
Investment Bank Limited is the fund sponsor for this mutual fund scheme.  The main objective of this scheme is 

to generate returns by investing only in the equity market as allowed by prevailing rules/regulations on mutual 
fund. The mutual fund has a maturityof 7 years from the date of allotment of its units.

Fund Supervisor

Name Background

Mr. Madhukar SJB Rana Masters in economics with more than 46 years of experience in teaching 
profession and economist.

Dr.Bimal Prasad Koirala PHD in economics with more than 30 years of experience in various 
government administration, industries and economic sector.

Dr.Shambhu  Ram Simkhada
PHD International relation with more than 28 years of experience on 
various national and international organizations.

Dr.Durgesh Man Singh PHD in Economics and expert in financial and political sector.

CA Jitendra Bahadur Raj Bhandary Chartered accountants with more than 36 years of experience in the field 
of auditing.

NIBL PRAGATI FUND

NIBL MUTUAL FUND
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NIBL Pragati Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital  Limited.)

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July, 2019)
NPR

Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2  53,086,601  25,221,992 
Loans & Receivables 4.6  208,136  10,463,059 
Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7  575,062,076  556,891,990 

Total  628,356,813  592,577,041 

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2  7,278,194  6,836,682 
Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders)  7,278,194  6,836,682 

Unit Holder's Funds

Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6  621,078,619  585,740,359 
Total  628,356,813  592,577,041 

NAV per Unit                                                                           8.28                  7.81

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital  Limited

(Fund Management Company) 

As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande                         

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076/05/12
Place : Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head-Mutual Fund  

Bandana Thapa 

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

S. R. Pandey, FCA

Senior Partner

For: S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position



Seventh Annual Report 2018/19

88

NIBL Pragati Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital  Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

Particulars Notes FY2075/76  FY 2074/75 

Income

Interest Income 7.2  1,457,140  4,514,231 
Dividend Income 7.3  10,789,087  4,822,207 
"Net Profit/(Loss) on Financial Assets Held at Fair Value through Profit and Loss" 13(b)  37,820,314 (185,109,867)
Other Income  10,439  12,602 
Total  50,076,980 (175,760,828)

Expenses and Losses

Pre-operating expenses  -    -   

Fund Management fees 8,857,889  9,550,127 
Depositary Fees 2,952,630  3,183,376 
Fund Supervisors Fees 1,771,578  1,910,025 
Publication Expenses 184,890  173,767 
Listing Fees 50,000  50,000 
Audit Fees 113,000  113,000 
Bank Charges 6,765  12,380 
DP Expense 100  2,525 
NAV Certification fee  -    -   

CDS Dematerialisation Registration Fee 240,000  120,000 
Annual Service Charges on Software 31,075  62,150 
Other Expenses 530,795  43,663 
Total expenses  14,738,720  15,221,013 

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders  35,338,260 (190,981,840)

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital  Limited

(Fund Management Company) 

As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande                         

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076/05/12
Place : Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head-Mutual Fund  

Bandana Thapa 

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

S. R. Pandey, FCA

Senior Partner

For: S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Pragati Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital  Limited.)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital  Limited

(Fund Management Company) 

As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande                         

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076/05/12
Place : Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head-Mutual Fund  

Bandana Thapa 

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

S. R. Pandey, FCA

Senior Partner

For: S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Particulars  FY 2075/76  FY 2074/75 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year  35,338,260  (190,981,840)
Adjustments for:
Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for trading purposes  (28,828,271)  197,059,686 
Increase/(Decrease) in  Liabilities  441,512  (3,669,556)
(Increase)/Decrease in Share  10,658,185  (192,529,685)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  10,254,923  (5,059,230)
Net cash generated/(used) in Operations (1)  27,864,609  (195,180,626)

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Increase/(Decrease) in Unit Capital  -    -   

Dividend Paid during the year (net of tax)

Net cash generated/(used) in financing (2)  -    -   

C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities  -    -   

Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3)  -    -   

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3)  27,864,609  (195,180,626)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period  25,221,992  220,402,618 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period  53,086,601  25,221,992 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks  53,086,601  25,221,992 
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NIBL Pragati Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital  Limited.)

Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' fund

For the Period from 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Asadh 2076 (16th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

Particulars
For the year Ended  

on 31st Ashad 2076

For the year Ended  

on 32nd Ashad 2075

Units Holders' Fund at the beginning of the Year/Period  585,740,359  776,722,199 
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders  35,338,260  (190,981,840)
Distribution to Unit Holders  -    -   

Units Holders' Fund at the end of the Year/Period  621,078,619  585,740,359

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital  Limited

(Fund Management Company) 

As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande                         

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076/05/12
Place : Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head- Mutual Fund  

Bandana Thapa 

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

S. R. Pandey, FCA

Senior Partner

For: S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of Ashad End 2076 (16th July 2019)
1. General Information of the Scheme

Fund: NIBL Mutual Fund

Scheme: NIBL Pragati Fund

Fund Sponsor:
Nepal Investment Bank Limited (NIBL)

(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management:
NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors:

Mr. Madhukar S.J.B.Rana
Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada

Dr. Durgesh Man Singh

CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari
Total Units of Scheme:   75,000,000 (Seventy-five million units)
Total Unit Capital: NPR 750,000,000 (NPR Seven hundred fifty Million)
Scheme type: Close-ended

NIBL Pragati Fund (the Scheme) under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations, 2067 
as a closed-end, diversified investment scheme. The objective of the Fund is to diligently manage the fund with the aim 
to achieve high return for unit holders, growth of both capital and income from investment in shares and conservation of 

capital. The Scheme commenced its operation on 27 Poush 2073 (Scheme allotment date) B.S. with maturity period of 
7 years (i.e. 26 Poush 2080 B.S.)  It was listed in NEPSE on 6th Chaitra, 2073. The Scheme’s Financial Statements for 
the year 2075/76 were approved by the Board of Directors of the NIBL Ace Capital Limited on 12th Bhadra 2076 being 
the Fund Management and Depository Company. Similarly, the Fund Supervisors’ consent on the approved Financial  

Statements has also been duly obtained.

Nepal Investment Bank Limited (NIBL) is the Fund Sponsor and NIBL Ace Capital Limited (NIBL Ace Capital), a subsidiary 

of NIBL duly licensed by Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON), has been appointed as the Fund Manager of the Scheme by 
the Sponsor after obtaining due approval from SEBON. Further, the Fund Manager is also providing Depository services 
to the unit holders of the Scheme in line with the prevailing regulations on mutual fund.

 

The Unit Capital of the Scheme comprises of the following:

Holder Status No. of Units
Holding Amount @ 

10 Each
Holding (%)

Nepal Investment Bank Fund Sponsor 10,250,000 102,500,000 13.66
NIBL Ace Capital Limited Fund Manager / Depository 1,000,000 10,000,000 1.34
General Public 63,750,000 637,500,000 85

Total 75,000,000 750,000,000 100

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees, rounded to the nearest Rupee. The Financial Statements 

have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). Further the financial statements are 
in compliance with Securities Act, 2063 and its regulation and other relevant laws.

2.2. Basis of Preparation

The fund while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment as having potentially material 

impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole 
along with the judgments made are described herein. 
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Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that relevant note. 
NFRS requires the fund to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates.  Description of such estimates has been 

given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and liabilities.
 

The statement of financial position is presented on liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in decreasing order 
of liquidity. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for investments in financial 
assets and net assets attributable to unit holders.

 

2.3. Reporting Pronouncements

The fund has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on  
September 13, 2013. NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as  
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

 

2.4. Accounting Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
  

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judgments as 
required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically. 

2.5. New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective
NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments has been issued but is not effective until further notified.  For the reporting of financial 
instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements 
and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied.
 

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after 

the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.  Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them 
within NFRS.

 

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments, will arise as a result 
of application of NFRS 9. 

2.6. Presentation

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees.
  

For presentation of the statement of financial position assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into current and non- cur-
rent distinction.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method.
 

The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the indirect method.

2.7. Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the fund.

 

2.8. Accounting Policies and accounting estimates

The fund, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and  

operating environment.  Further the fund is required to make judgement in respect of items where the choice of specific 
policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be 
determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements.
 

NFRS requires the fund to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.
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The fund applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates and underlying  
assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the  

estimates is revised and are applied prospectively.

 

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates 

have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next  
financial year. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including  
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

 

2.9. Financial Periods

The fund follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.
 

2.10. Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

2.11. Limitation of NFRS implementation 

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS  
implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounting policy

3.1. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at 
bank.  

Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified as cash flows from operating 
activities, as movements in the fair value of these securities represent the Fund’s main income generating activity. 

Explanatory notes

3.2. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are representative of their fair values as at the respective 

reporting date

Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075

Cash at Bank                 53,086,601  25,221,992
Total 53,086,601  25,221,992

4. Financial Instruments 

Accounting policy

4.1 The Fund’s principal financial assets comprise assets held at fair value through profit and loss, assets measured at 
amortized cost, loans and receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the 
investment made by unit holders. The Funds’ principal financial liabilities comprise accrued expenses and other payables 
which arise directly from its operations.

 

In accordance with NFRS 39; Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the Fund’s interest receivables are 
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Equity securities / debentures are classified as fair value through profit and loss. The 
amount attributable to unit holders is classified as equity and is carried at the redemption amount being net asset value. 
Payables are designated as ‘other financial liabilities’ at amortized cost.

4.2 Classification 
The Fund’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, fair value at amortized cost and loans and  
receivables. They comprise:
 

Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Financial assets, held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are 
recognized through profit or loss. This classification includes quoted equity securities held for trading. The dividend income 
from the quoted equity securities is recorded in the profit or loss. 
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Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable.

4.3 Recognition / De- recognition 

The Fund recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual agreement 
(trade date) and recognizes changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities from this date.

Investments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or expired.

Realized gains and realized losses on de-recognition are determined using the weighted average method and are included 

in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The realized gain is the difference between an instrument’s weighted 
average cost and disposal amount.

 

4.4 Measurement 

a. Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
At initial recognition, the Fund measures a financial asset at its fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss’ category is presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net gains/(losses) on 
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.

 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is subsequently based on their quoted market prices 
at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. The quoted market price used 

for financial assets held by the Fund is the closing price.
 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation  
techniques.

 

b. Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 

Financial assets at this category are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently amortized  

using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses if any. Such assets are reviewed at the end of each  
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

If evidence of impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognized on a financial asset carried at amortized cost  
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down is  

reversed through profit or loss.
 

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trade receivables. Dividends are accrued when the right to 

receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of each reporting period from the time of last payment in 

accordance with the policy set out in note 2(6) above.

Receivable are recognized and carried at amortized cost, less a provision for any uncollectable debts. An estimate for 

doubtful debt is made when collection of an amount is no longer probable.

 

Recoverability of receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an individual portfolio level, Individual debts that are known 

to be uncollectable are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognized when there is objective evidence 
that the Fund will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments are considered 
objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the 

present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
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4.5 Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Explanatory note

4.6 Loans and Receivables-current

Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075

Dividend Income Receivable                       80,788  118,456 
Broker Receivables -    9,153,455 
IPO Advance -   -   

RSDC Right -    165,000 
SIL Right -    878,400 
SAMATA Right -    20,400 
TDS Receivables 127,347  127,347 

Total Amount 208,136 10,463,059 

Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Equity Security          575,062,076  556,891,990
Total Financial Assets held for Trading (A)          575,062,076  556,891,990

Designated Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -

Total Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (B) - -

Total Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (A+B) 575,062,076 556,891,990

4.7 Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Comparative Investment in Listed Shares

Name of Company

Asadh End 2076 Asadh End 2075

Unit
Price 

(NPR)

Amount 

(NPR)
Unit

Price 

(NPR)

Amount 

(NPR)

Himalayan Bank Limited 32,392 552 17,880,384 30,850.00 551 16,998,350 
Bank of Kathmandu Limited 36,161 255 9,221,055 31,720.00 264 8,374,080 
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 5,757 264 1,519,848 17,848.00 209 3,730,232 
Siddhartha Bank Limited 48,273 318 15,350,814 44,022.00 300 13,206,600 
Prime Commercial Bank Limited 38,996 278 10,840,888 41,918.00 287 12,030,466 
Citizens Bank International Limited 33,454 224 7,493,696 32,290.00 236 7,620,440 
Sunrise Bank Limited 39,655 248 9,834,440 39,655.00 230 9,120,650 
Sanima Bank Limited 43,513 348 15,142,524 40,513.00 324 13,126,212 
NIC Asia Bank Limited 2,150 448 963,200 16,685.00 316 5,272,460 
Nepal Bank Limited 88,471 336 29,726,256 45,539.00 281 12,796,459 
NABIL Bank Limited Promotor Share             -   -   32,373.00 687 22,240,251 
Global IME Bank Limited 42,781 295 12,620,395 32,370.00 290 9,387,300 
Nepal SBI Bank Limited 40,977 469 19,218,213 39,026.00 499 19,473,974 
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited 5,033 222 1,117,326 34,393.00 214 7,360,102 
NMB Bank Limited 8,989 382 3,433,798 4,400.00 358 1,575,200 
Laxmi Bank Limited 32,846 226 7,423,196 38,713.00 258 9,987,954 
Agricultural Development Bank Limited 23,344 409 9,547,696 40,969.00 314 12,864,266 
Century Commercial Bank Limited 12,818 177 2,268,786 14,527.00 169 2,455,063 
Everest Bank Limited 30,181 666 20,100,546 35,361.00 663 23,444,343 
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Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited -             -   -   1,765.00 755 1,332,575 
Kumari Bank Limited 27,564 220 6,064,080 33,471.00 199 6,660,729 
Janata Bank Nepal Limited -             -   -   12,000.00 157 1,884,000 
Mega Bank Nepal Limited 15,510 213 3,303,630 18,990.00 163 3,095,370 
Prabhu Bank Limited 43,623 266 11,603,718 -             -   -   

Nabil Bank Limited 34,258 800 27,406,400 -             -   -   

Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited 33,678 252 8,486,856 27,674.00 271 7,499,654 
Garima Bikas Bank Limited 40,143 224 8,992,032 36,494.00 182 6,641,908 
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited 49,764 370 18,412,680 42,084.00 378 15,907,752 
Kailash Bikas Bank Limited 27,500 238 6,545,000 27,500.00 229 6,297,500 
Shangrila Development Bank Limited 6,464 159 1,027,776 6,215.00 157 975,755 
Excel Development Bank Limited 16,762 283 4,743,646 16,762.00 326 5,464,412 
Oriental Hotel Limited 9,328 607 5,662,096 16,275.00 521 8,479,275 
Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited                                   -   -   4,330.00 274 1,186,420 
Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited 29,878 245 7,320,110 27,162.00 328 8,909,136 
Chilime Hydro power Company Limited 3,356 521 1,748,476 1,946.00 790 1,537,340 
Butwal Power Company Limited 11,022 409 4,507,998 10,020.00 457 4,579,140 
United Modi Hydropower Limited 6,361 109 693,349 6,361.00 172 1,094,092 
Kalika Power company limited 4,036 91 367,276 -             -   -   

Panchakanya Mai Hydropower Limited 3,056 110 336,160 -             -   -   

United Hydropower company limited 2,975 89 264,775 -             -   -   

Rairang Hydropower Development Company Limited. -             -   -   833.00 148 123,284 
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 63,316 383 24,250,028 39,572.00 683 27,027,676 
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited 20,800 350 7,280,000 20,800.00 450 9,360,000 
Lumbini General Insurance Limited 8,410 430 3,616,300 8,410.00 550 4,625,500 
Siddhartha Insurance Limited 39,126 455 17,802,330 25,097.00 690 17,316,930
NLG Insurance Company Limited 17,108 762 13,036,296 16,338.00 930 15,194,340 
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 26,601 901 23,967,501 14,781.00 1050 15,520,050 
National Life Insurance Company Limited 40,496 585 23,690,160 22,299.00 799 17,816,901 
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited 15,267 771 11,770,857 15,267.00 985 15,037,995 
Life Insurance Corporation Nepal Limited 6,070 1600 9,712,000 5,866.00 1622 9,514,652 
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited 5,580 605 3,375,900 3,000.00 1340 4,020,000 
Nepal Insurance Company Limited 2,475 354 876,150 5,000.00 658 3,290,000 
Neco Insurance Company Limited 4,673 495 2,313,135    

Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 21,915 693 15,187,095 21,915.00 721 15,800,715 
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 659,289 10.82 7,133,507 362,289.00 11.55 4,184,438 
Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme 272,400 10.82 2,947,368 272,400.00 10.55 2,873,820 
Laxmi Value Fund-1 145,438 10.2 1,483,468 50,000.00 10.25 512,500 
Siddhartha Equity Fund 84,150 10.09 849,074 -             -   -   

Laxmi Equity Fund 20,400 7.63 155,652 -             -   -   

NMB Hybrid Fund L1 94,524 10.03 948,076 -             -   -   

Sanima Equity Fund 33,000 9.4 310,200 -             -   -   

RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 11,310 661 7,475,910 10,282.00 653 6,714,146 
Sana Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 12,221 948 11,585,508 9,777.00 1160 11,341,320 
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 20,950 950 19,902,500 15,754.00 877 13,816,258 
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 14,408 841 12,117,128 12,007.00 1024 12,295,168 
Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 840 1328 1,115,520 672.00 2220 1,491,840 
Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 652 1130 736,760 407.00 1380 561,660 
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Nerude Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 11,649 470 5,475,030 10,129.00 637 6,452,173 
Swadeshi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 578 578 -             -   -   

Mahuli Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 950 947 899,650 643.00 2610 1,678,230 
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 4,840 343 1,660,120 2,750.00 555 1,526,250 
Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 530 383 202,990 750.00 817 612,750 
Aarambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 717 529 379,293 817.00 582 475,494 
Unnati Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 797 800 637,600 516.00 1840 949,440 
Nepal Sewa Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 450 382 171,900 450.00 343 154,350 
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 10,402 722 7,510,244 9,456.00 750 7,092,000 
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 9,246 875 8,090,250 7,397.00 1240 9,172,280 
Nadep Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2,530 412 1,042,360 -             -   -   

Samudiyak Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 387 532 205,884 -             -   -   

Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1,007 464 467,248 -             -   -   

Asha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1,372 395 541,940 -             -   -   

Support Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 745 471 350,895 -             -   -   

Infinity Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2,047 400 818,800 -             -   -   

Total   563,282,323   529,161,620 

Comparative Investment in Unlisted Shares

Name of Company

Asadh End 2076 Asadh End 2075

Unit
Price 

(NPR)

Amount 

(NPR)
Unit

Price 

(NPR)

Amount 

(NPR)

Rashuwaghadi Hydropower Company Limited 38,486 180.73 6,955,575           -             -             -   

Sanjen Jalabiddhyut Company Limited 20,531 186.27 3,824,309           -             -             -   

Janasewi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited 1,738 270.6 470,302.8           -             -             -   

Ghodighoda Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 265 161.95 42,916.75           -             -             -   

Aadhikhola Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited 800 279.01 223,208           -             -             -   

Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1,060 248.53 263,441.8           -             -             -   

NMB bank Limited-FPO -             -             -   30,000 358 10,740,000
Panchakanya Mai Hydropower Company Limited-IPO -             -             -   3,056 124.74 3,81,205
NAtional Life insurance Company Limited-Right Entitlement -             -             -   22,299 418.13 9,323,881
Siddhartha insurance Company Limited -Right Entitlement -             -             -   25,097 228.41 5,732,406
Samudayik Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited-IPO -             -             -   937 100 93,700
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited -Right entitlement -             -             -   2750 266.25 732,187
Nadep Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-IPO -             -             -   1200 385.14 462,168
SMATA Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited -Right entitlement -             -             -   407 650.67 264,822.7

Total   11,779,753   27,730,370

5. Payables 

Accounting policy

5.1 Payables include liabilities and accrued expenses owing by the Fund which are unpaid as at the end of the 

reporting period. 

Explanatory notes
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Particulars 31 st Asadh 2076 32nd Asadh 2075

Software Fee Payable                     118,200                    30,609 
Reporting Expenses Payables                       47,832                    33,560 
Audit Fee Payable                     111,500                  111,500 
TDS Liability 231,280                  217,939 
Provision for Realizable Tax on Dividend                          5,975                      5,975 
Brokers Payable                              -                      29,908 
Fund Management Fee Payables 4,491,206               4,254,663 
Depository Fee Payable                  1,497,069               1,418,221 
Supervisor Fee Payable 775,132                  691,113 
Supervisor Fee's Commission to SEBON                               -                      43,195 

Total                  7,278,194               6,836,682 

5.2 Accrued Expenses and Other Payables

Provision for realizable tax on dividend and TDS receivable represents amount of impairment booked on TDS receivable 

and Dividend receivable.

Fund management fee and depository fee includes fee payable to NIBL Ace Capital Limited for fund management and 

depository services.

6. Net Assets Attributable to Unit holders 

Unit holders’ funds have been calculated as the difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and the carrying 
amounts of the liabilities, other than those due to unit holders, as at the statement of financial position date.
 

The Fund Manager calculates the NAV per unit of the Scheme by deducting the Schemes’ expenses over market value 

of the total investment plus investment income divided by number of units on a weekly basis in accordance with the  

prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds and publishes the same on its official website: www.niblcapital.com. The 
said information is also shared with the Board members of the Fund Manager & the Fund Supervisors via e-mail. Further, 

the NAV per unit calculated on a monthly basis is published on a national daily newspaper and uploaded on the website of 

the Fund Manager with prior notification of the same forwarded to the Fund Supervisors & SEBON in writing.
 

Each unit represents a right to an individual share in the Fund and does not extend to a right to the underlying assets of 

the Fund. There are no separate classes of units and each unit has the same rights attaching to it as all other units of the 

Fund.  The Fund considers its net assets attributable to unitholders as capital (which includes unit capital, realized and 

unrealized gain), notwithstanding net assets attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability. The amount of net assets 
attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily changes in Market Price 
of Share at Nepal Stock Exchange.

  

Distribution to unit holders is recognized in the statement of changes in unit holders’ funds. Income not distributed is  

included in net assets attributable to unit holders.

7. Investment Income 

Accounting Policy

7.1 Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for all financial instruments that are not held at fair value through profit or 
loss using the effective interest method. Interest income on assets held at fair value through profit or loss is included in the 
net gains/ (losses) on financial instruments.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial instrument, or a 
shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective  
interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider  
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an  

integral part of the effective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 
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Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date.

Explanatory notes

7.2 Interest Income 

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Interest on Bank Deposits 1,457,140  4,514,231 
Total 1,457,140  4,514,231 

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Dividend Income Realized 10,789,087  4,822,207 
Total 10,789,087  4,822,207 

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Fund Management Fee 8,857,889  9,550,127 
Depository Fee 2,952,630  3,183,376 
Fund Supervisor Fee 1,771,578  1,910,025 

Total 13,582,096  14,643,528 

7.3 Dividend Income

8. Expenses 

All expenses, including management fees supervisor fees and depository fees, are recognized in profit or loss on accruals 
basis.

The management participation fees of the fund are as follows: 
• Fund Management Fees: 1.5% of Net Assets Value (NAV)*.
• Depository Fees: 0.5% of NAV *
• Fund Supervisor Fees: 0.3% of NAV *
* NAV for this purpose is computed on the basis of half yearly average of weekly Gross NAV or Gross NAV at the end of 

Half year, whichever is lower.

  

Total Fund Management, Depository & Fund Supervisor’s Fees calculated on the basis of 365 days a year is presented in 
Nepalese currency and charged as under:

9. Income Tax 

Income Tax Act, 2058 has not specifically charged corporate tax liability on Mutual Fund Scheme. TDS is not applicable on 
withholding tax on interest, dividend income and gain on disposal of shares of Mutual Fund Scheme. Accordingly, Mutual 

Fund Scheme is not considered as tax-entity and corporate tax on Scheme is not considered. However, the Office of the 
Auditor’s General in its 56th Annual Report has raised concern on taxability of the mutual fund. TDS on return from mutual 
fund (ie; dividend) paid to individual is deducted at 5% which is final and to entity is tax deducted at 15% (which is not final). 
Therefore, the fund management is of the view that return from the fund is duly taxed as per the principal of income tax 

and is not subject to further tax liability.

 

10. Distributions 

The distributions, if any to unit holders are recognized in statement of changes in unit holders’ funds.

11. Financial Risk Management 

The Fund’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

The Fund’s overall risk management program focuses on ensuring compliance with the Fund’s investment policy. It also 

seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed and seeks to minimize potential 

adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance.
 

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on long equity and debt securities 

is limited to the fair value of those positions.
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The management of these risks is carried out by the NIBL Ace Capital Limited, the fund management company. The fund 

supervisors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as 
interest rate risk, credit risk and non-derivative financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity. 
The Fund uses different methods to measure and mitigate different types of risk to which it is exposed.

11.1. Market Risk 

a. Price Risk 

The Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which prices in the 

future are uncertain. Paragraph below sets out how this component of price risk is managed and measured. Investments 

are classified in the statement of financial position as at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. All  
securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined 
by the fair value of the financial instruments.
 

The Fund’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial instruments 
within specified limits set by the management company.
  

All of the Fund’s equity investments in companies are listed in NEPSE. The Fund’s policy requires that the overall market 

position is monitored on a daily basis by the Fund Management Company.

 

Investment Threshold

As per the Mutual Fund Regulation, 2067 investment in bank deposit cannot be made more that 10% of total fund size of 
the scheme.

 

b. Foreign Exchange Rate Risk 

The Fund is not exposed to the fluctuations in exchange rates as all investments and transactions of the fund are made in 
investments denominated in NPR.

c. Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk 

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on financial instruments with variable interest rates.

Financial instruments with fixed rates expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. The Fund’s interest bearing financial 
assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its 
financial position and cash flows. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis.

The Fund has direct exposure to interest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities. However, it may also be indirectly affected by the impact of interest rate changes on the earnings of certain  
companies in which the Fund invests and impact on the valuation of certain assets that use interest rates as an input in 

their valuation model. 

11.2. Credit Risk 

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the 
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

 

The main concentration to which the Fund is exposed arises from the Fund’s investments in debt securities. However, there 

is no investment in debt securities.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other receivable balances.

 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Management Company monitors the Fund’s credit position on a daily basis. The 

Fund can maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed. The table below is a summary of 

the significant sector concentrations within the equity portfolio.
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For FY 2075/76:

For FY 2074/75:

Sector Value Cost
Proportionate

Exposure
Growth%

Commercial Banks 242,080,889 284,185,833 42.10% -14.82%
Development Bank 48,207,990 55,795,153 8.38% -13.60%
Microfinance Companies 82,387,977 93,486,985 14.33% -11.87%
Hydropower Companies 26,018,028 29,011,237 4.52% -10.32%
Life Insurance Companies 81,619,689 122,165,272 14.19% -33.19%
Non-life Insurance Companies 60,070,968 102,678,929 10.45% -41.50%
Telecom, Mutual Funds and others 29,014,439 29,948,781 5.05% -3.12%
Hotels 5,662,096 5,509,235 0.98% 2.77%

Total 575,062,076 722,781,426 100.00%

Sector Value Cost
Proportionate

Exposure
Growth%

Commercial Banks 234,777,076 314,997,283 42.16% -25.47%
Development Bank 42,786,981 55,529,896 7.68% -22.95%
Microfinance Companies 75,886,237 90,702,248 13.63% -16.33%
Hydropower Companies 16,624,197 21,966,086 2.99% -24.32%
Life Insurance Companies 69,879,279 113,707,312 12.55% -38.54%
Non-life Insurance Companies 83,901,052 100,537,836 15.07% -16.55%
Telecom, Mutual Funds and others 23,371,473 23,766,100 4.20% -1.66%
Hotels 9,665,695 12,232,849 1.74% -20.99%

Total 556,891,990 733,439,610 100.00%

11.3. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full 
as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

 

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable units. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its  

assets in investments that are traded in an active market or can be readily disposed.

 

The Fund’s listed securities are considered readily realizable, as all are listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange. 

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. No such borrowings have arisen during the 

period.

 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Management Company monitors the Fund’s liquidity position on a regular basis.

 

12. Fair Value Measurement 

The Fund measures and recognizes the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis:
 

The Fund has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in the current reporting period:
 

NFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value hierarchy;
(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
 indirectly (level 2); and 
(c)  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).
 

i. Fair value in an active market (level 1) 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the end 
of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. 
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The Fund values its investments in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2 to the financial statements. 
For the majority of its investments, the Fund relies on information provided by independent pricing services for the  

valuation of its investments. 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from 
NEPSE and are traded frequently.

ii. Fair value in an inactive or unquoted market (level 2 and level 3) 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation  
techniques.

Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 30 days is valued at 180 days Average Market price 
provided by NEPSE and Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 180 days is valued at last traded 
price of the stock at NEPSE considering it as level two input.

The Fair value of IPO Investments after allotment till listing, is valued applying the valuation model as specified below:  
 

I)   50% of the Latest Net worth Published by the Company.
II)  50% based on the Earnings Capitalization, based on the projections of the company by considering latest interest rate 
of the Government Bonds after applicable tax deductions as discount factor which is considered as level 3 input.
 

After the book closure date and till the rights are listed, right entitlements are valued as difference between the right price 
and ex-right price. This is explained with the help of following formula:

Vr = n / m x (Pex – Pof)
Where

Vr = Value of Rights

n = Number of rights offered
m = Number of original shares held

Pex = Ex-right price

Pof = Rights offer price

Valuation of total Right Entitlement = Vr x No. of shares held before Ex- date

13. Net Gain/Losses on financial Assets held at fair value through profit or loss
a. Accounting policy

Realized gain is the difference between the cost price and realized price on the sale of the shares after deducting the  
selling expenses.

Unrealized gain is the difference between the cost price and the closing market price available at the end of the reporting 
period or the latest trading price if the closing price as on the year end is not available.

b. Explanatory notes

Particulars FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Net Realised (Losses)/Gains on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Proift or loss

8,992,043  11,949,819 

Net Unrealised (Losses)/Gains on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss 28,828,271  (197,059,686)

Total 37,820,314  (185,109,867)
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Computation of Unrealized Gains for FY 2075/76:

Name of company Unit Price Amount Cost Total Cost Gain/(Loss)

Himalayan Bank Limited 32392 552 17,880,384 715 23,172,011 (5,291,627)
Bank of Kathmandu Limited 36161 255 9,221,055 368 13,291,052 (4,069,997)
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 5757 264 1,519,848 350 2,017,248 (497,400)
Siddhartha Bank Limited 48273 318 15,350,814 387 18,689,549 (3,338,735)
Prime Commercial Bank Limited 38996 278 10,840,888 279 10,885,082 (44,194)
Citizens Bank International Limited 33454 224 7,493,696 343 11,472,684 (3,978,988)
Sunrise Bank Limited 39655 248 9,834,440 329 13,055,752 (3,221,312)
Sanima Bank Limited 43513 348 15,142,524 350 15,239,789 (97,265)
NIC Asia Bank Limited 2150 448 963,200 459 987,415 (24,215)
Nepal Bank Limited 88471 336 29,726,256 314 27,771,361 1,954,895 
Global IME Bank Limited 42781 295 12,620,395 292 12,510,716 109,679 
Nepal SBI Bank Limited 40977 469 19,218,213 775 31,748,501 (12,530,288)
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited 5033 222 1,117,326 389 1,959,107 (841,781)
NMB Bank Limited 8989 382 3,433,798 290 2,602,968 830,830 
Laxmi Bank Limited 32846 226 7,423,196 302 9,913,892 (2,490,696)
Agricultural Development Bank Limited 23344 409 9,547,696 360 8,403,136 1,144,560 
Century Commercial Bank Limited 12818 177 2,268,786 268 3,429,113 (1,160,327)
Everest Bank Limited 30181 666 20,100,546 1012 30,545,103 (10,444,557)
Kumari Bank Limited 27564 220 6,064,080 209 5,767,322 296,758 
Mega Bank Nepal Limited 15510 213 3,303,630 227 3,515,848 (212,218)
Prabhu Bank Limited 43623 266 11,603,718 273 11,890,777 (287,059)
Nabil Bank Limited 34258 800 27,406,400 739 25,317,409 2,088,991 
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited 33678 252 8,486,856 279 9,383,811 (896,955)
Garima Bikas Bank Limited 40143 224 8,992,032 230 9,232,749 (240,717)
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited 49764 370 18,412,680 421 20,957,414 (2,544,734)
Kailash Bikas Bank Limited 27500 238 6,545,000 316 8,687,087 (2,142,087)
Shangrila Development Bank Limited 6464 159 1,027,776 178 1,153,195 (125,419)
Excel Development Bank Limited 16762 283 4,743,646 381 6,380,897 (1,637,251)
Oriental Hotel Limited 9328 607 5,662,096 591 5,509,235 152,861 
Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited 29878 245 7,320,110 454 13,551,929 (6,231,819)
Chilime Hydro power Company Limited 3356 521 1,748,476 592 1,986,438 (237,962)
Butwal Power Company Limited 11022 409 4,507,998 535 5,896,252 (1,388,254)
United Modi Hydropower Limited 6361 109 693,349 105 668,218 25,131 
Kalika Power company limited 4036 91 367,276 100 403,600 (36,324)
Panchakanya Mai Hydropower Limited 3056 110 336,160 100 305,600 30,560 
United Hydropower company limited 2975 89 264,775 100 297,500 (32,725)
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 63316 383 24,250,028 662 41,902,198 (17,652,170)
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited 20800 350 7,280,000 669 13,918,489 (6,638,489)
Lumbini General Insurance Limited 8410 430 3,616,300 741 6,235,223 (2,618,923)
Siddhartha Insurance Limited 39126 455 17,802,330 803 31,405,726 (13,603,396)
NLG Insurance Company Limited 17108 762 13,036,296 1243 21,271,970 (8,235,674)
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited 26601 901 23,967,501 975 25,934,904 (1,967,403)
National Life Insurance Company Limited 40496 585 23,690,160 1092 44,206,269 (20,516,109)
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited 15267 771 11,770,857 1466 22,379,618 (10,608,761)
Life Insurance Corporation Nepal Limited 6070 1600 9,712,000 1668 10,121,902 (409,902)
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited 5580 605 3,375,900 755 4,215,136 (839,236)
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited 2475 354 876,150 349 864,000 12,150 
Neco Insurance Company Limited 4673 495 2,313,135 511 2,388,768 (75,633)
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 21915 693 15,187,095 724 15,857,945 (670,850)
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 659289 10.82 7,133,507 11.26 7,421,629 (288,122)
Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme 272400 10.82 2,947,368 11.47 3,123,518 (176,150)
Laxmi Value Fund-1 145438 10.2 1,483,468 10.08 1,465,429 18,039 
Siddhartha Equity Fund 84150 10.09 849,074 9.19 772,989 76,084 
Laxmi Equity Fund 20400 7.63 155,652 7.24 147,780 7,872 
NMB Hybrid Fund L1 94524 10.03 948,076 9.01 851,785 96,290 
Sanima Equity Fund 33000 9.4 310,200 9.32 307,705 2,495 
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 11310 661 7,475,910 619 7,000,003 475,907 
Sana Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 12221 948 11,585,508 873 10,670,294 915,214 
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 20950 950 19,902,500 1044 21,872,285 (1,969,785)
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 14408 841 12,117,128 1073 15,455,182 (3,338,054)
Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

840 1328 1,115,520 21 17,409          1,098,111 

Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 652 1130 736,760 83 54,300 682,460 
Nerude Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 11649 470 5,475,030 1013 11,801,252 (6,326,222)
Swadeshi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 578 578 102 100 478 
Mahuli Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 950 947 899,650 69 65,229 834,421 
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 4840 343 1,660,120 551 2,664,998 (1,004,878)
Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 530 383 202,990 100 53,000 149,990 
Aarambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 717 529 379,293 100 71,700 307,593 
Unnati Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 797 800 637,600 75 59,600 578,000 
Nepal Sewa Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 450 382 171,900 100 45,000 126,900 
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 10402 722 7,510,244 1060 11,027,297 (3,517,053)
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 9246 875 8,090,250 1240 11,467,236 (3,376,986)
Nadep Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2530 412 1,042,360 87 220,000 822,360 
Samudiyak Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 387 532 205,884 100 38,700 167,184 
Chautari Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1007 464 467,248 100 100,700 366,548 
Asha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1372 395 541,940 100 137,200 404,740 
Support Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 745 471 350,895 100 74,500 276,395 
Infinity Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2047 400 818,800 100 204,700 614,100 
Rashuwaghadi Hydropower Company Limited 38486 180.73 6,955,575 100 3,848,600 3,106,975 
Sanjen Jalabiddhyut Company Limited 20531 186.27 3,824,309 100 2,053,100 1,771,209 
Janasewi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited 1738 270.6 470,303 100 173,800 296,503 
Ghodighoda Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 265 161.95 42,917 100 26,500 16,417 
Aadhikhola Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha limited 800 279.01 223,208 100 80,000 143,208 
Sabaiko Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1060 248.53 263,442 100 106,000 157,442 

Total   575,062,076  722,781,426   (147,719,349)

 Up-to Previous Year (176,547,620)

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) this year 28,828,271
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Computation of Unrealized Gains for FY 2074/75:

Name of Company Unit Price Amount Cost Total Cost Gain/(Loss)

Himalayan Bank Limited  30,850  551 16,998,350  751  23,172,011  (6,173,661)
Bank of Kathmandu Limited  31,720  264  8,374,080  419  13,291,117  (4,917,037)
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited  17,848  209  3,730,232  350  6,253,824  (2,523,592)
Siddhartha Bank Limited  44,022  300 13,206,600  410  18,057,951  (4,851,351)
Prime Commercial Bank Limited  41,918  287 12,030,466  326  13,657,604  (1,627,138)
Citizens Bank International Limited  32,290  236  7,620,440  355  11,472,689  (3,852,249)
Sunrise Bank Limited  39,655  230  9,120,650  329  13,055,752  (3,935,102)
Sanima Bank Limited  40,513  324 13,126,212  351  14,238,594  (1,112,382)
NIC Asia Bank Limited  16,685  316  5,272,460  387  6,464,868  (1,192,408)
Nepal Bank Limited  45,539  281 12,796,459  366  16,668,104  (3,871,645)
NABIL Bank Limited Promotor Share  32,373  687 22,240,251  828  26,795,449  (4,555,198)
Global IME Bank  Limited  32,370  290  9,387,300  337  10,923,609  (1,536,309)
Nepal SBI Bank Limited  39,026  499 19,473,974  814  31,748,501  (12,274,527)
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited  34,393  214  7,360,102  389  13,387,028  (6,026,926)
NMB Bank Limited  4,400  358  1,575,200  464  2,042,668  (467,468)
Laxmi Bank Limited  38,713  258  9,987,954  327  12,677,850  (2,689,896)
Agricultural Development Bank Limited  40,969  314 12,864,266  382  15,657,235  (2,792,969)
Century Commercial Bank Limited  14,527  169  2,455,063  273  3,964,201  (1,509,138)
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  9,456  750  7,092,000 1,166  11,027,297  (3,935,297)
Everest Bank Limited  35,361  663 23,444,343 1,012  35,787,595  (12,343,252)
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited  1,765  755  1,332,575  645  1,138,425  194,150 
Kumari Bank Limited  33,471  199  6,660,729  238  7,969,243  (1,308,514)
Janata Bank Nepal Limited  12,000  157  1,884,000  173  2,081,398  (197,398)
Mega Bank Nepal Limited  18,990  163  3,095,370  237  4,501,566  (1,406,196)
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited  27,674  271  7,499,654  329  9,118,561  (1,618,907)
Garima Bikas Bank Limited  36,494  182  6,641,908  253  9,232,749  (2,590,841)
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited  42,084  378 15,907,752  498  20,957,404  (5,049,652)
Kailash Bikas Bank Limited  27,500  229  6,297,500  316  8,687,087  (2,389,587)
Shangrila Development Bank Limited  6,215  157  975,755  186  1,153,198  (177,443)
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  7,397 1,240  9,172,280 1,550  11,467,236  (2,294,956)
Excel Development Bank Limited  16,762  326  5,464,412  381  6,380,897  (916,485)
Oriental Hotel Limited  16,275  521  8,479,275  679  11,054,024  (2,574,749)
Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited  4,330  274  1,186,420  272  1,178,824  7,596 
Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited  27,162  328  8,909,136  499  13,551,926  (4,642,790)
Chilime Hydro power Company Limited  1,946  790  1,537,340  751  1,460,828  76,512 
Butwal Power Company Limited  10,020  457  4,579,140  588  5,896,215  (1,317,075)
United Modi Hydropower Limited  6,361  172  1,094,092  105  668,218  425,874 
Rairang Hydropower Development Company 

Limited.
 833  148  123,284  100  83,300  39,984 

Asian Life Insurance Company Limited  39,572  683 27,027,676  999  39,527,798  (12,500,122)
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited  20,800  450  9,360,000  669  13,918,489  (4,558,489)
Lumbini General Insurance Limited  8,410  550  4,625,500  741  6,235,223  (1,609,723)
Siddhartha Insurance Limited  25,097  690 17,316,930 1,216  30,527,326  (13,210,396)
NLG Insurance Company Limited  16,338  930 15,194,340 1,267  20,707,045  (5,512,705)
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited  14,781 1,050 15,520,050 1,377  20,355,579  (4,835,529)
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National Life Insurance Company Limited  22,299  799 17,816,901 1,922  42,868,269  (25,051,368)
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited  15,267  985 15,037,995 1,466  22,379,618  (7,341,623)
Life Insurance Corporation Nepal Limited  5,866 1,622  9,514,652 1,868  10,955,667  (1,441,015)
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited  3,000 1,340  4,020,000 1,405  4,215,136  (195,136)
Nepal Insurance Company Limited  5,000  658  3,290,000  511  2,555,000  735,000 
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited  21,915  721 15,800,715  724  15,857,949  (57,234)
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 362,289 11.55  4,184,438  12  4,264,542  (80,104)
Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme 272,400 10.55  2,873,820  11  3,123,418  (249,598)
Laxmi Value Fund-1  50,000  10  512,500  10  520,190  (7,690)
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  10,282  653  6,714,146  681  7,000,006  (285,860)
Sana Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  9,777 1,160  11,341,320 1,091  10,670,269  671,051 
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  15,754  877 13,816,258 1,283  20,219,794  (6,403,536)
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  12,007 1,024 12,295,168 1,287  15,455,187  (3,160,019)
Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

 672 2,220  1,491,840  26  17,409  1,474,431 

Samata Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited  407 1,380  561,660  83  33,900  527,760 
Nerude Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  10,129  637  6,452,173 1,165  11,801,253  (5,349,080)
Mahuli Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  643 2,610  1,678,230  67  42,900  1,635,330 
RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  2,750  555  1,526,250  909  2,499,998  (973,748)
Support Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited  750  817  612,750  100  75,000  537,750 
Aarambha Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited  817  582  475,494  100  81,700  393,794 
Unnati Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited  516 1,840  949,440  100  51,600  897,840 
Nepal Sewa Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited  450  343  154,350  100  45,000  109,350 
NMB-FPO  30,000 358 10,740,000 333 9,990,000  750,000 
Panchakanya Mai-IPO  3,056 125  381,205 100  305,600  75,605 
NLICL-Right Entitlement  22,299 418  9,323,881  -    -    9,323,881 
SIL -Right Entitlement  25,097 228  5,732,406  -    -    5,732,406 
Samudayik Laghubitta-IPO  937 100  93,700 100  93,700 -

RSDC -Right entitlement  2,750 266  732,187  -    -    732,188 
Nadep Laghubitta-IPO  1,200 385  462,168  100  120,000  342,168 
SMATA -Right entitlement  407 651  264,823  -    -    264,823 

Total 56,891,990 733,439,610 (176,547,620)

Up-to Previous Year 20,512,066

Unrealized Gain/(Loss) this year (197,059,686)

14. Impairment

Accounting policy

The fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of 

the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or group of financial assets.

15. Related Party Transactions

(As identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors)

Related Parties

a. Fund Sponsor: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
b. Fund Manager and Depository: NIBL Ace Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Sponsor.
c. Shareholders holding substantial interest in the Fund Manager: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
d. Subsidiaries of Major Shareholders of Fund Manager with whom the Fund transacted: None
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The Scheme has entered into transactions with related parties which are required to be disclosed in accordance with  

Accounting Standard - on 'Related Party Disclosures'.

• Unit Holding of Nepal Investment Bank Limited (Fund Sponsor) amounts to NPR 102,500,000 (at par value of NPR 10 
per unit)

• Unit Holding of NIBL Ace Capital Limited (Fund Management) amounts to NPR 10,000,000 (at par value of NPR 10 per 
unit)

• NIBL Pragati Fund have earned interest amounting to NPR 223,029 (NPR Two Hundred Twenty Three Thousand and 
Twenty Nine only) from Nepal Investment Bank Limited. 

• Fund Management and Depository Fee incurred by NIBL Pragati Fund during the year amounts to NPR 11,810,519 
(NPR Eleven Million, Eight Hundred Ten Thousand, Five Hundred and Nineteen Only). The amount is payable to NIBL 
Ace Capital Limited. 

• Fund management and depository fee payable at year end  by NIBL Pragati Fund to NIBL Ace Capital Limited NPR 

5,988,275 (NPR Five Million, Nine Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand, Two Hundred and Seventy Five Only).
• The Scheme has a call account bank balance of NPR 5,488,261 (NPR Five Million Four  Hundred Eighty Eight  

Thousand and Two Hundred Sixty-One) as on Balance Sheet date with the Fund Sponsor - Nepal Investment Bank 
Limited at the rate of 2.5% per annum.

16. Reporting

The Fund Manager has been reporting its Fund Management Activities to its Board and the Fund Supervisor on regular 

basis while the statutory reports are also forwarded in line with the prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds.

17. Contingent Liability

There is no contingent liability in respect of underwriting commitments, uncalled liability on partly paid shares and other 

commitments.

18. Proposed Dividend

The Scheme has not proposed any cash dividend to its unit holders during the reporting period.

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital  Limited

(Fund Management Company) 

As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande                         

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha 

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date: 2076/05/12
Place : Kathmandu

Subhash Poudel

Head- Mutual Fund  

Bandana Thapa 

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

S. R. Pandey, FCA

Senior Partner

For: S. R. Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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NIBL MUTUAL FUND
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)
NPR

Particulars Notes FY 2075/76 FY 2074/75

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.2  179,224,543  -   

Other Current Assets 4.6  -    -   

Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost  5,000,000  -   

Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 4.7  18,226,625  -   

Total  202,451,168  -   

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 5.2  3,316,878  -   

Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders  3,316,878  -   

Unit Holder's Funds

Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders 6  199,134,291  -   

Total  202,451,168  -   

NAV per Share                                                                                   9.96          -   

Schedules and Explanatory Notes forms integral part of Statement of Position  As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date   : 2076/ 04/16
Place : Kathmandu

Poskar Basnet

Scheme Manager

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M.B Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 24th Ashad 2076 to 31st Ashad 2076  (09th July 2019 to 16th July 2019)

NPR

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date   : 2076/ 04/16
Place : Kathmandu

Poskar Basnet

Scheme Manager

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M.B Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Particulars Notes  Ashad End 2076  Ashad End 2075 

Interest Income 7.2  286,638  -   

Dividend Income 7.3  -    -   

Net Realised Gains/(losses) on financial Assets at Fair Value 
Through Proift or loss

14(b)  -    -   

Other Income  -    -   

Total  286,638  -   

Expenses and Losses

Fund Management Fees 8.1  54,567  -   

Depositary Fees 8.1  17,461  -   

Fund Supervisors Fees 8.1  13,096  -   

Publication Expenses  35,000  -   

Audit Fees  113,000  -   

Bank Charges  175  -   

Pre-operating Expenses 8.2  1,288,912  -   

Total expenses  1,522,211  -   

Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period  (1,235,573)  -   

Other Comprehensive income
-Net Unrealised Gain/(Loss) on financial assets 14(b)  369,863  -   

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  (865,709)  -   
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Satement of Cash Flow

For the Period from 24th Ashad 2076 to 31st Ashad 2076  (09th July 2019 to 16th July 2019)

NPR

Particulars  Ashad End 2076  Ashad End 2075 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year  (865,709)  -   

Adjustments For :

Increase/Decrease in Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets held for  
trading purposes

 (369,863)  -   

Increase/(Decrease) in  Liabilities  3,316,878  -   

(Increase)/Decrease in Share  (17,856,762)  -   

(Increase)/Decrease in Debenture  -    -   

(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Deposit  (5,000,000)  -   

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  -    -   

Net cash generated/(used) in Operations (1)  (20,775,457)  -   

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Unit Capital  200,000,000 
Dividend Paid during the year  -    -   

Net cash generated/(used) in financing (2)  200,000,000  -   

C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities  -    -   

Net cash generated/(used) in investing (3)  -    -   

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3)  179,224,543  -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period  -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period  179,224,543  -   

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks  179,224,543  -   

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date   : 2076/ 04/16
Place : Kathmandu

Poskar Basnet

Scheme Manager

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M.B Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
(Sponsored by Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. and Managed by NIBL Ace Capital Ltd.)

Satement of Change in Equity

For the Period from 24th Ashad 2076 to 31st Ashad 2076  (09th July 2019 to 16th July 2019)

NPR

Particulars  Ashad End 2076  Ashad End 2075 

Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period  -  - 

Issue of Unit Capital  200,000,000 
Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders:
         Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period  (1,235,573)  - 

         Other Comprehensive Income  369,863  - 

Distribution to Unit Holders'  -  - 

Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period  199,134,291  - 

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director

Mekh Bahadur Thapa

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date   : 2076/ 04/16
Place : Kathmandu

Poskar Basnet

Scheme Manager

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M.B Shrestha & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Notes to the Financial Statements as of Ashad End 2076 (16th July 2019)

1.  General Information of the Scheme

Fund: NIBL Mutual Fund

Scheme: NIBL Sahabhagita Fund

Fund Sponsor:
Nepal Investment Bank Limited (NIBL)

(Licensed by NRB as Class A bank)

Fund Management: 
NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(A subsidiary of Nepal Investment Bank Limited)

Fund Supervisors:

Mr. Madhukar S.J.B. Rana
Dr. Bimal Prasad Koirala
Dr. Shambhu Ram Simkhada

Dr. Durgesh Man Singh

CA. Jitendra Bahadur Rajbhandari
Total Units of Scheme: 20,000,000 (Twenty Million units)
Total Unit Capital: NPR 2,00,000,000 (NPR Two Hundred Million)
Scheme type:  Open-ended

NIBL Sahabhagita Fund (the Scheme) under NIBL Mutual Fund (the Fund) is registered under Mutual Fund Regulations, 

2067 as Nepal's very first Open Ended mutual fund, a diversified investment scheme. The objective of the scheme is to dili-
gently manage the fund with the aim to encourage the conversion of savings into investments in shares and fixed income 
securities and conservation of capital regularly and to provide steady returns to unit-holders over the long period of time. 

The Scheme commenced its operation on 24th Ashad, 2076 (Scheme allotment date) B.S. It is not listed in Nepal Stock 
Exchange (NEPSE). The Scheme’s Financial Statements for the year 2075/76 were approved by the Board of Directors of 
the NIBL Ace Capital Limited on 16th Shrawan, 2076 being the Fund Management and Depository Company. Similarly, the 
Fund Supervisors’ consent on the approved Financial Statements has also been duly obtained.

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. (NIBL) is the Fund Sponsor and NIBL Ace Capital Ltd (NIBL Ace Capital), a subsidiary of NIBL 

duly licensed by Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON),  has been appointed as the Fund Manager of the Scheme by the 
Sponsor after obtaining due approval from SEBON. Further, the Fund Manager is also providing Depository services to the 
unit holders of the Scheme in line with the prevailing regulations on mutual fund.

The Unit Capital of the Scheme comprises of the following:

Holder Status No. of Units
Holding Amount 

@ 10 Each
Holding (%)

Nepal Investment Bank Fund Sponsor 65,00,000 65,000,000 33%
NIBL Ace Capital Limited Fund Manager / Depository 1,071,270 10,712,700 5%
General Public 12,428,730 124,287,300 62%
Total 20,000,000 200,000,000 100%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees, rounded to the nearest Rupee. The Financial Statements 

have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). Further the financial statements are 
in compliance with Securities Act, 2063 and its regulation and other relevant laws.

2.2. Basis of Preparation

The fund while complying with the reporting standards makes critical accounting judgment as having potentially material 

impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the financial statements as a whole 
along with the judgment made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that relevant note. 
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NFRS requires the fund to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates.  Description of such estimates has been 

given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and liabilities.

The statement of financial position is presented on liquidity basis. Assets and liabilities are presented in decreasing order 
of liquidity. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except for investments in financial 
assets and net assets attributable to unit-holders.

2.3. Reporting Pronouncements

The fund has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on Septem-

ber 13, 2013. NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

2.4. Accounting Conventions

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
  

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judgments as 
required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.
 

2.5. New reporting standards in issue but not yet effective
NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments has been issued but is not effective until further notified.  For the reporting of financial 
instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements 
and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures have been applied.
 

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after 

the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.  Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them 
within NFRS.

 

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments will arise as a result 
of application of NFRS 9.
 

2.6. Presentation

The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees.
  

For presentation of the statement of financial position assets and liabilities have been bifurcated into current and non- cur-
rent distinction.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method. 
The cash flows from operation within the statement of cash flows have been derived using the indirect method.

2.7. Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the fund.

2.8. Accounting Policies and accounting estimates

The fund, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operat-

ing environment.  Further the fund is required to make judgment in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, 
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be deter-
mined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements.
 

NFRS requires the fund to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.
  

The fund applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements.  The estimates and underlying assump-

tions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates is 

revised and are applied prospectively. 
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Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates 

have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finan-

cial year. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations 

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.9. Financial Periods

The fund follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.
 

2.10. Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

2.11. Limitation of NFRS implementation 

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS imple-

mentation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounting policy

3.1. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at 
bank.  

Payments and receipts relating to the purchase and sale of investment securities are classified as cash flows from oper-
ating activities, as movements in the fair value of these securities represent the Fund’s main income generating activity.

Explanatory notes

3.2. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are representative of their fair values as at the respective 

reporting date;

Particulars 31st Ashad, 2076

Cash at Bank 179,224,543
Total 179,224,543

4. Financial Instruments 

Accounting policy

4.1The Fund’s principal financial assets comprise assets held at fair value through profit and loss, assets measured at 
amortized cost, loans and receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the 
investment made by unit-holders. The Funds’ principal financial liabilities comprise accrued expenses and other payables 
which arise directly from its operations.

 

In accordance with NFRS 39; Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the Fund’s interest receivables are 
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Equity securities / debentures are classified as fair value through profit and loss. The 
amount attributable to unit-holders is classified as equity and is carried at the redemption amount being net asset value. 
Payables are designated as ‘other financial liabilities’ at amortized cost.
 

4.2 Classification 
The Fund’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, fair value at amortized cost and loans and re-

ceivables. They comprise:

Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets, held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are 
recognized through profit or loss. This classification includes quoted equity securities held for trading. The dividend income 
from the quoted equity securities is recorded in the profit or loss.
 

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable.
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4.3 Recognition / De- recognition 

The Fund recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual agreement 
(trade date) and recognizes changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities from this date.

Investments are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the investments has expired or the Fund has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or expired.

 

Realized gains and realized losses on de-recognition are determined using the weighted average method and are included 

in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The realized gain is the difference between an instrument’s weighted 
average cost and disposal amount.

 

4.4 Measurement 

a. Financial Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

At initial recognition, the Fund measures a financial asset at its fair value.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss’ category is presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net gains/(losses) on 
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date.

 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is subsequently based on their quoted market prices 
at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. The quoted market price used 

for financial assets held by the Fund is the closing price.
 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation  
techniques.

 

b. Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 

Financial assets at this category are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently amortized  

using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses if any. Such assets are reviewed at the end of each report-
ing period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

If evidence of impairment exists, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
 

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognized on a financial asset carried at amortized cost  
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down is  

reversed through profit or loss. 

Receivables may include amounts for dividends, interest and trade receivables. Dividends are accrued when the right to 

receive payment is established. Interest is accrued at the end of each reporting period from the time of last payment in 

accordance with the policy set out in note 2(6) above.

Receivable are recognized and carried at amortized cost, less a provision for any uncollectable debts. An estimate for 

doubtful debt is made when collection of an amount is no longer probable.

 

Recoverability of receivable is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an individual portfolio level, Individual debts that are known 

to be uncollectable are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognized when there is objective evidence 
that the Fund will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments are considered 
objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount compared to the 

present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4.5 Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Explanatory note

4.6 Loans and Receivables- Current

S.N. Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

1 Dividend Income Receivable                       -                         -   

2 Interest Receivables                       -                         -   

3 Broker Receivables                        -   

a) Kohinoor Investment -Broker No. 35                       -                         -   

c) South Asian Bulls -Broker No. 43                       -                         -   

e) Vision Securities -Broker No. 34                       -                         -   

7 Other Receivables                       -                         -   

 Total Amount                       -                         -   

4.7 Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

4.7 Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Equity Security  18,226,625  -

Total Financial Assets held for Trading (A)   18,226,625   -  

Designated Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Total Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (B) - -

Total Financial Assets Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (A+B)   18,226,625   -  

Name of Company

Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Unit
Value per 

Unit

Value 
Amount 
(NPR)

Unit
Value 
per 
Unit

Value 
Amount 
(NPR)

Amount(NPR)

Prabhu Bank Limited 6000 266 1,596,000 - - -

Kumari Bank Limited 2000 220 440,000 - - -

Siddhartha Bank Limited 3080 318 979,440 - - -

Global IME Bank Limited 4745 295 1,399,775 - - -

Kailash Bikas Bank Ltd. 1000 238 238,000 - - -

Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd. 3410 370 1,261,700 - - -

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 1505 521 784,105 - - -

Neco Insurance Co. Ltd. 2120 495 1,049,400 - - -

Siddhartha Equity Fund 73400 10.09 740,606 - - -

Sanima Bank Limited 3000 348 1,044,000 - - -

Garima Bikas Bank Limited 2275 224 509,600 - - -

Sanima Equity Fund 8700 9.4 81,780 - - -

Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 700 771 539,700 - - -

Gandaki Bikas Bank Limited 1840 216 397,440 - - -

Nabil Bank Limited 2000 800 1,600,000 - - -

Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 2500 278 695,000 - - -

Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 227 1328 301,456 - - -

Siddhartha Insurance Ltd. 1417 455 644,735 - - -
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NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 50000 10.82 541,000 - - -

Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 1000 264 264,000 - - -

Prime Life Insurance Company Limited 699 439 306,861 - - -

Shree Investment Finance Co. Ltd. 1010 157 158,570 - - -

Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 1994 901 1,796,594 - - -

NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 1026 448 459,648 - - -

Total 17,829,410 -

Comparative Investment in Unlisted Shares

Name of Company

Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Unit
Value per 

Unit

Value 
Amount 
(NPR)

Unit
Value 
per 
Unit

Value 
Amount 
(NPR)

Ghodighoda Laghubitta- IPO 199 162 32,228.05 - - -

Aadhikhola Laghubitta- IPO 600 279 167,406.00 - - -

Sabaiko Laghubitta- IPO 795 249 197,581.35 - - -

Total 397,215

5. Payables 

Accounting polic

5.1 Payables include liabilities and accrued expenses owing by the Fund which are unpaid as at the end of the 

reporting period.

Explanatory notes

5.2 Accrued Expenses and Other Payables

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Pre-operating Expenses Payables           1,272,725                        -   

Provision For Audit Fee              111,500                        -   

Provision For Reporting Exp.               35,000                        -   

TDS Liability               20,732                        -   

Business Payables- Brokers           1,794,842  

Fund Management Fee Payable- NIBL Ace Capital               53,748                        -   

Depository Fee Payables- NIBL Ace Capital               17,199                        -   

Supervisor Fee Payables               10,477                        -   

Supervisor's SEBON Fee Payable                    655                        -   

Total           3,316,878                        -   

Fund management fee and depository fee includes fee payable to NIBL Ace Capital Limited for fund management and 

depository services. Supervisor's SEBON Fee Payable is an amount payable to SEBON which is equal to 5% of Supervi-
sor fee.

6. Net Assets Attributable to Unit-holders 

Unit-holders’ funds have been calculated as the difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and the carrying 
amounts of the liabilities, other than those due to unit-holders, as at the statement of financial position date.
 

The Fund Manager calculates the NAV per unit of the Scheme by deducting the Schemes’ expenses over market value 

of the total investment plus investment income divided by number of units on a weekly basis in accordance with the  

prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds and publishes the same on its official website: www.niblcapital.com. 

The said information is also shared with the Board members of the Fund Manager & the Fund Supervisors via e-mail. 

Further, the NAV per unit calculated on a monthly basis is published on a national daily newspaper and uploaded on the 

website of the Fund Manager with prior notification of the same forwarded to the Fund Supervisors & SEBON in writing. 
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Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Unit Holders' Fund at the Beginning of the Year/Period                        -                          -

Issue of Unit Capital     200,000,000.00  

Increase in Net Assets Attributable to Unit Holders:   

Net Gains/(Losses) for the Period       (1,235,572.80)                        -   

Other Comprehensive Income           369,863.44                        -   

Distribution to Unit Holders'                        -                          -   

Unit Holders' Fund at the End of the Year/Period     199,134,290.64                        -   

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Interest income on Debentures                        -                          -   

Interest income on Fixed Deposit               3,013.70                        -   

Interest income on Call Deposits           283,624.39  

Total Amount           286,638.09                        -   

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Dividend Income Realized - -

Total - -

Each unit represents a right to an individual share in the Fund and does not extend to a right to the underlying assets of 

the Fund. There are no separate classes of units and each unit has the same rights attaching to it as all other units of the 

Fund. The Fund considers its net assets attributable to unit-holders as capital (which includes unit capital, realized and  

unrealized gain), notwithstanding net assets attributable to unit-holders are classified as a liability. The amount of net  
assets attributable to unit-holders can change significantly on a daily basis.
 

Distribution to unit holders is recognized in the statement of changes in unit-holders’ funds. Income not distributed is  

included in net assets attributable to unit-holders

7. Investment Income 

Accounting Policy

7.1 Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for all financial instruments that are not held at fair value through profit or 
loss using the effective interest method. Interest income on assets held at fair value through profit or loss is included in the 
net gains/ (losses) on financial instruments.
 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and 
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that  
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial instrument, or a 
shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective  
interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not  
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are 

an integral part of the effective interest rate, including transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date.

Explanatory notes

7.2 Interest Income

7.3 Dividend Income

8. Expenses

8.1. Fund Management, Depository and Supervisor Fees

Fund Management, Depository and Supervisors fees, are recognized in profit or loss on accruals basis.
 

The management participation fees of the fund are as follows: 
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• Fund Management Fees : 1.25% of Net Assets Value (NAV)*
• Depository Fees : 0.4% of NAV *
• Fund Supervisor Fees : 0.30% of NAV *
* NAV for this purpose is computed on the basis of half yearly average of weekly NAV or NAV of end of Half year,  

 whichever is lower.

Total Fund Management, Depository & Fund Supervisor’s Fees calculated and recognized as per the mutual fund  

guidelines, 2069. The total fees charged on the basis of 8 days period (24th Ashad to 31st Ashad 2076) is presented in 
Nepalese currency and charged as under:

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Fund Management Fee                 54,567                        -   

Depository Fee                 17,461                        -   

Fund Supervisor Fee                 13,096                        -   

Total                 85,124                        -   

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Scheme Application & Registration Fee 545,000 -   

Prospectus Printing & Processing Expenses 14,690 -   

Scheme Projection Expenses 45,200 -   

Issue Software Charge 51,075 -   

Issue Management Fee 400,000 -   

Pre-Operating Other Expenses 50 -   

Scheme Allotment Meeting Expenses 47,059 -   

Issue Notice Publication Expenses 185,838 -   

Total 1,288,912 -   

8.2. Pre- operating Expenses

All pre-operating expenses including issue & sales management expenses are recognized in profit or loss on first fiscal 
year of the scheme instantly and charged as under:

9. Income Tax

Income Tax Act, 2058 has not specifically charged corporate tax liability on Mutual Fund Scheme. TDS is not applicable on 
withholding tax on interest, dividend income and gain on disposal of shares of Mutual Fund Scheme. Accordingly, Mutual 

Fund Scheme is not considered as tax-entity and corporate tax on Scheme is not considered.

10. Distributions 

The distributions, if any to unit-holders are recognized in statement of changes in unit-holders’ funds.

11. Financial Risk Management 

The Fund’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

 

The Fund’s overall risk management program focuses on ensuring compliance with the Fund’s investment policy. It also 

seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed and seeks to minimize potential 

adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance.
 

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on long equity and debt securities 

is limited to the fair value of those positions.

 

The management of these risks is carried out by the NIBL Ace Capital, the fund management company. The fund  

supervisors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as 
interest rate risk, credit risk and non-derivative financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity.
 

The Fund uses different methods to measure and mitigate different types of risk to which it is exposed.
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11.1. Market Risk 

a. Price Risk 

The Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which prices in the 

future are uncertain. Paragraph below sets out how this component of price risk is managed and measured. Investments 

are classified in the statement of financial position as at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. All  
securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined 
by the fair value of the financial instruments.

The Fund’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial instruments 
within specified limits set by the management company.
  

All of the Fund’s equity investments in companies are listed in NEPSE. The Fund’s policy requires that the overall market 

position is monitored on a daily basis by the Fund Management Company.

Investment Threshold

As per the Mutual Fund Regulation, 2067 investment in bank deposit cannot be made more that 10% of total fund size of 
the scheme.

b. Foreign Exchange Rate Risk 

The Fund is not exposed to the fluctuations in exchange rates as all investments and transactions of the fund are made 
in investments denominated in NPR.

c. Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk 

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on financial instruments with variable interest rates.

Financial instruments with fixed rates expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. The Fund’s interest bearing financial 
assets expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its 
financial position and cash flows. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis.

The Fund has direct exposure to interest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities. However, it may also be indirectly affected by the impact of interest rate changes on the earnings of certain  
companies in which the Fund invests and impact on the valuation of certain assets that use interest rates as an input in 

their valuation model.

 

11.2. Credit Risk 

The Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

 

The main concentration to which the Fund is exposed arises from the Fund’s investments in debt securities. However, there 

is no investment in debt securities.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other receivable balances.

11.3. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full 
as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

 

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable units. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its  

assets in investments that are traded in an active market or can be readily disposed.

 

The Fund’s listed securities are considered readily realizable, as all are listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange.

 

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. No such borrowings have arisen during the 

period. 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Management Company monitors the Fund’s liquidity position on a regular basis.

12. Fair Value Measurement 

The Fund measures and recognizes the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis: 
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The Fund has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis in the current reporting period: 
NFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value hierarchy;

(a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or  
 indirectly (level 2); and 
(c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).

i. Fair value in an active market (level 1) 

 The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the  
 end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

 

The Fund values its investments in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2 to the financial statements. 
For the majority of its investments, the Fund relies on information provided by independent pricing services for the valua-

tion of its investments.

 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from 
NEPSE and are traded frequently.

ii. Fair value in an inactive or unquoted market (level 2 and level 3) 

 The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation  
 techniques.

Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 30 days is valued at 180 days Average Market price 
provided by NEPSE and Equities which are listed but no transactions are made within last 180 days is valued at last traded 
price of the stock at NEPSE considering it as level two input.

 

The Fair value of IPO Investments after allotment till listing is valued applying the valuation model as specified below:  
 

I)  50% of the Latest Net worth Published by the Company.
II) 50% based on the Earnings Capitalization, based on the projections of the company by considering latest interest rate  
 of the Government Bonds after applicable tax deductions as discount factor which is considered as level 3 input. 
After the book closure date and till the rights are listed, right entitlements are valued as difference between the right price 
and ex-right price. This is explained with the help of following formula:
Vr = n / m x (Pex – Pof)
Where,

Vr = Value of Rights

n = Number of rights offered
m = Number of original shares held

Pex = Ex-right price

Pof = Rights offer price

Valuation of total Right Entitlement = Vr × No. of shares held before Ex-date

13. Financial Assets Held at Amortized Cost

Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Debentures                        -                            -   

Fixed Deposit 50,00,000                        -   

Total 50,00,000 -

Note (a):

The investment on fixed deposit is recognized on cost. The maturity period of the fixed deposits are not more than one year 
from the reporting date. They are classified based on maturity period using the effective interest rate and classified as held 
to maturity Interest on the fixed deposits are recognized daily as per accrual basis. The interest are received on quarterly 
and on maturity as per the deals executed with the banks. As there are no other associated costs, premium or discount the 

investment and the investment are settled with receiving the principal and interest the intrinsic coupon rate has been used 

as effective interest rate.
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Particulars Ashad End 2076 Ashad End 2075

Net Realized Gains/(Losses) on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Profit or loss

                       -                          -   

Net Unrealized Gains/(Losses) on Financial Assets at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss

          369,863                        -   

Total           369,863                        -   

Computation of Unrealized Gains for FY 2075/76:

Name of Company

Fiscal Year 2075-76

Unit
Value 

per unit
Value 

Amount
Cost 
Price

Total Cost
Gain/
(Loss)

Listed Companies       

Prabhu Bank Limited    6,000 266 1,596,000 268    1,610,768 (14,768)
Kumari Bank Limited    2,000 220 440,000 213       426,472 13,528 
Siddhartha Bank Limited    3,080 318 979,440 324       996,519 (17,079)
Global IME Bank Limited    4,745 295 1,399,775 301    1,429,345 (29,570)
Kailash Bikas Bank Ltd.    1,000 238 238,000 233       233,339 4,661 
Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd.    3,410 370 1,261,700 368    1,255,292 6,408 
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited    1,505 521 784,105 514       772,952 11,153 
Neco Insurance Co. Ltd.    2,120 495 1,049,400 475    1,006,811 42,589 
Siddhartha Equity Fund  73,400 10.09 740,606 9.71       712,775 27,831 
Sanima Bank Limited    3,000 348 1,044,000 347    1,040,936 3,064 
Garima Bikas Bank Limited    2,275 224 509,600 222       504,981 4,619 
Sanima Equity Fund    8,700 9.4 81,780 9.65        83,969 (2,189)
Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.       700 771 539,700 761       532,441 7,259 
Gandaki Bikas Bank Limited    1,840 216 397,440 210       385,561 11,879 
Nabil Bank Limited    2,000 800 1,600,000 791    1,581,151 18,849 
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd.    2,500 278 695,000 277       691,473 3,527 
Forward Community Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.       227 1,328 301,456 1,324       300,656 800 
Siddhartha Insurance Ltd.    1,417 455 644,735 444       629,844 14,891 
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1  50,000 10.82 541,000 10.63       531,430 9,571 
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited    1,000 264 264,000 265       264,511 (511)
Prime Life Insurance Company Limited       699 439 306,861 435       304,228 2,633 
Shree Investment Finance Co. Ltd.    1,010 157 158,570 156       157,491 1,079 
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.    1,994 901 1,796,594 895    1,785,339 11,255 
NIC Asia Bank Ltd.    1,026 448 459,648 447       459,078 570 
Sub-Total (A)   17,829,410   17,697,362 132,048 
Unlisted Companies       

Ghodighoda Laghubitta- IPO       199         162 32,228   100        19,900 12,328 
Aadhikhola Laghubitta- IPO       600 279 167,406   100        60,000 107,406 
Sabaiko Laghubitta- IPO       795 249 197,581   100        79,500 118,081 
Sub-Total (B)      397,215        159,400 237,815 
Grand Total (A+B)   18,226,625   17,856,762 369,863 

14. Net Gain/Losses on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
a. Accounting policy

Realized gain is the difference between the cost price and realized price on the sale of the shares after deducting the  
selling expenses.

Unrealized gain is the difference between the cost price and the closing market price available at the end of the reporting 
period or the latest trading price if the closing price as on the year end is not available.

b. Explanatory notes
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15. Impairment

Accounting policy

The fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of 

the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or group of financial assets.

16. Related Party Transactions

(As identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors)
Related Parties

a. Fund Sponsor: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
b. Fund Manager and Depository: NIBL Ace Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Sponsor.
c. Shareholders holding substantial interest in the Fund Manager: Nepal Investment Bank Limited.
d. Subsidiaries of Major Shareholders of Fund Manager with whom the Fund transacted:

None

The Scheme has entered into transactions with related parties which are required to be disclosed in accordance with  

Accounting Standard - on 'Related Party Disclosures'.

• Unit Holding of Nepal Investment Bank Limited (Fund Sponsor) amounts to NPR 65,000,000 (at par value of NPR 10 

 per unit)

• Unit Holding of NIBL Ace Capital Limited (Fund Management) amounts to NPR 10,712,700 (at par value of NPR 10  
 per unit)

• NIBL Sahabhagita Fund have earned interest amounting to NPR 229,246 (NPR Two Hundred Twenty Nine Thousand 

 Two Hundred and Forty Six only) from Nepal Investment Bank Limited.

• Fund Management and Depository Fee incurred by NIBL Sahabhagita Fund during the year amounts to NPR 72,028  
 (NPR Seventy Two Thousand and Twenty Eight only). The amount is payable to NIBL Ace Capital Limited.

• Fund management and depository fee payable by NIBL Sahabhagita Fund to NIBL Ace Capital Limited NPR 70,948  
 (NPR Seventy Thousand Nine Hundred Forty Eight only).

• The Scheme has a call account bank balance of NPR 114,167,251 (NPR. One Hundred Fourteen Million One Hundred  
 Sixty-Seven Thousand and Two Hundred Fifty-One only) as on Balance Sheet date with the Fund Sponsor - Nepal  
 Investment Bank Limited.

17. Reporting

The Fund Manager has been reporting its Fund Management Activities to its Board and the Fund Supervisor on regular 

basis while the statutory reports are also forwarded in line with the prevailing regulations/guidelines on mutual funds.

18. Contingent Liability

There is no contingent liability in respect of underwriting commitments, uncalled liability on partly paid shares and other 

commitments.

19. Proposed Dividend

The Scheme has not proposed any cash dividend to its unit-holders during the reporting period.

On Behalf of NIBL Ace Capital Limited

(Fund Management Company)

 As per our Report of even date

Shivanth Bahadur Pande

Chief Executive Officer

Deepak Kumar Shrestha

Director
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Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Date   : 2076/ 04/16
Place : Kathmandu

Poskar Basnet

Scheme Manager

Bandana Thapa

Director

Rabindra Bhattarai

Director

Sachin Tibrewal 

Chairman

Maheswarendra Bdr. Shrestha, FCA

Proprietor

M.B Shrestha & Co.
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Managing shares. Managing investments.

Wholly owned subsidiary of: 

+977-1-4005084 www.niblcapital.com+977-9801023000info@niblcapital.com

P.O. Box: 23224 Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal +977-1-4425280, 4419421

OUR

SERVICES

+977-1-4005084 www.niblcapital.cominfo@niblcapital.com

P.O. Box: 23224 Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal +977-1-4425280, +977-1-4005080
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